
MEETING: HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

DATE: 11th September 2019

TIME: 2.00 pm

VENUE: Town Hall, Bootle

Member

Councillor
Cllr. Ian Moncur (Chair)
Cllr. Paul Cummins
Cllr. John Joseph Kelly
Matthew Ashton
Vicky Buchanan
Deborah Butcher
Dr. Rob Caudwell
Dr Craig Gillespie
Fiona Taylor
Richard Freeman
Maureen Kelly
Steve Warburton
Lorraine Webb
Andrew Booth
Angela White

COMMITTEE OFFICER: Olaf Hansen Democratic Services Officer
Telephone: 0151 934 2067
Fax: 0151 934 2034
E-mail: olaf.hansen@sefton.gov.uk

If you have any special needs that may require arrangements to 
facilitate your attendance at this meeting, please contact the 
Committee Officer named above, who will endeavour to assist.

We endeavour to provide a reasonable number of full agendas, including reports at 
the meeting.  If you wish to ensure that you have a copy to refer to at the meeting, 
please can you print off your own copy of the agenda pack prior to the meeting.

Public Document Pack



A G E N D A

1.  Apologies for Absence

2.  Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 14)

3.  Declarations of Interest
Members are requested at a meeting where a disclosable 
pecuniary interest or personal interest arises, which is not 
already included in their Register of Members' Interests, to 
declare any interests that relate to an item on the agenda.

Where a Member discloses a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, 
he/she must withdraw from the meeting room, including from 
the public gallery, during the whole consideration of any item 
of business in which he/she has an interest, except where 
he/she is permitted to remain as a result of a grant of a 
dispensation.

Where a Member discloses a personal interest he/she must 
seek advice from the Monitoring Officer or staff member 
representing the Monitoring Officer to determine whether the 
Member should withdraw from the meeting room, including 
from the public gallery, during the whole consideration of any 
item of business in which he/she has an interest or whether 
the Member can remain in the meeting or remain in the 
meeting and vote on the relevant decision.

4.  Early Help Strategy progress update (Pages 15 - 
20)

Report of the Head of Communities

5.  Reducing Parental Conflict in Sefton (Pages 21 - 
42)

Report of the Head of Communities

6.  Health Watch Annual Report Presentation (Pages 43 - 
84)

Presentation by Maureen Kelly

7.  NHS Sefton 5 Year Place Plan (Pages 85 - 
114)

Report of Cameron Ward, Programme Director, Sefton 
Health and Social Care Transformation Programme

8.  Refresh of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy Progress 
Update

(Pages 115 - 
130)

Report of the Director of Public Health



9.  SEND Continuous Improvement (Pages 131 - 
140)

Report of the Chief Executive

10.  CCG (Clinical Commissioning Group) Performance 
Exception Report

(Pages 141 - 
154)

Presentation by Fiona Taylor



This page is intentionally left blank



THIS SET OF MINUTES IS NOT SUBJECT TO “CALL-IN”

1

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

MEETING HELD AT THE TOWN HALL, BOOTLE
ON WEDNESDAY 12TH JUNE, 2019

PRESENT: Councillor Cummins (in the Chair)

Councillor John Joseph Kelly, Dwayne Johnson, 
Matt Ashton, Fiona Taylor, Maureen Kelly, 
Steve Warburton, Lorraine Webb, Andrew Booth and 
Angela White

1. ELECTION OF CHAIR 

RESOLVED:

That Councillor Cummins be elected Chair for this meeting of the Health 
and Wellbeing Board.  

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Moncur, Vicky 
Buchanan, Richard Freeman and Dr Craig Gillespie. 

3. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

RESOLVED:

That the Minutes of the meeting held on 13 March, 2019 be confirmed as a 
correct record. 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of any disclosable pecuniary interests or personal 
interests were received.

5. SEND OFSTED/CQC REVIEW 

The Board considered the report of the Chief Executive which provided an 
update on the Ofsted and Care Quality Commission joint local area special 
educational needs and/or disabilities (SEND) revisit. 

The report highlighted that the revisit was undertaken in Sefton between 
the 15 and 17 April 2019. The revisit followed up the SEND inspection that 
was held in 2016. The report detailed the key actions to be undertaken 
after the revisit, the process and the next steps. 

The report stated that in November 2016, Sefton underwent a local area 
SEND inspection. The inspection highlighted weaknesses in the way that 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD- WEDNESDAY 12TH JUNE, 2019

2

the local area provided the support required, following this the local area 
were required to submit a Written Statement of Action (WSOA) detailing 
how the weaknesses would be addressed over a three-year period. The 
report highlighted that the five areas of weakness identified were:

(1) To improve the poor progress made from starting points by pupils 
with a statement of special educational needs or an EHCP at Key 
Stages 2 and 4; 

(2) To address the poor operational oversight of the Designated 
Clinical Officer (DCO) across health services in supporting children 
and young people who have special educational needs and/or 
disabilities and their families;

(3) To improve the lack of awareness and understanding of health 
professionals in terms of their responsibilities and contribution to 
EHCPs; 

(4) To address the weakness of co-production with parents, and more 
generally, in communication with parents; and

(5) To address the weakness of joint commissioning in ensuring that 
there are adequate services to meet local demand. 

The report also highlighted that in March 2019, Members of the Board 
considered a report which detailed the actions that had been completed in 
seeking to address the five areas of weaknesses. These included:

 A quality first offer in schools to ensure early identification;
 That high needs funding was provided through a panel process;
 That all SENCO staff received local authority training;
 That there was a focus on transitions;
 That a DCO had been jointly appointed with Liverpool and was 

utilising the ability to share best practice;
 That an agreement, to align LAC Health Assessments, had 

materialised;
 That the ASD pathway was incorporated into the Commissioning 

Plan; 
 That a multi-agency quality assurance group was established;
 That best practice reviews and outcome training for all staff had 

transpired; 
 That there was a Council agreed approach to co-production 

established, which was used to co-produce the neurodevelopment 
pathway, to establish personal budgets for transport and to explore 
personal health budgets; and 

 That there was Director level engagement with the Parent Carer 
Forum and the Sefton Savvy App, an app which provides 
information and support for anyone under-25 with additional needs, 
was developed. 

The report detailed that Ofsted and the Care Quality Commission (CQC) 
jointly inspected local areas to identify how well they were fulfilling their 
responsibilities for children and young people with special educational 
needs and/or disabilities. The inspections provided an independent 

Page 6

Agenda Item 2



HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD- WEDNESDAY 12TH JUNE, 2019

3

external evaluation of how well a local area carried out their statutory 
duties (under the Children’s and Families Act 2014) in relation to children 
and young people with special educational needs and/or disabilities to 
support their development. The inspection reviewed how a local area 
supported these children and young people. 

The report also detailed that local areas with a WSOA were revisited by 
Ofsted and the CQC around 18 months after the statement had been 
approved fit for purpose. The report highlighted that the purpose of a 
revisit was to determine whether the local area had made sufficient 
progress in addressing the areas of significant weakness detailed within 
the WSOA. The report stated that if any other serious weaknesses were 
identified during the revisit, they would be referenced in the revisit letter. 
The report also highlighted that following the visit, Ofsted and the CQC 
would publish their review contained in a letter. The report stated that the 
review letter was expected to be publicly available on Friday 14 June 
2019. 

The report also highlighted that the local area had begun preparations in 
advance of the revisit outcome. The report stated that, led by the Council 
Chief Executive, Chief Officer of the two local Clinical Commissioning 
Groups, and Health Leaders, a Joint SEND Continuous Improvement 
Board had been established with a remit to:

 Ensure all Children and Young People experienced services 
positively and received the best possible outcomes; 

 Ensure a robust improvement plan was in place and was delivered; 
 Provide an effective system wide oversight; 
 Provide assurance to the Health and Wellbeing Board that children 

and parents were supported in line with the SEND Code of Practice; 
and 

 Provide constructive challenge. 

The report detailed that, if a WSOA was required, it would be submitted to 
the inspectorate by approximately 30 July 2019. The report stated that the 
WSOA would be a joint activity and as the draft was developed it would be 
considered in quality assurance workshops. The WSOA would be reported 
back to the Cabinet Member for Children, Schools and Safeguarding, 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Children’s Services and Safeguarding) 
on a regular basis. 

The report concluded that the Board be asked to note the content of the 
report and await a more comprehensive report at September’s scheduled 
meeting. The report stated that, going forward, the Board be asked to offer 
robust challenge and oversight to the continuous improvement of the local 
area offer to Children, Young People and their families. 

Elected Members suggested that the matter should be reported to both the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Children’s Services and Safeguarding) 
and the Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Adult Social Care and Health). 

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD- WEDNESDAY 12TH JUNE, 2019

4

RESOLVED: That

(1) the contents of the report be noted; 

(2) the establishment of a SEND Continuous Improvement Board be 
approved; 

(3) updates be received from this group;

(4) the Board continue its critical role in the continuous improvement of the 
joint local area SEND Offer to children, young people and their families in 
Sefton; and 

(5) consideration be given to submitting the matter to the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee (Children’s Services and Safeguarding) and the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Adult Social Care and Health).

6. CHILDREN'S PLAN, PRIORITY UPDATE: PRIORITY 1, POSITIVE 
EDUCATIONAL EXPERIENCE 

The Board considered the report of the Head of Education which provided 
an update and presented the progress against Priority 1 of the Children 
and Young People’s Plan, giving each child a positive educational 
experience. 

The report highlighted that the Children and Young Peoples Plan 2015 – 
2020 presented the Council’s vision “We want every Child and Young 
Person to reach their full potential. We want every Child to be healthy, 
happy, safe and secure and to feel loved, valued and respected and to be 
prepared for adulthood”. The report stated that Priority One of achieving 
this vision was to ensure that all children and young people had a positive 
educational experience. 

The report detailed that the Early Years and Primary outcomes for Sefton 
were generally in-line with or exceeding National and Regional 
benchmarks. The report stated that the biggest challenge was the 
secondary outcomes at key stage four (KS4) which were lower than the 
National and Regional benchmarks. 

The report identified that the figures showed a significant geographical 
variation and generally those schools which had a higher level of pupils 
from disadvantaged backgrounds had the lowest outcomes. 

The report stated that the school led improvement system in Sefton was 
relatively new and schools were still developing this way of working, but 
there were lots of positives coming out of the SIG meetings. The report 
highlighted that, across the borough, there were some common themes. 
For example, as well as progress for pupils from disadvantaged 
backgrounds the schools with the lowest performance, tended to have 
high levels of absence. The report stated that the local authority held an 

Page 8

Agenda Item 2



HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD- WEDNESDAY 12TH JUNE, 2019

5

attendance conference, attended by over 70 schools, and would produce 
an attendance toolkit for schools. 

The report also highlighted that school funding continued to be a challenge 
for a number of secondary schools and was undoubtedly a barrier to 
schools being able to invest in self-improvement. The report stated that 
from September 2019, the Ofsted Inspection Framework would change 
and would have more of a focus on curriculum and curriculum design. The 
report identified that a considerable amount of work was going on in 
schools to ensure that they were ready for the change but that this may 
affect inspection outcomes differently. 

RESOLVED: That

(1) the report be noted; and 

(2) the report be presented to the Board annually.

7. CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLES PLAN UPDATE 

The Board considered the report of the Head of Children’s Social Care 
which presented a summary of the current Children and Young People’s 
Plan, the performance against this plan and an overview of the planned 
process to refresh the Children and Young Peoples Plan for 2020 
onwards. 

The report highlighted that the Children and Young People’s Plan was an 
overarching strategy that defined how services would be delivered to 
Children and Young People in Sefton. The current plan was a five-year 
plan which would be in place until April 2020. The report stated that the 
plan had four key priorities these included:

(1) Ensure all Children and Young People have a positive educational 
experience. 

(2) Ensure all Children are supported to have a healthy start in life and a 
healthy adulthood. 

(3) Improving the quality of lives of Young People with additional needs 
and vulnerabilities, to ensure they are safe and fulfil their individual 
potential. 

(4) Ensure positive emotional health and wellbeing of Children and Young 
People is achieved. 

The report stated that in March 2018, a Mid Term Review of the plan was 
presented to the Health and Wellbeing Board. The reviews conclusions 
were:

 That the “Four Key Priorities” should remain;

Page 9

Agenda Item 2



HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD- WEDNESDAY 12TH JUNE, 2019

6

 That some of the objectives should be amended to provide more 
clarity against the outcomes and to address the gaps, changes to 
legislation. Children and Young Peoples Emotional Health and 
Wellbeing in particular;

 That there should be more vigour and focus upon performance and 
how this impacts upon the agreed outcomes; and 

 Whilst there was some good evidence of engagement with young 
people, parents and carers, there should be a greater 
understanding of how they influence change and improvement. 

The report highlighted that a full review of the plan was underway in 
preparation for April 2020, and that as part of the review there would be 
consultation with stakeholders and the review would closely align with the 
Health and Wellbeing Board Strategy and the emerging Early Help 
Strategy. The report stated that the review would also consider the 
outcomes achieved to date and the next steps. 

The report also highlighted that the plan closely aligned with all six of the 
Council’s core purposes and would specifically address the following:

 Sefton’s most vulnerable are protected; and
 Sefton’s Children have the best start in life. 

The report stated that the Health and Wellbeing Strategy and the Joint 
Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) would define the areas of activity. 
The report detailed the following key milestones for the project: 

Milestone Date Measure of Success
Working Group Identified 30 May 2019 Group established and dates 

for meetings arranged.
Draft Strategy to be 

complete
30 June 2019 Draft prepared.

Consultation and 
Engagement takes place

1 July to 30 
September 

2019

Key stakeholders are engaged 
and begin to understand plan 

and their involvement in it. 
Amendments to Strategy 

and Final Draft
30 

September 
2019

Present to Health and 
Wellbeing Board for 

endorsement

4 December 
2019

Sign up at a Strategic level 
across the partnership. 

Launch of Strategy to 
Stakeholders

January to 
March 2020

Plan launched, desired 
outcomes understood and 

partnership understands their 
contribution. 

RESOLVED: That

Page 10

Agenda Item 2



HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD- WEDNESDAY 12TH JUNE, 2019

7

(1) the contents of the paper be noted; and 

(2) it be noted that a revised Plan would be presented to the Board in late-
2019.

8. BETTER CARE FUND UPDATE 

The Board considered the report of the Chief Executive which informed the 
Board on the impact of the Better Care Fund in 2018/19, current review 
activity and the further plan for 2019/20 and beyond. 

The report detailed:- 

 The Outcomes of the Better Care Fund in 2018/19
 The Better Care Fund in 2019/20
 Development Opportunities in 2019/20 
 Governance of the Better Care Fund 

The report concluded that the Better Care Fund had worked well in the 
Sefton area but that there was far greater potential to expand the ability to 
meet the outcomes of the residents of Sefton and there was an appetite to 
do so. The report stated that following a review of the governance, best 
practice and priorities, a new work plan would be produced for the Board 
to consider at its next scheduled meeting in September 2019. 

RESOLVED: 

That the report be noted.

9. REFRESH OF SEFTON'S HEALTH AND WELLBEING 
STRATEGY -PROPOSED CONSULTATION AND ENGAGEMENT 

The Board considered the report of the Director of Public Health which 
briefed the Board on the plans for the consultation and engagement on the 
refresh of the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) and the Sefton 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy. 

The report highlighted that Sefton’s first five-year Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy was created in 2013 and subsequently updated to reflect the 
update of the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) in 2014. The 
report stated that the first Health and Wellbeing Strategy was developed 
following an extensive consultation and engagement process that involved 
local people, stakeholders and partners and resulted in the final strategy 
being informed by the consultation responses. 

As the priorities identified in the refresh of the JSNA in 2014 had changed 
very little, and as there had been a number of large scale consultations 
undertaken in that year, it was considered appropriate to use the views 
already collected to refresh the existing Strategy. The existing Strategy 
was due to end in 2020. The report also stated that a refreshed JSNA was 
published in November 2018 and this had already been presented to the 

Page 11

Agenda Item 2



HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD- WEDNESDAY 12TH JUNE, 2019

8

Health and Wellbeing Board which had agreed to publish a refreshed, five-
year Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy in January 2020. 

The report also highlighted that a sub-group of the Health and Wellbeing 
Board had been convened to oversee the development of the refreshed 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy. The group was chaired by the Director of 
Public Health and the core membership was comprised of officers from 
Public Health, Social Care and Strategic Support and representatives from 
Sefton CCGs, Healthwatch Sefton and Sefton CVS. The report stated that 
the group had developed plans for the consultation and engagement 
process to support the refresh of the Strategy and this had been presented 
to and approved by the Public Engagement and Consultation Panel in 
March 2019. 

The report concluded that the consultation proposals had been approved 
by the Public Engagement and Consultation Panel at its meeting held on 
17 May 2019. The report stated that Members of the Board were 
recommended to note the plans that had been put in place to refresh the 
Sefton Health and Wellbeing Strategy and for the consultation and 
engagement process. 

RESOLVED:

That the plans that have been put in place for the consultation and 
engagement process on the revised JSNA and the Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy be noted. 

10. ADULT FORUM 

The Board received a verbal update from Councillor Cummins, Cabinet 
Member – Adult Social Care, on the Adult Forum. Councillor Cummins 
highlighted the following: 

 Sefton Council’s new Integrated Social Care and Health Manager, 
Eleanor Moulton, was introduced at the Adult Forum. She would be 
involved with the new Health and Wellbeing Strategy, the Joint 
Strategic Needs Assessment and the Market Position Statement. 

 There was a discussion with Senior Managers at Commissioning 
Group, regarding the alignment of the priorities of the 
commissioning team as a corporate resource with a focus on the 
resource priorities. 

 The commissioning team would be working with New Directions to 
link priorities and to develop a wider partner agreement within the 
identified priorities. 

 There was a Transitions Moving on Event on 22 May 2019. 
 Dementia Action Week started on 20 May 2019. A film called 

‘Starting Conversations’ was to be produced. 
 The Health and Social Care Forum met in May 2019. Pre-

engagement about the Health and Wellbeing Strategy was to be 
highlighted. 

Page 12

Agenda Item 2



HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD- WEDNESDAY 12TH JUNE, 2019

9

 The Health and Social Care Forum had a speaker from Public 
Health England who talked about the Liverpool City Region (LCR) 
wider health economy. 

 There was a Welfare Reform and Anti-Poverty (WRAP) event held 
in February with a focus on key themes that would be actioned. 

 Merseyside Safeguarding Adults Board (MSAB) had worked with 
John Moores University and colleagues from across the partnership 
to produce a self-neglect toolkit. 

 Sefton were involved in a termed project from MSAB which was 
looking at the “Voice of the Service User”. This was working with 
individuals who had experienced safeguarding or had loved ones 
who had experience of the process. Individuals were actively 
engaged in sharing their experiences, providing useful feedback in 
designing processes and training and development opportunities. 

 Adult Social Care had started a Professional Practice Forum for 
practitioners across all disciplines to meet and discuss both local 
and national operational developments and barriers in care. 

 The Safeguarding and Care Governance Board was now well 
established with membership from across Adult Social Care. 

 Sefton New Directions had developed a five-year strategy. They 
would be working closely with Sefton Council’s commissioning team 
to redesign services to meet needs and be more involved in local 
communities. 

 Sefton Carers Centre and Sefton Advocacy would be working with 
the CCG’s around personal health budgets. 

 It was the first anniversary of the UK Age Friendly Network. Sefton 
now held the World Health Organisation (WHO) Age Friendly 
Status. 

 The North West Older People’s Champion Network attended a 
meeting held by the Southport Forum. At the meeting, they shared 
examples of good practice and showed films discussing accessible 
information. 

 Sefton Carers Centre were developing a training programme for 
professionals to increase their understanding of carers’ issues, 
alongside Living Well Sefton. 

 SCIE and Sefton had put together training to look at assess based 
assessments and care planning.

RESOLVED: 

That Councillor Cummins be thanked for his verbal update.

Page 13

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to: Health and 
Wellbeing Board

Date of Meeting: Wednesday 11 
September 2019

Subject: Early Help Strategy progress update

Report of: Tanya Wilcock, 
Head of 
Communities 

Wards Affected: (All Wards);

Portfolio:
Communities and Housing

Is this a Key 
Decision:

N Included in 
Forward Plan:

No

Exempt / 
Confidential 
Report:

N/A

Summary:

The paper is to update the Board on the progress made towards the establishment of a 
Sefton Early Help Strategy. The paper also asks the board to note the final version of the 
strategy prior to sign off from the Early Help Strategic Partnership Group. This paper 
follows a previous paper to the Health and Wellbeing board on the 13th March 2019.  

Recommendation(s):

(1) The board is asked to note the final draft strategy that will be presented to the Early 
Help Strategic Partnership Group for sign off on 24 September 2019.

Reasons for the Recommendation(s):

To ensure the board is fully informed of the progress towards finalising the Early Help 
Strategy.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: (including any Risk Implications)

None identified.

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

(A) Revenue Costs

None identified.

(B) Capital Costs

None identified.

Implications of the Proposals: To develop our approach to early intervention and 
prevention and support to parent, carers and young people.

Page 15

Agenda Item 4



Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets):
None identified.

Legal Implications:
There are no legal implications

Equality Implications:
There are no equality implications

Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose:

Protect the most vulnerable:
Through the intervention by the Council and its partners at the most critical moment 
when young people and parents/carers require our support to prevent further reliance 
on public sector in the future.  The delivery of services which are based on the needs of 
the most vulnerable in society.
Facilitate confident and resilient communities:
It is essential that we develop and strengthen approaches to support young people and 
families.
Commission, broker and provide core services:
A range of services are provided to support young people and families.
Place – leadership and influencer:
Leadership is essential and identifying locations to support families in communities is a 
key part of our core purpose.
Drivers of change and reform:
The strategy acknowledges that agencies will be addressing their own distinct needs 
and meeting a range of key performance indicators against a variety of policy drivers 
and aims to provide an umbrella framework of key principles that can be applied across 
all agendas.
Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity:
N/A
Greater income for social investment: 
N/A
Cleaner Greener
N/A

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

(A) Internal Consultations

The Head of Corporate Resources (FD5764/19) and the Chief Legal and Democratic 
Officer (LD4888/19) have been consulted and any comments have been incorporated 
into the report.

(B) External Consultations 

There will be facilitated sessions across the Borough and communications across 
various media channels.

Page 16

Agenda Item 4



Contact Officer: Allan Glennon, Localities Manager 
Telephone Number: 07891 398 420 
Email Address: Allan.Glennon@sefton.gov.uk

Appendices:

Appendix 1: Terms of reference for the Early Help Partnership Group.
Appendix 2: Latest draft of the Early Help Strategy.
Appendix 3: Latest draft of the Early Help Strategy on a page.

1. Introduction

1.1 Following the publication in July 2018, of revised statutory guidance; “Working
Together to Safeguard Children: guidance to inter-agency working’ to safeguard 
and promote the welfare of children” and the clear identified increasing need in 
Sefton, the Council looked to establish an Early Help Strategy.  On the 13th March 
2019, the Board received a paper to present an initial draft of the Early Help 
Strategy and outline the next steps in producing a final version. 

1.2 Subsequent to the Board partners met on 20 March 2019 to discuss the 
composition of the new Early Help Strategy.  The initial draft version was 
presented to the group, chaired by Dwayne Johnson. The outcome of this meeting 
was that the strategy needed further work in the form of a more detailed narrative 
and an accompanying action plan.  Partners provided feedback and based on this 
the strategy was updated.

1.3 The Early Help Partnership Group has now been established and held their first 
meeting on 3 July 2019 chaired by Tanya Wilcock, Head of Communities, Sefton 
Council.  Tanya will continue as Chair. At this meeting, the terms of reference for 
the group were agreed. A copy of the terms of reference can be found in appendix 
one. The partnership group also agreed changes to the Early Help Strategy and 
changes to the strategy on a page at this meeting. A final draft Early Help Strategy 
has now been completed with an accompanying ‘Strategy on a page’. These can 
be viewed at appendix two and three. 

1.4 The final version of the strategy is due to be signed off by the Early Help 
Partnership Group at their next meeting, on the 24th September 2019.

2. Background 

2.1 Early help means taking action to support a child, young person or their family
early on when a problem emerges. It can be required at any stage in a child’s life
from pre-birth through to adulthood and applies to any problem or need that the
family cannot deal with or meet on their own. 

2.2 We have long established the essential need for agencies to work together to 
meet our communities needs and deliver a strategic approach that ensures right 
help, right person, right time. 

Page 17

Agenda Item 4



2.3 The Strategy aims to ensure Sefton is a good place for Children and Young 
People to live and grow up, receive immunisations, have access to a wide range 
of physical activity opportunities and enjoy overall improving health. 

The JSNA (which can be viewed here https://www.sefton.gov.uk/your-
council/plans-policies/business-intelligence,-insight,-performance/joint-strategic-
needs-assessment-(jsna).aspx) highlights areas we need to improve on as 
Obesity rates, Alcohol related Hospital admissions in under 18’s, the rising birth 
rate with non British mothers  (statistically requiring greater support), the higher 
smoking rates in pregnancy and lower than average breast feeding rates. The 
number of looked after children in Sefton is rising and was reported as540 at the 
last count. 

3. Update from Previous Report

3.1 In the previous report an extract from the strategy described the vision, principles 
and partnership commitments required to deliver our Early Help strategy as 
follows; 

Vision - Our ambition is that all children, young people and families in Sefton will 
be safe, healthy and happy, and will aspire to be the best they can be. In Sefton 
we believe that every child should have the opportunity to reach their full potential. 
We believe that children should grow and achieve within their own families and 
communities, when it is in their best interests and it is safe for them to do so. By 
working together, we will develop flexible services which are responsive to 
children and families’ needs.

Principles - The principles we will adopt will be based upon the following:
 A system wide approach, with joint, pooled resources and pathways

operating across organisational boundaries
 An outcome focussed, system wide approach delivering long term

sustainable solutions for individuals and families to secure resilience and
independence

 A shift from acute provision to an increase in prevention and early help
activity

 Evidence based services that are built around customer need
 Locality based delivery

Partnership Commitments - As a partnership, we will:
 Understand those families where children may be at risk of not reaching

their full potential and share concerns
 Build a relationship with the family as early as possible, and work with

them to create a family environment that provides children with the best
life chances and prevent problems from arising or escalating

 Reduce the number of children and their families requiring support from
specialist services.

These have not changed in the current version. 

Page 18

Agenda Item 4

https://www.sefton.gov.uk/your-council/plans-policies/business-intelligence,-insight,-performance/joint-strategic-needs-assessment-(jsna).aspx)
https://www.sefton.gov.uk/your-council/plans-policies/business-intelligence,-insight,-performance/joint-strategic-needs-assessment-(jsna).aspx)
https://www.sefton.gov.uk/your-council/plans-policies/business-intelligence,-insight,-performance/joint-strategic-needs-assessment-(jsna).aspx)


3.2 However the ‘scope’ of the strategy has been added to and reads:

“Effective early help requires a whole family approach and encompasses all 
stakeholders working with children and families.  This includes Health, 
Police, Education, Children’s Social Care, Local Authority Early Help, 
Voluntary and Community organisations and the wider public.

The strategy acknowledges that agencies will be addressing their own 
distinct needs and meeting a range of key performance indicators against a 
variety of policy drivers and aims to provide an umbrella framework of key 
principles that can be applied across all agendas.

Engagement with the strategy by all sectors will require some cultural and 
operational changes but by doing so, and actively working together to 
deliver outcomes, we believe that we will positively change the relationship 
between the community and the public sector in ways which build and 
strengthen community resilience.

We are still at the beginning of this journey and the strategy is aspirational, 
but we are building on solid foundations established through the success of 
existing early intervention work.”

This extract is particularly pertinent as all the agencies listed will need to commit 
to the strategy for it to be successful.  Each service should place as much 
importance on this strategy, and the accompanying action plan, as they would to 
their own internal strategies and policies.  For real change to be achieved the 
vision and principles should become embedded within each organisation and their 
culture.  This is challenging due to every agency having competing priorities, but 
the strategy cannot fully realise lasting improved outcomes without this 
commitment.

3.3 The Strategy will work alongside the Children and Young Peoples Plan and Health 
and Wellbeing Strategy. The Strategy will be effective immediately. 

3.4 Once the Strategy is finalised there will be a Partnership Launch taking place in 
November 2019 . Date to be confirmed.

4. Conclusion. 

The strategy has been through an extensive process of development and co-
production. The Partnership Group are confident of the quality of the document and 
the positive impact it will help to bring about for our Children, Young People and 
Families. 

Page 19

Agenda Item 4



Appendix One – Terms of Reference 

Early Help 
Partnership Group - TOR v0.1.docx

Appendix Two – Early Help Strategy 

Sefton Early Help 
Strategy 2019-2025 v0.7.docx

Appendix Three – Strategy on a Page 

Sefton Early Help 
SOAP v0.8.docx

Page 20

Agenda Item 4



Report to: Health and 
Wellbeing Board

Date of Meeting: Wednesday 11 
September 2019

Subject: Reducing Parental Conflict in Sefton

Report of: Head of 
Communities

Wards Affected: (All Wards);

Portfolio:
Councillor Trish Hardy
Councillor John Joseph Kelly 
Councillor Paul Cummins 

Is this a Key 
Decision:

No Included in 
Forward Plan:

No

Exempt / 
Confidential 
Report:

No

Summary:

The purpose of this report is to provide the Board with information on the national 
initiative to address and reduce parental conflict, led by Department of Work and 
Pensions and to update them on Sefton’s progress. The Project Lead for this in Sefton Is 
Stephanie Critchley, Principal Early Help Worker, supported by Lorraine Webb, Venus 
Charity.

Recommendation(s):

The Health and Wellbeing Board members are asked to receive the report and note the 
contents. 

Reasons for the Recommendation(s):

To acknowledge and endorse the ongoing actions to reduce parental conflict in Sefton.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:

N/A

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

(A) Revenue Costs 
Sefton has been awarded a total grant of £40,100.  £15,000 is from the 
Strategic Leadership Grant to provide support for strategic oversight and 
planning. £25,100 is from the Practitioner Training Grant to support frontline 
identification of parental conflict to help local family support professionals spot 
parents in relationship distress and refer to available services. 

Page 21

Agenda Item 5



(B) Capital Costs 
No direct costs associated with the report.

Implications of the Proposals:

Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets):

Future financial and staffing implications (if any) could potentially lie within existing or 
future Troubled Families/Early Help but with relevant acknowledgement from Social 
Care, Primary Care, Healthy Child Programme and Mental Health. However the current 
work will increase skills and confidence in the workforce, create stronger multi-agency 
partnerships and embed RPC in Sefton’s Strategic Framework therefore adding value to 
current services and creating savings in the future.

There are no IT implications

There are no Assets implications

Legal Implications:
There are no Legal implications

Equality Implications:

There are no equality implications. 

Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose:

Protect the most vulnerable: Positive Impact

Facilitate confident and resilient communities: Positive Impact

Commission, broker and provide core services: Not Applicable

Place – leadership and influencer: Not Applicable

Drivers of change and reform: Not Applicable

Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity: Not Applicable

Greater income for social investment: Not Applicable

Cleaner Greener: Not Applicable

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

Page 22

Agenda Item 5



(A) Internal Consultations

The Head of Corporate Resources has been consulted and any comments have been 
incorporated into the report (5759/19).  The Chief Legal & Democratic Officer has been 
consulted and has no comments on the report (LD 4883/19)

(B) External Consultations 

1. Sent out a link to the EIF questionnaire to the Sefton workforce – this was completed 
by 19 practitioners

2. Held 2 multi-agency workshops – these were attended by 47 practitioners

3. The feedback from 1. & 2. has been incorporated into the planning tool and submitted 
to the National programme in June, the planning tool refresh is to be submitted in 
February 2020

4. Two Community Focus Groups have been delivered and another four are planned  

5. Convened a Steering Group/Working Group to take forward our action plan, second 
meeting in September, 22 attendees

Implementation Date for the Decision

Immediately following the Committee / Council meeting.

Contact Officer: Stephanie Critchley 
Telephone Number:
Email Address:

Appendices:

1. Early Intervention Foundation Briefing for LA’s
2. Early Intervention Foundation Briefing for NHS
3. Presentation from Regional Lead

Background Papers:

Reducing Parental Conflict Briefing Note
Reducing Parental Conflict Application

1.Background

1.1 Conflict between parents can harm children’s outcomes

Conflict between parents is a normal part of relationships. However, there is a large body 
of evidence that shows that parental conflict puts children’s mental health and long-term 
outcomes at risk when it is frequent, intense and poorly resolved. These destructive 

Page 23

Agenda Item 5



conflict behaviours include: Aggression, non-verbal conflict or the “Silent Treatment”, lack 
of respect and emotional control and lack of resolution.

Parental conflict can harm children’s outcomes, regardless of whether parents are 
together or separated, or are biologically related to the child, such as in blended or foster 
families. Exposure to destructive parental conflict is associated with a range of problems 
for children and young people. This can include poorer academic outcomes, negative 
peer relationships, substance misuse, poor future relationship chances, low employability 
and heightened interpersonal violence. It is also associated with mental health difficulties 
such as anxiety and depression, conduct disorder, poor attachment, risk-taking 
behaviours and even suicidality.

1.2 Some families are more vulnerable to parental conflict

Financial difficulties impact on parental mental health, which can increase parent conflict. 
This in turn can impact on parenting and children’s outcomes. Children in workless 
families are up to three times more likely to experience damaging parental conflict, 
according to data from the Department for Work and Pensions. Yet low income families 
who may benefit most from relationship support are less likely to receive it, due to lack of 
service availability, cost or stigma. 

1.3 Parental conflict reduces the effectiveness of family services

Interventions which focus solely on supporting the parent-child relationship such as 
parenting programmes, are unlikely to improve outcomes for children if they take place in 
a context of parental conflict. Evidence suggests that fathers’ parenting may be more 
adversely affected by parental conflict (By withdrawing or becoming hostile) yet fathers 
are less likely to be reached by support services.

The impacts of parental conflict on children and adolescents can place significant 
pressure and economic cost on public services, including health, social care, school 
systems and judicial services. Local government leaders and commissioners have a key 
role in reducing the impact of parental conflict on children by integrating this within the 
wider system of family support for health and wellbeing, working with their partners in the 
NHS, schools, the police and the voluntary sector. 

2. Sefton Reducing Parental Conflict Programme

The programme has been designed, developed and delivered as a multiagency 
approach locally. A range of partners are involved to ensure parental conflict is 
consistently understood and responded to across Sefton.  
A timetable of events has been planned and delivered which included consultation and 
engagement with local agencies and action plan development. Multi agency awareness 
raising workshops and training for frontline professionals will take place in the Autumn. 
This will be shared across partners and strategic leads. Lorraine Webb from Venus, a 
local voluntary sector organisation with knowledge and expertise on working with families 
and parental conflict has been commissioned as part of the strategic element of the grant 
to lead and co produce the project alongside Stephanie Critchley, Principal Early Help 
Worker in Sefton. The following teams/organisations have been identified as crucial to be 

Page 24

Agenda Item 5



part of the RPC Steering Group and we need nominated representatives who have 
management oversight of staff teams and can advise on strategy.

Homestart Schools/DSLs/Nurses
Parenting 2000 Venus
Camhs Sefton CVS
Early Years Access Sefton
Police Health Visiting
Maternity Services Alcohol Services
Relate Social Care
LSCB Public Health

3.  Strategic Partnership Commitment

As parental conflict is a cross thematic issue, it was agreed that the programme would be 
championed and promoted jointly across Sefton’s Health and Wellbeing Board, Sefton’s 
Local Safeguarding Children’s Board and Sefton Safer Communities Partnership. This 
has helped to promote a joint and consistent approach to the programme across Sefton 
and encourage strategic buy in from a wide range of Sefton agencies. The Regional 
Integration Lead for the DWP, Helen Armstrong, is available to attend Board meetings to 
provide an overview of the programme to partners if required. 

4.     Sefton’s Action Plan

This was submitted in June 2019 and will be refreshed in February 2020.

  

What actions are you planning to take in this area 
in the next year? Please enter your top 3 actions in 

the spaces provided.

Date you 
expect to 

complete this 
activity.

Multi Agency Steering Group to be established Jul-19
Parental Conflict will be included in Sefton's Early Help 
Strategy Sep-191.  Strategy
Presentation to be delivered to Sefton's Health & 
Wellbeing Board Sep-19
Look at the impact of interventions from pilots and the 
evidence of what works for families to inform future 
commissioning plans Jan-20
Review commissioned service's delivery to include 
consistent Parental Conflict messages and processes Mar-20

2. 
Commissioning

Produce a map/directory of locality and commissioned 
services available to address Family Relationship 
Conflict across a Continuum of Need Mar-20
Deliver appropriately targeted, cross-sector training in 
conjunction with DWP & Knowledge pool Dec-19
Ensure there is the capacity for consistent opportunities 
for training and skill development across the workforce Mar-20

PL
A

N

3. Workforce
Planning

Strengthen links and support for schools to embed 
parental conflict/healthy relationships into PSCHE 
curriculum Jan-20

LE 4. Partnership Multi Agency Steering Group to be established Jul-19

Page 25

Agenda Item 5



Work with partners to involve parents views of Parental 
Conflict and capture the child's voice to inform PC 
Strategy, Planning and Training Jan-20

Improve engagement with Health Partners particularly 
Maternity and Early Years Services Dec-19
Further develop communication methods across all 
agencies and networks Dec-19
Drive and embed awareness of PC across the whole of 
the Children's Workforce Mar-20

5. Leadership

Report back to Sefton's Partnership Boards and agree a 
future plan Mar-20
Deliver Focus Groups with Parent/Carers to gather 
'expert by experience' perspectives on language and 
what works for them Dec-19
Recognise and replicate current Good Practice in 
Community Ownership and Co-production across work 
with Sefton Families Dec-19

A D

6. Community 
Ownership 

Develop a common use of language around healthy 
relationships that is accessible and non-judgemental Dec-19
Deliver appropriately targeted, cross-sector training in 
conjunction with DWP & Knowledge pool Dec-19
Develop a Pathway of Services & Interventions 
available to address PC in Sefton, including what is 
available, where & when Mar-20

7. Services 
and 

Interventions
Develop a Suite of Tools to support the workforce to 
appropriately and confidently work with Parent/Carers 
around PC Mar-20
Questions and prompts to be included in the Early Help 
Assessment to support staff to gather the information 
and data needed to understand, address and report 
level of need Sep-19
Review Information and Data tools and confirm what will 
be used across the partnership for Parental Conflict Mar-20

D
EL

IV
ER

8. Information 
& Data

Develop a leaflet and tools to use with the community 
and partnership staff to raise awareness locally about 
healthy relationships and support services Mar-20
Identifying an evidence based tool such as Outcomes 
Star or similar to consistently measure and track impact 
so outcomes can be clearly identified Jan-20
Ensure appropriate support/supervision for staff 
engaged with families around Parental Conflict Jan-20

9. Outcomes

Recognise and replicate good practice in engaging with 
Dads and male parent/carers Mar-20
Share evidence repeatedly through training, awareness 
raising and easy read printed literature to gain a shared 
understanding Mar-20
Develop a Toolkit to further enhance the training to be 
delivered and use Promotional Video clips, 
YouTube/digital media appropriately to raise awareness Mar-20

EV
A

LU
A

TE

10. Using &
 Generating 

Evidence

Develop a leaflet and tools to use with the community 
and partnership staff to raise awareness locally Mar-20

Page 26

Agenda Item 5



5. Conclusion 
The Chairs of the Health and Wellbeing Board, LSCB and SSCP are asked to endorse 
this programme, nominate representatives if required for the Steering Group and ensure 
a commitment to the Action Plan.

Page 27

Agenda Item 5



Page 28

Agenda Item 5



Reducing Parental Conflict Programme Briefing Note

1.Background

This is a cross Government national programme with a total of £39 million available until 2021.

The Department of Work and Pensions (DWP) is offering two grants to help local authorities 
firstly strengthen strategic leadership around parental conflict and secondly fund training for 
frontline staff to identify and appropriately respond to parental conflict.

The programme is based on evidence:
 Exposure to frequent, intense and poorly resolved parental conflict can affect children’s 

emotional, social and educational development.

 11% of children (more than one in ten) who live with both parents in the same household 
will have at least one parent who reports relationship distress.

 Children living in workless families are three times more likely to experience parental 
conflict than families where both parents are in work.

2. Programme objectives

Objective 1 - Supply
Ensuring proven interventions are more widely available to improve children’s outcomes

 Face to face interventions for workless families delivered through four regional contracts

 Specialist Parental Conflict Intervention Training for practitioners to increase supply of 
proven help

 User-led digital solution

Objective 2 - Demand
Supporting local areas to embed parental conflict support in wider services for children

 Training & guidance for Front-line workforce to improve identification and effective 
referral to appropriate support 

 Support to embed addressing parental conflict from needs assessment to delivery

 What Works’ function (evidence, dissemination and commissioning toolkit) to ensure that 
local commissioners understand why addressing parental conflict is important and how 
to do it

3. Sefton programme

Sefton has been awarded a total grant of £40,100.  £15,000 is from the Strategic Leadership 
Grant to provide support for strategic oversight and planning. £25,1000 is from the Practitioner 
Training Grant to support frontline identification of parental conflict to help local family support 
professionals spot parents in relationship distress and refer to available services. 

Page 29

Agenda Item 5



The programme is designed to be developed and delivered as a multiagency approach 
locally.   A range of partners should be involved to ensure parental conflict is consistently 
understood and responded to across Sefton.  

A timetable of events is being developed, which will include consultation and engagement 
with local agencies, action plan development, multi agency awareness raising workshops 
and training for frontline professionals. This will be shared across partners and strategic 
leads. 

Venus, a local third sector organisation with knowledge and expertise on working with 
families and parental conflict, will be supporting the delivery of the Sefton programme.  

4. Strategic partnership commitment

As parental conflict is a cross thematic issue, it is proposed that the programme is 
championed and promoted jointly across Sefton’s Health and Wellbeing Board, Sefton’s 
Local Safeguarding Children’s Board and Sefton Safer Communities Partnership.

This will help promote a joint and consistent approach to the programme across Sefton and 
hopefully encourage strategic buy in from a wide range of Sefton agencies. 

A draft letter has been prepared which could be signed by the Chairs of each of these 
Boards. 

If agreed, regular briefings can be provided to each of the Boards to give an update on 
progress. The Regional Integration Lead for the DWP, Helen Armstrong, is also available to 
attend the next round of Board meetings to provide an overview of the programme to 
partners. 

The Chairs of the Health and Wellbeing Board, LSCB and SSCP are asked to consider this 
proposal.

Page 30

Agenda Item 5



1 RPCP Scoping Tool SLS and PT Grants V2 28/11/18

REDUCING PARENTAL CONFLICT PROGRAMME 

STRATEGIC LEADERSHIP SUPPORT & PRACTITIONER TRAINING GRANT APPLICATION & SCOPING TOOL v2

BACKGROUND
DWP is offering two grants to help local authorities firstly strengthen strategic leadership around parental conflict and secondly fund training for 
frontline staff to identify and appropriately respond to parental conflict.

 Strategic Leadership Support (SLS) grant aims to provide support for strategic oversight and planning. Supporting local authorities 
and their partners to build local capacity to reduce parental conflict is a key element of the RPC Programme. 

 Practitioner Training (PT) grant aims to support frontline identification of parental conflict to help local family support professionals 
spot parents  in relationship distress and refer to available services. 

COMPLETING THIS FORM
Please complete this form if you would like to apply for either just the SLS grant or the SLS and PT grants together.  A completed, signed and 
scanned form needs to be emailed to your Regional Integration Lead by the grant application closing date, 1st March 2019.

If you are applying for SLS grant only, please complete sections 1 and 2.  SLS activities funded by this grant will be specific to each local area 
and determined by the need as identified in section 2, up to the value of £15,000.  The commissioning of SLS activities by the local authorities 
using this funding, must adhere to local authority procurement policy irrespective of the size of the spend, and confirmation must be available to 
DWP upon request.

If you are applying for SLS and PT grants, please complete sections 1, 2 and 3. PT grant funding is based on a formula which considers child 
population and level of deprivation in the local authority.  To spend the PT grant, local authorities must purchase training (using a call-off 
contract), which is being designed and delivered by a Crown Commercial Services framework agreement operated by Knowledgepool.  

Knowledgepool is designing a suite of training modules (to be delivered as classroom based and Digital e-Learning) from which local 
authorities, together with their key partners will produce a Training Schedule. 

P
age 31

A
genda Item

 5

https://reducingparentalconflict.eif.org.uk/about/programme.html


2 RPCP Scoping Tool SLS and PT Grants V2 28/11/18

The content of this application will form the basis of separate Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with local authorities: one for SLS and one 
for PT.   The MOU will set out the activities that the funding will enable, the anticipated outputs, monitoring arrangements and the relationships 
with both DWP and Knowledgepool for PT.  

Local authorities have a statutory duty to comply with Managing Public Money and ensure Value for Money.  Both SLS and PT grants will be 
issued under the powers contained in Section 14 of the Education Act meaning that funds will be granted for the purposes specified in this 
application and transposed into the subsequent MOU, and any unused or inappropriately used funds can be recovered by DWP.  Local authorities 
are responsible for ensuring appropriate steps are taken to carry forward funding received but not spent in 2018/2019, to be spent on activities 
set out in this application in 2019/2020. 

As well as informing us of how you will spend the funding, should your grant application be successful, this form is designed to help you reflect 
on how your local area is currently addressing parental conflict using a red/ amber/ green rating (defined below), against the SLS and PT grant 
objectives. When completing sections 2 and 3 it will be useful to consider:  

 what is currently offered in your local area to address the reduction of parental conflict?
 what are the key demographics of potential service users in your local area? 
 what are the gaps in provision in your local area? 

RED Significant gap - no clear evidence of embedded skills/ awareness of parental conflict in this space

AMBER Partial gap – some evidence of embedded skills/ awareness of parental conflict in this space

GREEN No gap – clear evidence of embedded skills/ awareness of parental conflict in this space

The Reducing Parental Conflict Programme is a test and learn project and as such your application may be used as part of the evaluation of the 
project. This may include sharing the information with an external evaluator.

We advise all local authorities to discuss their applications with the respective Regional Integration Lead prior to submission.

P
age 32

A
genda Item

 5

https://reducingparentalconflict.eif.org.uk/about/programme.html


3 RPCP Scoping Tool SLS and PT Grants V2 28/11/18

Section 1 – Overview of Grant Application and Applicant Signatures

Local authority Name and Address Sefton Council, Bootle Town Hall, Oriel Road, Liverpool L20 7AE 

SLS Grant: £15,000Total Funding being applied for from Grant(s)

PT Grant: £ 25,100

Names of neighbouring local authorities you plan to pool your 
SLS grant funding with Not applicable

Names of any neighbouring local authorities you plan to pool 
your PT grant funding with

Not applicable

Local authority Single Point of Contact for SLS and PT Grants (Person with day to day contact with RPCP Regional Integration Leads)

Name: Stephanie Critchley Role in the local authority: Principal Early Help Worker

Signature:

S.Critchley
Date: 09/01/2019

Email: Stephanie.critchley@sefton.gov.uk Contact Number: 0151 282 1405

Local authority Senior Responsible Officer e.g. Head of Service  (Delegated Responsibility)

Name: Jacqueline Finlay Role in the local authority: Localities Service Manager

Signature: Date: 01/01/2019

Email: Jacqueline.finlay@sefton.gov.uk Contact Number: 07967139109

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 5



4 RPCP Scoping Tool SLS and PT Grants V2 28/11/18

Date Scoping Tool is Submitted to DWP: Date Scoping Tool is Approved by DWP:   PLEASE LEAVE BLANK

P
age 34

A
genda Item

 5



5 RPCP Scoping Tool SLS and PT Grants V2 28/11/18

Section 2: Strategic Leadership Support

a) Do all relevant commissioners and key decision 
makers across your partnership 
understand/consider:

RAG 
Rating

Please give a brief summary of current position in this area.

(i) the most up to date evidence about what works to 
address reducing parental conflict

Amber Previously, in Sefton, policy and strategy have mostly focused on Domestic 
abuse. Following publication of documents from government which 
highlighted the importance of focusing of interparental relationships, there 
has been initial work undertaken, piloting the provision of relationship 
counselling in some areas. Outcomes from the pilot have proven successful 
and the service provision is to be rolled out across Sefton this year.

(ii) why addressing parental conflict is important and 
the associated costs/benefits 

Amber Information about cost benefit analysis has been provided by the 
commissioned provider of the relationship counselling, which highlighted the 
benefit of investing in a counselling service. Most services and partners 
across localities in Sefton, for example, Early Help, Social Care, health, 
education and police have a high level of awareness in relation to the 
impact of domestic abuse but less so of the impact of parental conflict below 
the DV threshold. The main focus of work undertaken has been around 
domestic abuse and key areas of safeguarding such as child exploitation 
and sexual abuse.

(iii) the difference between domestic abuse and 
parental conflict 

Red Some key leaders have an understanding of the distinction between 
Domestic Abuse and Parental conflict, and although key documents such as 
“Improving Lives” have been shared across the Local Authority, this 
knowledge and understanding is not evident across the whole authority. 

(iv) how to respond in their particular area to ensure 
the workforce is competent in identifying and 
addressing parental conflict, to positively impact on 
children

Red A limited amount of training and literature around the impact of parental 
conflict has been made available to staff teams in localities. The focus to 
date has been around domestic abuse which is understood by partners and 
incorporated within training delivered. The next step will be to expand this 

P
age 35

A
genda Item

 5



6 RPCP Scoping Tool SLS and PT Grants V2 28/11/18

Section 2: Strategic Leadership Support

a) Do all relevant commissioners and key decision 
makers across your partnership 
understand/consider:

RAG 
Rating

Please give a brief summary of current position in this area.

training offer to include Parental Conflict. Training will be offered to staff and 
partners within localities who are working with families in order to enhance 
their understanding so that they are confident to identify, assess and 
intervene and early as possible.

(v) how to develop a collaborative culture between the 
local authority and partners

Amber Sefton has good partnership arrangements in place across localities with 
health, social care, family wellbeing, leisure, libraries, education, schools, 
police, probation, Community Rehabilitation Group, CVS. These partners 
feed into the Troubled Families Steering Group and Early Help Steering 
Group. Existing partnerships could be capitalised on to disseminate 
information and explore the issues around Parental Conflict.  Partners would 
be invited to multi agency briefings and would be invited onto training 
alongside locality staff teams, gaining a shared understanding of the impact 
of parental conflict and further enhancing the collaboration.

(vi) how to include parental conflict evidence in existing 
local area strategic plans  

Red All localities have local area plans and these are constantly reviewed so 
could be changed to incorporate Parental Conflict, it is also possible to 
amend the Troubled Families Outcomes plan and the existing domestic 
abuse strategy for families and for employees.
There is an opportunity to include parental conflict within the refresh of 
Sefton’s Domestic Abuse Strategy which is due this year. The work included 
in this proposal would form part of an early intervention and prevention offer 
and would link to developing the multi agency response to parental conflict 
where domestic abuse, and particularly coercive control, is identified.

P
age 36

A
genda Item

 5



7 RPCP Scoping Tool SLS and PT Grants V2 28/11/18

Section 2: Strategic Leadership Support

a) Do all relevant commissioners and key decision 
makers across your partnership 
understand/consider:

RAG 
Rating

Please give a brief summary of current position in this area.

(vii) how your services can address parental conflict, as 
part of local area mainstream provision for families 
and children

Red Commissioning arrangements are in place for domestic abuse support for 
victims and children and lately relationship counselling has been 
commissioned across localities. However, knowledge and awareness 
around the impact of parental conflict is not embedded yet and the strategic 
grant will be used to raise awareness. Once managers, partners and staff 
are trained, we anticipate that the provision will be mainstreamed.

(viii) opportunities to design services and pathways 
which address domestic abuse and parental 
conflict

Red Pathways around Domestic Abuse are robust, however these will need to 
be developed further to include Parental Conflict. This will require a multi-
agency approach encompassing key services within localities such as family 
wellbeing centres, health, education, schools and police and the community 
and voluntary sector. 
Sefton recently co-hosted a domestic abuse conference focusing on 
coercive control which included a key note speaker who specialises in 
research on domestic abuse and the impact on families, including the 
impact of parenting by perpetrators where coercive control is a factor.  We 
would like to explore this further within Sefton as a multi agency approach 
within the context of parental conflict.

(ix) There is parental conflict when  commissioning 
services

Red Apart from the relationship counselling service, there is no evidence to 
suggest that Parental Conflict is considered within current commissioning 
arrangements.

(x) how to establish a multi-agency response to 
Parental Conflict

Amber The partnerships are in place in Sefton to establish the project as we 
currently work across a range issues including DA, CSE, CE, Educational 
Attainment. These arrangements, to date, have not included Parental 
Conflict but are well set up to incorporate a focus on this area. The recent 

P
age 37

A
genda Item

 5



8 RPCP Scoping Tool SLS and PT Grants V2 28/11/18

Section 2: Strategic Leadership Support

a) Do all relevant commissioners and key decision 
makers across your partnership 
understand/consider:

RAG 
Rating

Please give a brief summary of current position in this area.

move to a localities model and the introduction of Family Wellbeing Centres 
0-19 is an ideal place to plan a multi agency response to Parental Conflict.

b) How do you anticipate spending the SLS grant to further develop your strategic response to address parental conflict?

We would like to apply for £15,000. 

Fund dedicated time for a member of staff or partner to lead on the RPC agenda over the next twelve months:
 undertake a needs analysis (including consultation with parents and partnership organisations), 
 complete the Planning Tool (with input from a range of services and partners with the potential to support individuals and families in relation to 

RPC)
 organise 3 briefings/seminars with partners, involving an expert presenter.

Anticipated cost of staff/partner support for the period of one year £10000 including on costs
Briefing/seminar costs (venue & speaker) = £5,000

c) What outcomes would you expect to achieve?   Please consider sustainability of outcomes once the grant funding has ended.

 
- Completed Planning Tool, with sign-off from key strategic leaders

P
age 38

A
genda Item

 5



9 RPCP Scoping Tool SLS and PT Grants V2 28/11/18

- Reducing Parental Conflict addressed in a number of key strategies and commissioning specifications that will be reviewed through Local 
Government Reorganisation.

- Reflect parental conflict in new assessment tools (including Early Help Assessment) and enquiry about quality of parental relationship and 
communication becomes standard enquiry

- Needs analysis completed.
- Partner agencies inspired to sign up to practitioner training, and reducing parental conflict is reflected in their workforce development plans.
- Parents discuss family relationships and are willing to access support to reduce conflict.
- Senior leaders have a good understanding of the significance of distinguishing between domestic abuse and parental conflict; of how conflict 

between parents impacts on children and of how intervening robustly at the earliest opportunity can achieve significant cost benefits.
- Parental conflict to be mainstreamed and be included in the Early Intervention and Prevention agenda with the localities service offer.

Section 3: Practitioner Training 

a) How confident are you that

RAG 
Rating

Please give a brief summary of current position in this area.

P
age 39

A
genda Item

 5



10 RPCP Scoping Tool SLS and PT Grants V2 28/11/18

Section 3: Practitioner Training 

a) How confident are you that

RAG 
Rating

Please give a brief summary of current position in this area.

(i) the workforce across your partnerships is 
able to identify parental conflict and has the 
required knowledge and expertise to 
support parents in this area

Red It is likely that only a minority of staff across partnerships enquire about quality of 
parental relationship as matter of routine enquiry. Some experienced staff within 
children social care and early help services are completing work in this area 
however, it is unclear if they would be able to identify and acknowledge that this is 
specifically work around Parental Conflict. Wider workforce across partnership will 
be dealing with children who displaying behaviour that is a consequence of parental 
conflict, however may lack the skills and knowledge to address the impact of 
behaviours with parents/ carers. This may be particularly relevant to the Early Help, 
Social Care, health, mental health, education and school workforce.
 

(ii) the workforce across your partnerships 
have access to appropriate training in the 
context of Reducing Parental Conflict

Red Some locally delivered training has been available to a small number of 
practitioners as well as some literature about reducing parental conflict, however, 
this is not planned at a strategic or consistent level.

(iii) a range of front line practitioners from 
different agencies will attend and engage in 
training on Reducing Parental Conflict

Amber Training will be offered to all partners across localities including family wellbeing 
centres, young carers, leisure, libraries, early help services, social care, health, 
police, education and school settings as well as the community and voluntary 
sector. Discussions with leaders in these organisations will take place to ensure 
maximise attendance.

P
age 40

A
genda Item

 5



11 RPCP Scoping Tool SLS and PT Grants V2 28/11/18

b) How do you anticipate spending your training grant? 

We would like to apply for the full £20,100 available 

Across the authority we expect to train 20 professionals to be trainers, from organisations including the local authority Early Help, Children’s Social 
Care, Housing, ASB, as well as health, police, schools, Early Years Settings, CAFCASS, JCP (TFEAs), YOS, Probation, drug & alcohol services, 
domestic abuse services, child and adolescent mental health services (CAMHS) and adult mental health services.

X40 people trained in all 4 modules face to face over 2 days = £6,594.92
x20 train the trainer sessions = £3,297.46
x60 people with ½ day delivery =£3,388.23
x100 people with 1 day delivery of 2 modules = £8243.65
x 99 e-learning licences (all 4 modules) = £3564

Total spend = £25,088.26

c) What outcomes would you expect to achieve?  Provide an indication of how many staff you anticipate will access each 
element of the Practitioner training? Please also consider sustainability of outcomes once the grant funding has ended. 

The indicative training as listed above would mean a more confident and resourced workforce with sustainability achievable through train the trainer 
element. Staff will understand the evidence base and feel more confident into addressing relationship distress in their work. They will have the ability to 
identify RPC and this will be embedded in their day to day work, through tools and practices.

We would expect to see evidence of this impact reflected on a number of ways this would include
- Parental Conflict and relationship quality included in C&F and Early Help assessments, action plans, interventions, case notes, closure records.

P
age 41

A
genda Item

 5



12 RPCP Scoping Tool SLS and PT Grants V2 28/11/18

- Discussion of Parental Conflict recorded in supervision notes
- Work around Parental Conflict evidence in case audits
- Parental Conflict identified within referrals 
- Discussions around Parental conflict incorporated across services and referrals to appropriate support being made by these services
- Parental Conflict will be embedded into the Locality model and the 0-19 service offer.

Please ensure the appropriate persons sign this form before scanning and emailing it to your Regional Integration Lead by the grant 
application closing date, 1st March 2019; the sooner we receive your forms the sooner funding can be transferred for you.

P
age 42

A
genda Item

 5

https://reducingparentalconflict.eif.org.uk/about/programme.html


Health and Wellbeing Board, 11th September 2019. 

Covering Note. 

02/09/19

Re:  Health Watch Annual Report 2018/2019 

Please accept the final version of the Health Watch Annual Report 2018/19 for the Boards 
information. Maureen Kelly, Chair of Health Watch Sefton will provide a short presentation at the 
Board’s meeting on September the 111th to highlight the most pertinent points.  

Kind Regards,

Eleanor Moulton, Integrated Social Care and Health Manager, Sefton MBC.

Page 43

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



Annual Report 2018-19 

A review of our work 

Page 45

Agenda Item 6



2 Healthwatch Sefton 

Contents 

Message from our Chair    3 

About us      4 

Highlights from our year    6 

How we’ve made a difference   8 

Helping you find the answers  25 

Our volunteers    29 

Our finances     32 

Our plans for next year   34 

Thank you     36  

Contact us     38 

 

Page 46

Agenda Item 6



3 Healthwatch Sefton 

Message from 
our Chair 

It has been a significant year for 
Healthwatch Sefton as we have 
taken on a further service as well 
as carrying out substantial public 
engagement which means we are 
making a difference. 
 
The Independent Complaints Advocacy service 
launched in April 2018 and this means Sefton 
residents now have access to advice and 
support to navigate the process of making a 
complaint about their NHS treatment or care. 
  
Our Engagement team, Wendy and Betty, have 
done a lot of partnership work with both NHS 
Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) in Sefton. 
 
They have supported the CCGs Urgent Care 
review and are helping to develop Patient 
Participation Groups (PPGs) in the borough’s GP 
surgeries - and all with the aim of giving the 
public a ‘say’ in how local services are 
commissioned and run. 
  
As you will read in this report, outreach 
engagement has been ongoing in a variety of 
settings throughout Sefton but I would like to 
draw attention to a specific piece of work to 
find out local peoples experiences of getting to 
see their GP. 
 
Surveys were completed with patients from 
practices in Bootle and a series of Enter & View 
visits were made to GP practices in central 
Southport. 
 
Patient experiences were fed back to the 
commissioners and providers of those services 
and changes have and are still being made to 
 

improve access to those services as a result of 
the information received. 
  
Our work plan reflects concerns and queries 
raised by the people of Sefton and our role is to 
give the public a voice about health and social 
care services available to them in Sefton. 
  
I would like to thank staff and volunteers of 
Healthwatch Sefton (HWS) for all their 
dedicated work throughout the year to ensure 
the voices of the people of Sefton are heard! 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
Maureen Kelly 
Healthwatch Sefton Chair 

Page 47

Agenda Item 6



4 Healthwatch Sefton 

Who we are 

We are the independent champion for people using local health and social 

care services. We listen to what people like about services and what could 

be improved. We share their views with those with the power to make 

change happen. People can also speak to us to find information about 

health and social care services available locally.  

  

Our sole purpose is to help make care better for people. 

 

 
As Chair of Healthwatch England, it’s my role to make 

sure your Healthwatch gets effective support and that 

national decisions are informed by what people are saying 

all over England. 

  

If you were one of the 400,000 people who shared their 

experiences with us last year, I want to say a personal 

thank you. Without your views, Healthwatch wouldn’t be 

able to make a difference to health and social care 

services, both in your area and at a national level. One 

example of this is how we shared 85,000 views with the 

NHS, to highlight what matters most, and help shape its 

plans for the next decade. 

  

If you’re part of an organisation that’s worked with, 

supported or responded to Healthwatch Sefton, thank you 

too. You’ve helped to make an even bigger difference. 

  

None of this could have been possible without our 

dedicated staff and volunteers, who work in the 

community every day to understand what is working and 

what could be better when it comes to people’s health 

and care. 

 

If you’ve shared your views with us then please keep doing 

what you’re doing. If you haven’t, then this is your chance 

to step forward and help us make care better for your 

community. We all have a stake in our NHS and social care 

services: we can all really make a difference in this way. 

Healthwatch is here to make care better 

Sir Robert Francis QC 

Healthwatch England Chair 

Page 48

Agenda Item 6



5 Healthwatch Sefton 

Our purpose 
 

People’s views come first – especially 

those that find it hardest to be heard. 

We champion what matters to you and 

work with others to find solutions. We 

are independent and committed to 

making the biggest difference to you.  

Visiting services to see how they work. 

Conducting surveys and focus groups. 

Going out in the community and working 

with other organisations. 

 

Our main job is to raise people’s concerns 

with health and care decision-makers so 

that they can improve support across the 

borough. The evidence we gather also helps 

us recommend how policy and practice can 

change for the better. 

 

 

We play an important role bringing communities and services together. 

Everything we do is shaped by what people tell us. Our staff and 

volunteers identify what matters most to people by: 

Our approach 
 

You need services that work for you, your friends and family. That’s why we use 

your experiences of using health and care – both good and bad - to encourage those 

who run and commission services to act on what matters to you.  

Who we are 
 

We are a company limited by 

guarantee and a subsidiary company  

of Sefton Council for Voluntary Service 

(CVS). We have a small team of staff 

who support us and a large team of 

volunteers.  

People are at the heart of everything we do 

Page 49

Agenda Item 6



6 Healthwatch Sefton 

our year 

Highlights from 

Page 50

Agenda Item 6



Find out about our resources and the way we have engaged and 

supported more people in 2018-19. Our resources: 

7 Healthwatch Sefton 

1311 people shared their health and  

social care story with us by leaving feedback  

on our Feedback Centre 

33 local people gave up their time  

to volunteer with us and support our work 

Through our signposting service, we have 

helped 496 people find the support and 

information they need 

We completed 17 reports which included  

Enter & View visits, hospital listening events 

and feedback reports on GP access 

4 newsletters published which reached  

278 stakeholders, 453 members with email plus 

those via engagement and social media 

We gained 109 new followers on Twitter and 

shared 122 posts with 231 people 

 who like our facebook page 

Page 51

Agenda Item 6



8 Healthwatch Sefton 

a difference 

How we’ve made 

Page 52

Agenda Item 6



9 Healthwatch Sefton 

During this reporting period Healthwatch 

Sefton has carried out various listening and 

feedback events as well as Enter & View visits 

and engagement days with the aim of hearing 

what people have to say about the health and 

care services they use. 

  

Listening to people 

Jonathan Desmond with Maurice Byrne, HWS 

Locality Representative for Maghull 

Making life easier for those 

who are disabled 
Disabled and older people in Maghull told us  

of the difficulty they faced getting in and out of 

their local health centre, so we took up this 

issue and now they are enjoying easy access 

thanks to automatic doors being fitted. 

 

At a number of Enter & View visits to Maghull 

Health Centre, disability access was mentioned 

as a problem. One person told us: “Having 

recently become disabled I have found the 

difficulty in accessing Maghull Health Centre an 

added distress to my situation.” 

 

We highlighted this with Mersey Care NHS 

Foundation Trust, which provides services at the 

centre. Even though the Trust tried to remedy 

the situation by installing an electronic 

intercom outside, disabled and older patients 

were still struggling to navigate the heavy 

double doors. 

 

Our continued dialogue with various NHS 

agencies over solutions to the situation resulted 

in four double sets of automatic doors being 

fitted at the centre in January 2019. Local 

resident and Healthwatch Sefton member, 

Jonathan Desmond, who is also a wheelchair 

user, said: “The automatic doors are great and 

mean it is easier to use the centre.” 

 

We also campaigned for equal access to another 

Mersey Care health clinic. After working in 

partnership with social housing provider One 

Vision Housing in September, we were told by 

tenants of the difficulty accessing Prince Street 

clinic in Waterloo. Wendy Andersen, our 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Engagement Manager, says: “We were told the 

clinic was inaccessible to someone attending in 

a wheelchair and an escort had to be arranged 

by the patient to access community services. 

They felt this took away their independence.” 

  

After checking on clinic access, we contacted 

Mersey Care to highlight the difficulty people 

were having, not only opening the double set of 

doors but stepping up from the pavement to the 

entrance. This was causing problems for 

disabled patients, parents with buggies, as well 

as older people with limited mobility. 

 

Initially, we were told that any immediate 

actions to assist patients and visitors, e.g. a 

buzzer, would be looked into before 

improvement work began in the new year. But a 

further site visit showed that had not happened. 

 

OUTCOME - We escalated the issue to the 

Equality and Diversity Service of Merseyside 

CCGs due to a lack of response from Mersey 

Care and we have since been informed the 

refurbishment works, which began in March 

2019, will include automatic doors and 

accessible toilets. 

 

 

 

Page 53

Agenda Item 6



10 Healthwatch Sefton 

Copy to go in here about what young 

Healthwatch has done between April 18 

and March 19. 

We’re making a difference to 

families of children with 

special educational needs 
 
At the Southport and Formby Community 

Champion Network meeting in May 2018, 

members shared their current concerns around 

special educational needs (SEN) after first 

raising it with us in October 2017. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

“Parents of children and young people with SEN 

have been reaching out to Healthwatch Sefton 

for support in dealing with many of the 

challenges they are facing,” says Betty Boner, 

Engagement Officer. 

 

To ensure the voices of families were heard by 

commissioners on this complex situation, we 

invited Peter Wong, Children, Young People and 

Maternity Commissioning Lead for both of 

Sefton’s NHS Clinical Commissioning groups, to 

the September meeting. 

 

Two Alder Hey NHS Foundation Trust 

representatives also listened to parents 

concerns, which centred on parents of newly-

diagnosed young people not being signposted to 

the correct services, as well as assessment 

waiting times. 

 

A report is now being compiled to be shared 

with parent carer groups to ensure all concerns 

have been recorded. The report will then be 

forwarded to Sefton Council and the CCG for a 

response. 

  

Betty adds: “It has been quite heart breaking to 

hear their issues and I hope we receive a 

positive response to our forthcoming report.” 

 

 

 

 

Peter Wong (centre) next to Betty at the joint 

Community Champion Network meeting in 

September 2018 

I just wanted to thank you for all your hard 

work and support from Healthwatch. The 

forum has appreciated the commitment to our 

young people and families. 

 

Building links with Healthwatch is really 

starting to make a difference. I wanted to let 

you know that the issues we collated and 

shared with you are still ongoing. 

 

I’m hoping that with input from Healthwatch 

things might take a turn for the better 

                                            - Helen Hopkin, 

                            Sefton Parent Carer Forum 

Members of Young Healthwatch planned, 

developed and produced their own logo so 

it had its own identity. The team consulted 

Healthwatch Sefton Communications Sub 

Group on which logo was preferred and, 

after asking local young people, the final 

logo (above) was then used to set up 

social media accounts. 

 

Young Healthwatch has also been 

embarking on recruiting new members to 

be Young Ambassadors. They have given 

presentations to high schools and colleges 

which resulted in a lot of young people 

expressing interest in joining.   Page 54

Agenda Item 6



11 Healthwatch Sefton 

Everyone’s voice counts 
 

Our engagement team has good links with a 

number of local hospital trusts and regularly 

arrange stands to talk with patients, visitors 

and staff about their experiences. Some of 

these patients and visitors have come from 

outside of Sefton. 

 

In some instances, they can travel from as far 

afield as the Isle of Man, South of England or 

Manchester because the level of care provided 

at The Walton Centre, for instance, is what 

they require because their needs are so 

complex and specialist. 

 

In this reporting year, we have had 40 outreach 

engagement stands and listened to what people 

had to say about the services they accessed. 

 

We have been at: 

Walton Centre NHS Foundation Trust including 

the Sid Watkins site 

Aintree University Hospital NHS Foundation 

Trust including the Elective Care site 

Southport and Ormskirk Hospital NHS Trust at 

the Southport and Formby District General 

Hospital 

  

Healthwatch Sefton has also followed where 

our Sefton patients go to access the health 

services they need and, in this reporting year, 

our engagement team has expanded the area 

from where we gather feedback. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

We have listened to people at: 

Liverpool Heart and Chest Hospital NHS 

Foundation Trust 

Southport and Ormskirk Hospital NHS Trust at 

the Ormskirk District General Hospital  

 

Reports from all these engagement 

opportunities have been presented to the 

Trusts.  

 

Recommendations within the reports have 

included: 

Improving communications with patients 

Improving car parking on site (Aintree and 

Southport) 

Anne Major, HWS Locality Representative for 

Central Southport ready to collect feedback 

Outcomes 

Southport and Formby District General 

Hospital is reviewing car park spaces and 

letters sent out to patients clearly outline 

clinic locations on site. 

 

Healthwatch Sefton has set up a proactive 

system with the Patient Advice and 

Complaints Team (PACT) at Aintree and 

when engaging with patients, their 

families and visitors, if issues are shared 

which can be resolved by PACT, we 

signpost the person to the team. 

2037 people engaged via 97 

different engagement or activities 

at local hospitals, supported living 

accommodation, supermarkets and 

community groups 

Page 55

Agenda Item 6



12 Healthwatch Sefton 

Dignity and dementia 
 
The dignity of residents in Sefton’s care homes, 

especially those living with dementia, are now 

a priority after people shared their experiences 

with us. We have been working in close 

partnership for some time with the Sefton 

Dementia Provider Forum to gather feedback on 

care home residents using dental and 

continence services in the borough. 

 

Concerns were raised with us by care home 

managers and representatives regarding the 

continence service provided by Lancashire Care 

NHS Foundation Trust and a lack of access to 

dental services. 

 

Continence Service issues 

Waiting times to access the service. 

The ordering process. 

Patient assessments. 

Product quantity per patient. 

Quality of product. 

 

Dental Service issues 

No provision for home visits to house-bound 

residents. 

Difficulty accessing dental services for residents 

living with dementia. 

Un-registered residents struggling to find an 

NHS dentist with which to register. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

“We had also gathered views from individual 

members living independently in Sefton raising 

similar issues. 

 

“So, from this feedback, we decided to carry 

out wider surveys to see what worked well and 

what improvements could be made,” explains 

Wendy Andersen, Healthwatch Sefton 

Engagement Manager. 

 

Two on-line surveys were conducted gathering 

feedback from care home representatives and 

the results were included in two separate 

reports sent to stakeholders including the 

providers and commissioners of the services. 

 

Continence Service recommendations 

Wendy highlights: “Care home representatives 

felt residents did not receive enough 

continence products to meet their individual 

needs and two thirds felt residents experience 

a lack of dignity and respect in relation to 

receiving continence products.” 

 

 

 

 

 

Healthwatch Sefton has led positive changes 

to health and social care services. In this 

section, we show that when people speak up 

about what’s important, and services listen, 

care is improved for all.  

  

Improving Health and Social Care 

The Dementia Provider Forum 

- chaired and co-ordinated by 

Sefton Council’s Commissioning Support 

Team - is attended by residential, 

nursing and domiciliary care providers 

plus representatives from health and 

safeguarding teams. Guest speakers 

regularly attend the quarterly forums. 

We have been told to restrict resident’s 

drinks by the continence service 

- care home staff 

 

Page 56

Agenda Item 6



13 Healthwatch Sefton 

Recommendation 

Review the continence service to specifically 

improve the following: 

Communications with care homes. 

Patient assessments. 

Engage with the Dementia Provider Forum for 

regular opportunities to hear direct feedback. 

  
Actions 

Lancashire Care NHS Foundation Trust moved to 

a new provider of continence products 

following the report in 2018. 

 

Donna Lynch, Deputy Head of Operations, said: 

“We apologise that respondents felt residents 

experienced a lack of dignity and respect in 

relation to receiving continence products and 

we will continue to work with care homes and 

other users of our services to ensure that we 

provide a timely, responsive, patient-centre 

service. 

 

“We are grateful for the feedback provided by 

Healthwatch and this will enable us to focus 

aspects of our transformation plans to address – 

assessment tools used in care homes; delivery 

cycles; accessing and contacting the service; 

provide training and support to care homes; 

building closer relationships with third sector 

providers and advocacy groups.” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Dental service recommendations 

NHS England to: 

Share information on current dementia-

friendly dental practices and any future plans 

for these in Sefton. 

Share protocol for home visits and details of 

NHS dentists located in Sefton with accessible 

facilities including disability hoists. 

 

Actions 

NHS England conducted its own data-mapping 

exercise to find out if dental practices had 

disability access, hoists and were dementia 

friendly. 

 

It said: “Both NHS England and Public Health 

England would welcome the opportunity to 

engage with Healthwatch Sefton and the 

Dementia Provider Forum to advise and support 

where required the improvements and 

recommendations highlighted in the report.” 

 

The issues Healthwatch Sefton raised around 

dental provision for those in care homes was 

also picked up by the local Care Quality 

Commission inspector.  

 

Dental care and mouth care are very 

important – not just as part of dignified care, 

but to reduce the risk of dental and mouth 

pain and infection, including chest infection, 

and to enable people to maintain as wide-

ranging a diet as possible. It is good that 

Healthwatch has given prominence to this 

important issue 

            - Helen Armitage, 

                Consultant in Public Health,  

                                             Sefton Council 

 

CQC will publish a report in June 2019 

following visits to 100 care homes for adults. 

This follows concerns expressed by a number 

of key stakeholders, including Healthwatch. 

This area of work concentrates on how the 

primary care system fails to work together to 

deliver accessible care for this vulnerable 

group of people                

                           - Donna Plested, Inspector,  

                     Care Quality Commission (CQC) Page 57

Agenda Item 6



Have your say 
 

Share your ideas and experiences and help 

services hear what works, what doesn’t, and 

what you want from care in the future. 

www.healthwatchlocal.co.uk 

t: 03000 683 000 

e: enquiries@healthwatchlocal.co.uk 

 

14 Healthwatch Sefton 

Insert quote 

Our Enter & View representatives conducted a variety of visits to see 

how health and care services are being run while engagement days 

captured the experiences of those who use services at the point of 

delivery. On the next few pages, read how recommendations made in 

our reports and the actions that followed have helped improve services. 

  

Maghull Health Centre 
Blood tests and podiatry appointments at a 

time that suits patients, who are also enjoying 

a better patient experience at Maghull Health 

Centre, are thanks to the recommendations 

made by Healthwatch Sefton following our 

series of Enter & View visits. 

 

We worked in partnership with the service 

providers and the visits and follow-up 

engagement resulted in large pieces of work due 

to the nature of feedback from the people with 

whom we spoke. It was clear patients, carers, 

visitors and staff had concerns around: 

phlebotomy, podiatry, and the centre itself but 

there was also positive feedback too. 

 

A full review of both services has now been 

undertaken by providers to benefit patients and 

staff within the clinics.  

 

On the next few pages is a summary of what 

happened in each service area, using the 

criteria of You Said, We Listened, They Act. 

 

Phlebotomy 

People told us they felt having only one nurse 

at the phlebotomy clinic on a Thursday resulted 

in much longer waiting times, they didn’t know 

how to book appointments, and that GP 

surgeries had different referral systems into the 

phlebotomy services. 

 

We listened 

Our report to provider Mersey Care NHS 

Foundation Trust recommended the following: 

The Trust to look at improving communications 

to GP surgeries on how to refer into phlebotomy 

drop-in service and also to patients on how to 

book appointments. 

The Trust to advise Healthwatch on the 

possibility of increasing staffing levels for the 

phlebotomy service. 

I thought I had made an appointment for a 

blood test but when I got here I had to get a 

ticket, then I had to wait an hour to be seen 

                  - patient for phlebotomy clinic Page 58

Agenda Item 6



Have your say 
 

Share your ideas and experiences and help 

services hear what works, what doesn’t, and 

what you want from care in the future. 

www.healthwatchlocal.co.uk 

t: 03000 683 000 

e: enquiries@healthwatchlocal.co.uk 

 

15 Healthwatch Sefton 

Caption goes here 

The Trust to adapt the phlebotomy service to 

include early morning appointments to 

accommodate working age people. 

Keep Healthwatch informed of additional 

reception staff recruited.  

 

The Trust did  

Used patient feedback as part of its service 

review. 

Recruited two new admin staff. 

Worked with North West Boroughs Healthcare 

NHS Foundation Trust (sub contracted to 

provide phlebotomy services in south Sefton) to 

improve patient and GP communications. 

 

As a result of the report North West Boroughs 

(NWBH) invited Healthwatch to conduct a 

further series of Listening Events during 

November 2018 to understand what people 

thought of the pilot phlebotomy drop-in clinic. 

 

You said 

Overall, patients and visitors told us they were 

happy with the drop-in clinic but feedback also 

highlighted patient concern over clinic capacity 

leading to a congested waiting area and the 

knock-on effect this had on waiting time. 

 

We listened 

Our pilot clinic report recommended the 

following actions: 

Provide a drop-in phlebotomy clinic at other 

south Sefton community service centres. 

Consider introducing a system for working 

people/fasting blood appointments early 

mornings. 

Redecorate/paint the waiting area. 

 

They did 

“A joint options appraisal has been developed 

by Mersey Care and NWBH to consider the 

suitability and feasibility of rolling out drop ins. 

This will be presented to the south Sefton 

Transformation Steering Group that is chaired 

by Mersey Care NHS FT, for decision in June 

2019. 

  

“In recognition of the feedback included in the 

review, NWBH is working with Mersey Care to 

consider extended opening hours at some 

clinics, i.e. to have a clinic open from 7am and 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

between 4.00-7.00 pm to accommodate working 

people and provide increased choice and 

flexibility,” John Heritage, Chief Operating 

Officer, North West Boroughs. 

 

A feasibility study for this will also be discussed 

at the Transformation group in June 2019. 

 

A schedule of works will be shared with 

Healthwatch once both Trusts have obtained 

redecoration quotes with an action date set of 

December 2019. 

 

 

 

 It is apparent from your report that the 

drop-in pilot at Maghull has been a success 

and there is an appetite for this provision to 

be rolled out across south Sefton. Plans are 

in the process of being drafted to explore 

the capacity within the teams to extend the 

offer at Maghull to five days a week. 

  

“The teams from both trusts are working 

with colleagues in south Sefton CCG to 

progress this work as part of our 

transforming programme to make sure the 

system provides more flexibility and 

increased patient choice. 

                - Joe Rafferty, Chief Executive, 

            Mersey Care NHS Foundation Trust Page 59

Agenda Item 6



Have your say 
 

Share your ideas and experiences and help 

services hear what works, what doesn’t, and 

what you want from care in the future. 

www.healthwatchlocal.co.uk 

t: 03000 683 000 

e: enquiries@healthwatchlocal.co.uk 

 

16 Healthwatch Sefton 

The feedback also identifies the difficulties 

our patients are having with regards to 

booking routine podiatry appointments. 

 

As a provider we have considered offering 

routine appointments for patients who 

attend routine nail care clinics. We would 

like to work with Healthwatch to continue 

to develop increased access for our patients. 

             - Judith Malkin, Associate Director,  

 south Sefton Community Services Division, 

              Mersey Care NHS Foundation Trust 

Podiatry 

Patients also told us of the difficulty booking 

into the podiatry service which they thought 

was excellent. 

 

You said 

“I have been trying to book my chiropody 

appointment since before Christmas. I have 

called in about five times and every time the 

book is full. I am fed up trying to call on the 

phone to get through.” 

  

Patients reported difficulties in getting through 

on the phone to Maghull Health Centre and 

confusion with the answer service. 

  

We listened 

Generally the feedback we received about the 

podiatry service delivered by Mersey Care was 

positive with people specifically mentioning the 

caring staff. However, people did tell us they 

would prefer to re-book their appointment as 

they left the clinic.  

  

Recommendations 

Improve patient communications around 

booking podiatry appointments.  

Trust to advise if patients will be able to book 

appointments when leaving clinic.  

 

 

 

 

 

Engagement Manager, Wendy Andersen, 

explains: “We included a further 

recommendation to recruit additional 

podiatrists because people said there were too 

many patients and not enough podiatrists. 

 

“However, from our report the commissioners 

identified there wasn’t a need for additional 

staff because patients with low-level podiatry 

needs, such as nail cutting, were being treated 

when the service was not commissioned to offer 

that type of treatment. 

 

“This is now an on-going piece of work between 

Healthwatch, commissioners and providers. 

They are also looking to align and standardise 

the podiatry service across Sefton.”  

 

 

 

 

People told us they preferred to book appointments at reception 

Page 60

Agenda Item 6



Have your say 
 

Share your ideas and experiences and help 

services hear what works, what doesn’t, and 

what you want from care in the future. 

www.healthwatchlocal.co.uk 

t: 03000 683 000 

e: enquiries@healthwatchlocal.co.uk 

 

17 Healthwatch Sefton 

Healthwatch Sefton at community group Sefton OPERA with their members completing the survey 

Getting to see your GP 
Getting to see a GP, and one that people have 

seen before, were among the main concerns we 

heard during our investigation into GP access in 

Bootle and central Southport. 

 

“Phoning is worthless as they are engaged 

constantly from 8am and, if you are fortunate 

enough to get through, you are ‘triaged’ by a 

receptionist. The only way is to queue outside 

before 8am and hope, by the time you reach 

the counter, all appointments are not taken.” 

  

Between September and November 2018, we 

collected the views of more than 226 patients 

who told us that booking GP appointments was 

problematic, as was ensuring continuity of care 

for those with long-term conditions. 

 

A questionnaire was designed which was 

approved by both of Sefton’s NHS Clinical 

Commissioning Groups along with NHS England 

and this was used for our investigation. 

In central Southport our authorised Enter and 

View representatives visited: Christiana Hartley 

Medical Practice, Kew Surgery and Cumberland 

 

 

 

 

 

 

House Surgery, St Marks Medical Centre and 

Trinity Practice while, in Bootle, we held 

engagement days at outreach venues such as 

Asda, community groups plus news and social 

media to promote on-line engagement. 

 

We heard from patients at the following Bootle 

GP practices: Bootle Village Surgery; Concept 

House Surgery; Moore Street Medical Centre; 

North Park Health Centre; Park Street Surgery; 

Strand Medical Centre and Sefton Road Surgery. 

 

Our recommendations related to all 10 of the 

GP practices within the survey and included: 

Sharing good practice 

Improving patient communications 

Promoting on-line appointments more clearly 

Encouraging involvement with the practice’s 

Patient Participation Group (PPG) if not already 

doing so 

Ensuring continuity of care for patients with 

long-term conditions 

 

Moving forward Healthwatch Sefton would like 

to work with and support the GP practices and 

CCGs to ensure we are listening to and giving 

local residents a ‘say in the primary care 

services’ they receive. 

 

OUTCOME: results from the Bootle GP practice 

surveys were fed into the CCGs Urgent Care 

Review. 

 

Reception staff think they are nurses, the 

nurses think they are doctors, and the 

doctors are great. 

              - patient at a Bootle GP practice 
Page 61

Agenda Item 6



Have your say 
 

Share your ideas and experiences and help 

services hear what works, what doesn’t, and 

what you want from care in the future. 

www.healthwatchlocal.co.uk 

t: 03000 683 000 

e: enquiries@healthwatchlocal.co.uk 

 

18 Healthwatch Sefton 

Wendy with The Walton Centre report 

 

 

Following our pre-arranged visits care home 

residents are now finding it easier to navigate 

the home and visitors are benefiting from 

improved access. 

 

Maryland Care Home 

Our authorised representatives carried out an 

announced visit to the Formby care home in 

August 2018. It was a positive visit overall with 

the manager addressing several issues we raised 

during the visit itself. 

 

We further recommended that signage at the 

front of the home be improved along with the 

seating plan when residents were eating, as 

they told us they didn’t like the current 

arrangements. 

 

Residents also told us they wanted more 

vegetarian options included on the menu. 

However, despite repeated attempts, to date, 

there has been no response from the manager, 

Kelvin Bacon, to either the report or the 

recommendations we have made. 

 

The Hollies Residential Care Home 

This was also another positive visit made in 

September 2018 with our representatives 

noting there was a wide range of activities, and 

regular visits from opticians and dentists to the 

Southport home. 

 

Our report included a number of 

recommendations ranging from: supporting 

residents to use the stairs more confidently by 

making the colour of the handrail more 

prominent, decluttering the noticeboard and 

making the entrance sign more visible for 

visitors. 

 

These recommendations have been actioned 

and the manager was extremely helpful before, 

during and after our visit. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Walton Centre NHS Foundation Trust 

During much of 2018 Wendy Andersen, our 

Engagement Manager, held regular stands in 

both the main reception and Sid Watkins areas 

of the neuroscience hospital to hear the 

experiences of patients, visitors and staff. 

 

The report highlighted mainly positive feedback 

on treatment and care as well as staff attitude. 

However, people told us of areas they thought 

could be improved and we also shared these 

with the Trust. 

 

You said 

Appointment letters to state what building the 

patient’s appointment is in. 

 

They did 

The Trust has reviewed the process of patient 

letters and now include specific building 

location details and nearest places to park. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

All the wards I have been on I would score 

11 out of 10. They are excellent and their 

care goes above and beyond.  

                    - patient of The Walton Centre 

Care Homes 

Your feedback is important 

Page 62

Agenda Item 6



Have your say 
 

Share your ideas and experiences and help 

services hear what works, what doesn’t, and 

what you want from care in the future. 

www.healthwatchlocal.co.uk 

t: 03000 683 000 

e: enquiries@healthwatchlocal.co.uk 

 

19 Healthwatch Sefton 

Ken Lowe (l), HWS Locality Representative 

for Ainsdale and Birkdale gathering feedback 

from a patient at the Ainsdale centre 

You said 

More disabled parking by Sid Watkins building. 

They did 

Previously there were 5 disabled bays but work 

carried out during 2018 means there are now 

15 bays suitable for patients with disabilities. 

 

You said 

On discharge there were long waiting times for 

medication. 

They did 

Trained pharmacists and some nurse 

practitioners can now prescribe medications for 

patients to take home and the Trust has seen 

improvements in waiting times. 

 

You said 

More signage to be available at wheelchair 

level. 

 

They did 

Low-level check-in pods have already been 

installed but Trust will now review signage 

throughout the Trust to make it easily visible 

for patients in wheelchairs. 

 

Wendy said: “We work in partnership with the 

Head of Patient Experience at the Trust to 

ensure any areas identified for improvement 

are flagged up immediately so the Trust can 

respond in a timely and effective manner.” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ainsdale Centre for Health and Wellbeing 

Between August and September 2018 we talked 

with patients, volunteers and staff at the 

centre and our report reflected the positive 

experiences people told us about.  

 

For instance, one patient said: “I always come 

to Ainsdale clinic because I think they take 

bloods really well and you can communicate 

easier with the staff here.” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Although there were no recommendations in 

the report, we fed back issues raised with us so 

Lancashire Care NHS Foundation Trust, which 

provides health services within the Ainsdale 

centre, could consider making improvements.  

 

You said 

Accessing appointments can be difficult 

including those for podiatry. 

 

They did 

Introduced Single Point of Access to improve 

administrative processes and reduce delays for 

patients contacting services. This was reported 

as already starting to have a positive impact. 

Reviewing podiatry service with commissioners 

to ensure capacity meets demand for 

appointments. 

 

Julie Nowell, Deputy Head of Operations with 

Lancashire Care NHS Foundation Trust, said in 

response to our report: “I am keen to continue 

to collaborate with our partners and service 

users to improve the care we provide to 

patients in our care and have already 

implemented some improvements.”  

 

 

 

We are very appreciative of the work you 

have carried out in coming to our hospital. 

This feedback is invaluable for us and we 

are extremely grateful for the strong 

relationship we have with Healthwatch 

Sefton. 

           - Hayley Citrine, Chief Executive,  

The Walton Centre NHS Foundation Trust 

Page 63

Agenda Item 6



Have your say 
 

Share your ideas and experiences and help 

services hear what works, what doesn’t, and 

what you want from care in the future. 

www.healthwatchlocal.co.uk 

t: 03000 683 000 

e: enquiries@healthwatchlocal.co.uk 

 

20 Healthwatch Sefton 

Main reception at Aintree University Hospital 

Aintree University Hospital NHS Foundation 

Trust  

Feedback was gathered from engagement 

stands at Aintree hospital and this was passed 

on to the Trust through our report in 2018. 

 

It referenced improvements in feedback 

relating to communication since our last 

feedback report in 2017. 

 

Patients had specific praise for staff working in 

ophthalmology as well as the ear, nose and 

throat department due to the standard of care 

they provided. 

 

You said 

Staff are very busy and there are concerns this 

could impact on care. 

Lack of access to food and drink while waiting 

to be treated in Accident & Emergency. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Southport and Formby District General 

Hospital 

Over a 12-month period up to June 2018 we 

listened to the experiences of patients, staff 

and visitors to the Town Lane hospital. 

 

Staff attitude, plus treatment and care were 

viewed positively by those using services at 

Southport hospital. The volunteers working on 

the reception desk also received a mention as 

patients appreciated the support they gave. 

 

OUTCOMES 

The Trust is reviewing how appointment letters 

are sent out and tracked. 

 

Appointment letters to include location 

directions for attending specific clinics. 

 

Trust reviewing lack of spaces on Southport car 

park site along with a Trust-wide review for 

patients and staff. 

I am concerned at the number of negative 

comments around food and hydration and 

discharge and this is something that we will 

be addressing with the Divisional Directors of 

Nursing & Allied Health Professionals and 

Divisional Medical Directors. 

                    - Dianne Brown, Chief Nurse, 

                           Aintree University Hospital 

In the main, a positive report which I will 

share with teams, thank you.  

                                             - Gill Murphy, 

                        Deputy Director of Nursing,  

       Midwifery, Therapies and Governance, 

Southport and Ormskirk Hospital NHS Trust 

Page 64

Agenda Item 6



Have your say 
 

Share your ideas and experiences and help 

services hear what works, what doesn’t, and 

what you want from care in the future. 

www.healthwatchlocal.co.uk 

t: 03000 683 000 

e: enquiries@healthwatchlocal.co.uk 

 

21 Healthwatch Sefton 

Working in partnership 

Healthwatch Sefton is fortunate in having built 

up positive working relationships with a number 

of health and care service providers and 

commissioners. We also work in partnership with 

local organisations and groups within the public 

and voluntary, community and faith sectors. 

These partnerships mean what people tell us is 

raised with those who can do something about it. 

  

Health and Social Care Forum 

Both members of the public and a number of 

our volunteers informed us that they would like 

to find out more about Personal Health Budgets 

and how they can be accessed in Sefton. 

 

Members from the Health and Social Care 

Forum within Sefton Council for Voluntary 

Service (CVS) had also raised this and we, 

therefore, agreed to work in partnership and 

hold a joint event so we could learn about the 

budgets and have our questions answered. 

 

We worked with our NHS Clinical Commissioning 

Groups (CCGs) in Sefton to organise the event 

and Tracey Forshaw, Assistant Chief Nurse for 

both Sefton CCGs, attended the July event to 

talk to the 40+ attendees who came to take 

part in the discussion. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Following the event, we continued to review 

how the budgets are used and how people are 

accessing them and will gain updates and share 

the feedback we receive over the coming year.  

 

We again worked in partnership with the Health 

and Social Care Forum in arranging a 

consultation event in September to discuss and 

debate the Local Government Association’s 

Green Paper on social care - ‘The Lives We 

Want to Lead’.  

 

More than 30 people engaged in a table-top 

discussion sharing their thoughts, experiences 

and aspirations in regard to the future of adult 

social care, health and wellbeing. The results  

of the event were fed into the national 

consultation. 

Tracey Forshaw talking at the Personal 

Health Budget event  

I have been delighted to work closely with 

Healthwatch Sefton in organising events  

to raise awareness of the provision of 

Personal Health Budgets and providing 

feedback on the LGA Green Paper proposal 

for Adult Social Care. It has been a pleasure 

to work with Diane and her team and hope 

that this relationship will go from strength 

to strength as we  strive to improve the 

experience of users of local health and  

care services. 

                                    - Jan Campbell, 

             Localities Lead, Sefton Council for 

                              Voluntary Service (CVS) 
Page 65

Agenda Item 6



Have your say 
 

Share your ideas and experiences and help 

services hear what works, what doesn’t, and 

what you want from care in the future. 

www.healthwatchlocal.co.uk 

t: 03000 683 000 

e: enquiries@healthwatchlocal.co.uk 

 

22 Healthwatch Sefton 

Aintree University Hospital NHS Foundation 

Trust  

Feedback was gathered from regular 

engagement stands at Aintree hospital and this 

was passed on to the Trust through our report 

in 2018. 

 

It referenced improvements in feedback 

relating to communication since our last 

feedback report in 2017. 

 

Patients had specific praise for staff working in 

ophthalmology as well as the ear, nose and 

throat department due to the standard of care 

they provided. 

This is a great piece of work with some really 

helpful insights that we can feed into our 

Aintree and Royal Liverpool merger 

programme. 

                                        - Kelly Jones, 

           Partnership Engagement Programme 

          Manager, Project Management Office 

Liz Dowd (far left) and Pauline Delaware (left), who worked in south Sefton Community Health 

Council, one of the forerunners of Healthwatch, with Maureen Kelly (far right), Chair of 

Healthwatch Sefton and Diane Blair, manager of Healthwatch Sefton  

NHS 70: Past, Present and Future event 

To mark the 70th anniversary of the NHS in 2018 

we held a special event in November to which 

we invited our stakeholders and special guests. 

 

Around 40 people took part in the event which 

had the following theme: 

 

NHS 70: Past - a video was shown that we had 

compiled of people looking back at the 

different platforms (similar to Healthwatch) 

that have run alongside the NHS and given the 

public and patients a voice on the NHS and care 

services they use. 

 

NHS 70: Present – the event was a great 

opportunity to showcase how Healthwatch 

Sefton looks today and we officially launched 

our Independent Complaints Advocacy service. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NHS 70: Future – those who attended also 

participated in Healthwatch England’s national 

conversation to find out what people want and 

expect from hospitals, GPs and care services in 

the next 30 years. As part of this, people were 

asked to comment on how important they 

thought technology would become, including 

the use of robots in surgery. Their views were 

included in a report to our stakeholders. 

Flu Fairs 
 

Betty Boner, Engagement Officer for north 

Sefton, works in partnership with organisations 

during the flu vaccination season in order to 

capture the views of vulnerable people. 

 

For several years Betty has had a stand at 

Ainsdale Lunch and Leisure which hosts the flu 

vaccinations for Ainsdale Medical Centre. This is 

brought about through Ken Lowe, our Locality 

Representative for Ainsdale and Birkdale who 

said: “Thank you for taking part in today’s 

Ainsdale Health Fair where the number of 

patients attending was about 350. The 

community got much from the event.” 

 

Betty also linked in with Churchtown Surgery’s 

flu fair, at Leyland Road Methodist Church in 

Southport, to reach as many people as possible. 

 

Page 66

Agenda Item 6



Have your say 
 

Share your ideas and experiences and help 

services hear what works, what doesn’t, and 

what you want from care in the future. 

www.healthwatchlocal.co.uk 

t: 03000 683 000 

e: enquiries@healthwatchlocal.co.uk 

 

23 Healthwatch Sefton 

I really appreciate the great links we have 

with Healthwatch. 

                                      - Justine Shenton, 

  Sefton Older Persons Forum Co-ordinator, 

                                         Sefton Advocacy 

Wendy and Betty (far right) with the Community Champions at one of the network meetings 

Community Champion Networks 

Healthwatch Sefton has set up and continues to 

develop two Community Champion Networks 

working across Sefton. One covers south and 

central Sefton, and the other covering north 

Sefton, including Southport and Formby. 

 

Both networks are made up of local voluntary, 

community and faith sector groups (VCF) along 

with health centres, schools and libraries. The 

organisations and groups who are members of 

the networks play a vital role in the health and 

wellbeing of local people because they are well 

placed to support and promote Healthwatch 

Sefton’s goal of building relationships with 

communities and collecting their experiences 

of local health and social care services. 

 

The network members also open up their 

venues and events to Healthwatch Sefton, 

supporting our goal to engage with local people 

and groups.   

 

Members have attended monthly community 

champion network meetings to bring forward 

any emerging health and social care issues and 

to hear from guest speakers including providers 

and commissioners of health and social care 

services. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Initially, the main aim of the meetings was to 

enable network members to share information 

and best practice along with guest speakers 

talking about developments in health and social 

care service.  

 

However, it became clear that there were 

several recurring issues that were causing 

concern for community champion members 

and, during late 2018, the network focussed on 

finding out more about GP practice Patient 

Participation Groups (PPGs). 

 

We had already been working closely with both 

of Sefton’s NHS Clinical Commissioning Groups 

(CCGs) to map the number of PPGs in the 

borough and ensure patients are given the 

chance to have their voices heard. 

Page 67

Agenda Item 6



Have your say 
 

Share your ideas and experiences and help 

services hear what works, what doesn’t, and 

what you want from care in the future. 

www.healthwatchlocal.co.uk 

t: 03000 683 000 

e: enquiries@healthwatchlocal.co.uk 

 

24 Healthwatch Sefton 

Janet Spallen, NHS CCG Senior Manager, Commissioning and Redesign, talking at the Urgent Care 

Review themed meeting in January 2019 with Barbara Rouse, community champion, taking notes  

So it was agreed that a themed community 

champion meeting on PPGs should be arranged 

to give members the time and opportunity to 

hear about these groups and to ask questions. 

The first themed champion network meeting 

was a success with members requesting future 

meetings to be themed on topics. 

 

Healthwatch Sefton has continued to develop 

the community champion networks and have 

now clearly established themed network 

meetings on a bi-monthly basis. These have 

included: 

GP Patient Participation Group meeting (south 

Sefton) 

South Sefton Urgent Care Review (south Sefton 

and Southport and Formby) 

7 day GP Access (Southport and Formby) 

GP Extra (south Sefton) 

  

Feedback from network members has been 

extremely positive moving forward into 2019 

with a joint community champion meeting 

being planned on podiatry services. Matters 

arising from any of these meetings are fed in to 

the Healthwatch Steering Group. 

Merseyside Safeguarding Adults Board 
 

Ian Porter joined the Healthwatch Sefton team 

in October 2018 as the lead of Merseyside 

Safeguarding Adults Board’s ‘Voice of the 

Service User and Frontline Worker’ project. 

 

This initial 12-month project is looking to record 

views of people who have required support 

through a safeguarding incident along with 

family, friends or anyone else who have helped 

them. 

 

The project is being delivered in partnership 

with four local Healthwatch – Knowsley, 

Liverpool, Sefton and Wirral – and Ian has 

utilised their local contacts to link in with a 

number of community groups and council 

officials to have exploratory discussions. 

 

 

 

 

Telephone interviews with people who have 

experienced a safeguarding incident have taken 

place along with a series of focus groups 

capturing views of safeguarding teams and 

service users. 

  

Ian has organised a community engagement 

event in June 2019 to further capture as many 

different views as possible. 

 

The findings from the project will be included in 

a full report and this will shared next year. 

The outcomes and recommendations of the 

report will be used to inform the work of the 

Merseyside Safeguarding Adults Board. 

 

Page 68

Agenda Item 6



25 Healthwatch Sefton 

the answers 

Helping you find 

Page 69

Agenda Item 6



26 Healthwatch Sefton 

 25% Other issues 60% NHS Dentists 

15% Urgent Dentist 

Providing extra service information 

 
From listening to people’s feedback on podiatry 

services throughout Sefton, it became apparent 

that there was confusion around providing 

routine nail clipping treatment as part of 

community services. 

 

In November 2018 we were asked to conduct a 

mapping exercise as part of our Signposting and 

Information Service to source podiatry / foot 

care services for both south and north Sefton 

and shared this with Sefton’s NHS 

commissioners.  

 

  

 

This is a really helpful and comprehensive list. 

Mersey Care have assured us that they are now 

following the existing service specification and 

that if a referral is not appropriate and for 

routine nail care only they will decline. 

 

The information your colleague has collated will 

help in signposting to alternative services. Many 

thanks for your support on this service issue. 

                      - Janet Spallen, Senior Manager, 

                         Commissioning and Redesign, 

                                       Community Services, 

                          Planned and Unplanned Care, 

                                      NHS South Sefton CCG  

 

 

What services do people want to know about? 
 

People don’t always know how to get the information they need to 

make decisions about their own health and care. Healthwatch plays 

an important role in providing advice and pointing people in the 

right direction for the support they need. 

  

Here are the most common things that people ask us: 

Page 70

Agenda Item 6



27 Healthwatch Sefton 

Help with travel costs 

During this period our Signposting and 
Information service has received 496 enquiries 
from local people, signposting them to 871 
local services.  
 
To access the service people can ring our 
Freephone number, email us or text. As you can 
see from the chart before, many of the people 
who access this service have done so as they 
have not been able to register for NHS 
treatment with a local dentist or have required 

urgent dental treatment. This has been mainly 
for those living in the Southport and Formby 
locality and we have been working with NHS 
England to address this gap.  
  
Other issues which people contact us about 
relate to social care issues, support for older 
people, funding and finance, access to well 
being activities, support from generic advocacy 
services and issues relating to GPs.  

How we provide people with advice and information 

Social care concern 

John*, who contacted us via email, was looking 

for services that could help him with cooking, 

shopping and cleaning at his house. 

 

Dawn, our Signposting and Information Officer, 

listened to his concerns and was able to refer 

John to Age Concern Liverpool and Sefton 

Homecare (Support, Cleaning, Care, Shopping) 

as well as Sefton Health and Social Care 

Customer Access Team. 

 

Jane* was in receipt of Employment Support 

Allowance (ESA) and rang up for support towards 

travel costs as she had to make many journeys to 

treatment rooms for a leg injury. 

 

Her appointments were in Litherland and Jane 

found it difficult to use public transport because 

she had to get two or three buses, so usually 

ended up getting a taxi. Dawn signposted Jane to 

the NHS Low Income Scheme which helps pay 

towards NHS prescription and dental treatment 

charges, as well as the cost of travelling to receive 

NHS treatment. 

 

*Not their real names 

 Page 71

Agenda Item 6



28 Healthwatch Sefton 

Complaints breakdown 

We took on the Independent Complaints 

Advocacy service in April 2018 with David 

Evans joining as our Independent Complaints 

Advocate. This two-tier service is free, 

confidential and independent. 

 

Tier one is provided by Dawn Thomas, our 

Signposting and Information Officer. Dawn 

provides the initial contact with clients 

offering information and support about making 

a complaint. She can then supply free self-

help materials with details on the best method 

to make a complaint themselves and help 

them decide if advocate support is required. 

 

Tier two is provided by David Evans, our 

Independent Complaints Advocate. As a fully 

experienced and independent advocate, David 

has been supporting people from Sefton to 

navigate the NHS complaints process, helping 

those who may otherwise struggle to voice 

their complaints. We support them with such 

tasks as letter writing, attending complaints 

meetings and ensuring  at each stage clients 

are aware of the options available when  

making an NHS complaint. 

 

In the last year, we have worked on 53 Tier 2 

individual complaint cases. As of March we had 

12 cases that are still ongoing. Complaints 

have been supported on a range of issues 

including: levels of nursing care; multiple 

aspects of clinical treatment; failure to 

diagnose/misdiagnosis and complaints relating 

to medication. 

 

In addition to the Tier 2 complaints we have 

supported, we have also given help to 29 

clients requiring Tier 1 support. 

 

Tier 1 support has, in the main, been in 

relation to clients who have been thinking 

about making a complaint about Hospital 

Trusts or GP practices. 

David Evans, Independent Complaints Advocate 

Thank you for all you have done. The meeting 

has gone well. You have been so very kind. 

 

 

Hospital/ Ambulance NHS Trust  59% 

Mental Health provider  10% 

Community services  7% 

GP practices  5% 

Commissioners of services  19% 

 

 

Independent Complaints 

Advocacy service 

During the first month of us delivering this service in Sefton, 

we were approached by Warrington MBC to provide  

the advocacy service for Warrington residents. The 

new provider for the Healthwatch contract for 

Warrington was not due to start until August and 

there would be a gap in provision. 

  

Our Independent Complaints Advocate took on this role in 

Warrington for a three month period (1st May 2018 – 31st July 

2018) supporting clients one day per week. Case files for six 

clients were transferred to us from Warrington.  

 

 

Page 72

Agenda Item 6



29 Healthwatch Sefton 

Our volunteers 

Page 73

Agenda Item 6



30 Healthwatch Sefton 

At Healthwatch Sefton our 

volunteers support us in a number 

of ways, whether that is conducting 

Enter & View visits or helping us 

carry outreach engagement to 

capture people’s feedback. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

How do our volunteers help us? 

Volunteers support our work Among other specific duties, the 

representatives are also expected to attend 

steering group and community champion 

network meetings, promote Healthwatch 

Sefton’s aims and objectives, and help build 

effective relationships with their CCG locality 

counterpart to streamline communications 

between the two organisations. 

 

Every other month the Locality Representatives 

meet up with the Healthwatch Sefton 

engagement team to talk through what they 

have been working on, identify training or 

support needs and any emerging themes. 

 

Our volunteers represent Healthwatch Sefton on 

various external boards such as the Adult Social 

Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee (OSC) as well as being on the Mersey 

Care Southport New Build project, and the new 

mental health hospital – Hartley Hospital – is 

due to open later in 2019. Pictured left. 

 

 

 

Some of the Locality Representatives at our Volunteer Thank You event in September 2018  

Interested in volunteering with us? 

Or want to join Healthwatch Sefton? 

Call Freephone 0800 206 1304 for 

more information. 

There are currently 7 Healthwatch Sefton 

Locality Representatives across Sefton with 

vacancies in Formby as well as Hightown, 

Seaforth and Litherland localities. 

 

Their responsibilities include: acting as a point 

of contact for residents living in their local 

area; letting Healthwatch Sefton know of any 

issues local residents have when using health 

and social care services; and supporting 

Healthwatch Sefton with engagement activities. 

Page 74

Agenda Item 6



31 Healthwatch Sefton 

Our volunteers                         
Volunteer Development Day 
In order to engage more meaningfully with our 

volunteers, we organise a series of events which 

help them to better understand how health, 

community and social care operate within the 

borough. 

 

In February 2019 Ian Willman, Service Manager, 

Neighbourhood & Partnerships at Sefton 

Council, came to talk to volunteers. 

 

He outlined the council’s new locality model 

which looks at a new geographical way of 

working and also how services will be delivered. 

 

Outcome: One of our community champions is 

now working in partnership with Ian to devise a 

clear referral pathway to benefit members of 

the local community in Sefton.  

 

 

 

Volunteer Thank You Event 
As a way of thanking our many volunteers, we 

invited them to a special afternoon lunch during 

September 2018. There was a mix of locality 

representatives, community champions, enter & 

view representatives as well as board and 

steering group members. 

At the social media masterclass in November 2018 arranged by our volunteers for our volunteers 

Transgender Equality 

Training 
In March 2019, Healthwatch Sefton staff and 

volunteers attended awareness training around 

transgender equality. 

 

It was delivered by Anthony Griffin, Chair of 

Navajo Merseyside & Cheshire LGBTI 

Chartermark Consultative Partnership Board. 

The training has led to a review in our Enter & 

View procedures so that we will now be aware 

of dignity for trans people in social care. 

 

Social Media Masterclass 
At the May 2018 meeting of the 

Communications Sub Group, two members – 

Emma Grange, from People First Merseyside, 

and Sarah Oldnall, Bootle Locality Rep – 

volunteered to run a masterclass for 

Healthwatch Sefton members on how to use 

social media more confidently and 

appropriately when representing Healthwatch. 

 

The masterclass was delivered in November 

2018 and was successful in that people knew 

how best to use Twitter and facebook which was 

down to Emma and Sarah’s planning and 

engaging delivery. 

Page 75

Agenda Item 6



32 Healthwatch Sefton 

Our finances 

BESPOKE NO MASTER 

Page 76

Agenda Item 6



33 Healthwatch Sefton 

How we use our money 

Income £ 

Funding from local authority to deliver local 

Healthwatch statutory activities 143,281 

Funding from local authority to deliver Healthwatch 

Independent Complaints Advocacy service 19,350 

Additional income – funding from local authority 

(Warrington) to deliver Healthwatch Independent 

Complaints Advocacy service (May 1, 2018 – July 31, 

2018) 

3,228 

Additional income – funding from Merseyside 

Safeguarding Adults Board to deliver ‘Voice of the 

service user and staff’ project 
22,753* 

Additional income – funding from Healthwatch England 

for NHS 10 Year Plan Engagement work 2,500 

TOTAL 191,112 

Expenditure £ 

Operational costs 
24,426 

Staffing costs 
144,699 

Office costs 14,195 

TOTAL 183,320 

*The funding from the Merseyside Safeguarding Adults Board was received in November 2018 and 
covers the full amount for the delivery of the 12 month project (October 2018 – October 2019) 

Page 77

Agenda Item 6



34 Healthwatch Sefton 

next year 

Our plans for 

BESPOKE NO MASTER 

Page 78

Agenda Item 6



35 Healthwatch Sefton 

Message from  
our Manager 

Looking ahead 

The next 12 months will be both exciting and 

challenging as we ensure local people are kept 

up-to-date and engaged in both the local and 

national plans which will shape the NHS over 

the next 10 years. We have already started our 

work engaging local people on what works well 

and what needs to be developed and will ensure 

the voices of Sefton residents are listened to by 

decision makers working on the Sefton five-year 

PLACE plan, ‘Reshaping Sefton’. We will be 

publishing a report in the summer sharing initial 

feedback and will continue to engage local 

people on what matters to them.  

  

Healthwatch Sefton has been asked to be 

involved in the refresh of the Sefton Health and 

Well Being Strategy which will also support 

Sefton to deliver the services needed locally for 

the next five years (2020 – 2025) and we aim to 

work with commissioners and providers by 

sharing your feedback.  

  
Our work programme focusses on issues 

determined as important to local residents and 

we will continue to focus on the priorities which 

have been raised. Some examples include a 

review of home care (domiciliary care), and we 

are continuing to review the standard of care 

homes across the borough, including ensuring 

recommendations have been implemented. 

Impact reports will be produced to share with 

you the improvements made via your feedback. 

  

This year we will also see the results from our 

work in supporting the Merseyside Adult 

Safeguarding Board to engage with local people 

and staff, with an event in June sharing the 

findings to date. We look forward to building on 

 

this work and hope the report and the 

recommendations can strengthen safeguarding 

and support people to feel safe. 

 

Better together 
Finally, we want to hear your feedback about 

local health and care services so we can ensure 

those delivering and commissioning services in 

Sefton are meeting local need. 

 

We can only do this by working together.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Diane Blair 

Manager, Healthwatch Sefton 

Page 79

Agenda Item 6



36 Healthwatch Sefton 

Steering Group members 

 

Locality representatives 
Anne Major: Central Southport  

Brian Clark OBE: North Southport  

David Lloyd: Netherton (Oct 2018- 

present) 

Diane Foulston: Crosby 

Ken Lowe: Ainsdale and Birkdale 

Maurice Byrne: Maghull 

Sarah Oldnall: Bootle 

Nigel Booth: Formby (Apr 2018-Feb 

2019) 

Our authorised 
Enter & View 
Representatives 

 

Anne Major 

Betty Boner 

Brenda Cookson 

Brian Clark OBE 

Derek Thomas 

Diane Foulston 

Jim Conalty 

Joan Carton 

Ken Lowe 

Margaret Quayle 

Maureen Thomas 

Maurice Byrne 

Nigel Smith 

Patricia Hearne 

Sarah Ann Blackman  

Stuart Morgan Sime 

Valerie Thomas 

Wendy Andersen 

 

Board group members 

Maureen Kelly – Chair 

Nigel Bellamy - Deputy Chief 

Executive, Sefton CVS 

Anthony Deegan – Finance Manager, 

Sefton CVS 

Val Elson – Trustee, Sefton CVS 

Brian Clark OBE – Locality 

Representative, Southport & Formby  

Maurice Byrne – Locality 

Representative, South and Central 

Sefton 

Steering Group members 

Chair – Maureen Kelly 

Organisational representatives 
Roger Hutchings – co-opted (social 

care) 

Health and Social Care Forum  

Karen Christie  

Every Child Matters Forum/  

Sefton Parent Carer Forum  

Ann Taylor (Apr 2018-May 2018) 

Helen Hopkin (Apr 2018-July 2018) 

Julie Mangon (July 2018-Sep 2018) 

Yael Smith (October 2018-present) 

Sefton Independent Carer 

Action Group 

Tony Haigh (April 2018-Feb 2019) 

Brian Causey (Mar 2019-present) 

Clare Johnson, Carers Voice,  Sefton 

Carers Centre (Sep 2018-present) 

Transforming Care  

Partnership Board 

Will Mullen and Joanne English (Feb 

2019-present) 

Sefton Partnership for Older 

Citizens - Marion Hepworth 

Sefton Young Advisors 

Jessica Holding (Apr 2018-Sep 2018) 

Milo Dwyer (Sep 2018-present) 

 

Page 80

Agenda Item 6



37 Healthwatch Sefton 

Age Concern Crosby 

Bootle YMCA/Bootle Action group 

Bosco House 

British Lung Foundation 

Brunswick Youth and Community Centre 

Cambridge Children’s Centre 

Caradoc Kids 

Crosby Library 

Expect Ltd 

Inspire 2 Independence 

Keystone  

Kids Konnect 

L21 Community Network 

Linacre Methodist Mission 

MaghullLibrary 

May Logan Healthy Living Centre 

Netherton Feelgood Factory 

Netherton Library 

Netherton Park Neighbourhood Centre 

One Vision Housing 

Reach Men’s Group 

Seaforth and All Saints Children’s Centre 

Sefton Advocacy 

Sefton Carers Centre 

Sefton OPERA 

SSAFA 

St Leonard’s Youth & Community Centre 

SWACA  

SWAN 

The Orrell Trust 

Venus 

Veterans in Sefton 

 

 

 

 

 

Addaction 

Age Concern Liverpool and Sefton 

Ainsdale Lunch & Leisure  

Ainsdale Medical Centre Patient Participation 

Group 

Alzheimer’s Society 

Breatheasy Group 

Brighter Living Partnership 

Chronic Pain Support Group 

Crossens Community Centre 

Diabetics Society 

Freshfield Children’s Centre 

Lakeside Church Foodbank 

Lord Street West Church 

Macmillan Cancer Support 

Marshside Road Methodist Church 

Sefton Visually Impaired Group 

Sefton Cancer Support Group 

Sefton Carers Autism Group, North Sefton 

Southport Centre for the Deaf 

Small Businesses (Chris Burgess) 

Southport Library 

The Stroke Association 

Woodvale and Ainsdale Community Centre 

Champions on both networks 

   Galloway’s Society for the Blind 

   Parenting 2000 

   People First Merseyside 

   Sefton Carers Centre 

   Sefton Older Person’s Forums Page 81

Agenda Item 6



Contact us 

38 Healthwatch Sefton 

Address and contact details of the organisation 

holding the local Healthwatch contract as of 

31/03/2019. 

 

Healthwatch Sefton Registered Office: 

3rd Floor, Suite 3B, North Wing, 

Burlington House, Crosby Road North, 

Waterloo, L22 0LG 

 

0800 206 1304 

info@healthwatchsefton.co.uk 

www.healthwatchsefton.co.uk 

Healthwatch Sefton 

@HWatchSefton 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

We confirm that we are using the Healthwatch 

Trademark (which covers the logo and 

Healthwatch brand) when undertaking work on 

our statutory activities as covered by the 

licence agreement.  

 

If you need this in an alternative format please 

contact us. 

 

Healthwatch Sefton, Company Ltd by Guarantee 

Reg No: 8453782 

 

 

© Copyright (Healthwatch Sefton) 2019 Page 82

Agenda Item 6

mailto:info@healthwatchsefton.co.uk
http://www.healthwatchsefton.co.uk/


Healthwatch Local 

1 Best Address St 

North Area 

London 

DR1 6PDa 

www.healthwatchlocal.co.uk 

t: 03000 683 000 

e: enquiries@healthwatchlocal.co.uk 

tw: @HealthwatchE 

fb: facebook.com/HealthwatchE 

Healthwatch Sefton 

3rd Floor, Suite 3B, 

North Wing, 

Burlington House, 

Crosby Road North, 

Waterloo, L22 0LG 

w: www.healthwatchsefton.co.uk 

t: 0800 206 1304 

e: info@healthwatchsefton.co.uk 

tw: @HWatchSefton 

fb: facebook.com/HealthwatchSefton 

Page 83

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



1

NHS Sefton 5 Year Place Plan
Health & Wellbeing Board
11 September 2019

1. Executive Summary
1.1 Sefton is currently engaging on the compilation of a five year place plan for the local 

NHS.  This is in co-operation with all local partners and contributes to the 5 year plan for 
the Cheshire & Merseyside Health & Care Partnership.

The plan is draft and is subject to ongoing engagement for feedback and comment prior 
to concluding the document in November 2019.

The paper includes the approach and content of the plan and seeks initial feedback.  A 
final version of the plan will be prepared for the November 2019 Governing Body 
meeting.

2. Introduction and Background
2.1 As part of the NHS Long Term Plan (LTP), published in January 2019, all systems were 

asked to produce a five year plan.  This is being developed for Sefton as part of the 
Cheshire & Merseyside Health & Care Partnership (C&MHCP).

The overarching position for Sefton working in a collaborative based system is set within 
the need to develop a sustainable health and care system; improving wellbeing and 
health; and there is a reduction in health inequalities.  The Plan is expected to ddeliver 
the requirements of the NHS Long Term Plan (LTP).

The work on developing the plan is taking into account:
1. Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) priorities prepared by Sefton’s Public 

Health Team
2. 4 pillars of public health (prepared by the Kings Fund):

i. Wider determinants
ii. Our health behaviours and lifestyles
iii. Integrated health and care system
iv. Places and communities we live in

3. The population life courses of starting well, living well, aging well and dying well
4. The need to meet quality standards in health services
5. Workforce shortfalls
6. Health and care finances not in balance
7. Increasing elderly population
8. Increasing incidence of children, young people and adult mental health issues
9. Children and young people’s poverty
10. NHS Long Term Plan requirements

2.2 Approach
The approach undertaken to prepare the plan has intended to incorporate:
 The establishment of an internal CCG planning group including representatives 

from across the CCG.

Page 85

Agenda Item 7



2

 Alignment with the JSNA, the evolving Health & Wellbeing Board Strategy, the NHS 
LTP, the CCG’s Improvement & Assessment Framework, and Cheshire & 
Merseyside Health & Care Partnership priorities.

 Defining the CCG’s ambitions and priorities based on available local and national 
evidence and information.

 Engagement with the public, partners, other CCGs and Primary Care Networks 
(PCNs) using existing meeting for a

 Work closely with Sefton Council including Public Health
 Discussions to seek clarity on the NHS contribution to population life course and the 

4 pillars of population health management
 Based on feedback to refine the ambitions, priorities and objectives to produce a 

final plan.

2.3 Expected outcomes and foundations
Through implementing the plan the following are the expected outcomes for the people 
of Sefton:
 Reduction in health inequalities
 Improvement in health and healthy life expectancy
 Delivery of the Health & Wellbeing Strategy supported by the NHS contribution
 The four pillars of population health are addressed through the NHS contribution
 Maximising the Sefton pound
 Sustainable health and care system

As part of implementing the NHS LTP there are a number of foundations which are 
expected to be in place during the five year period.  These are:
 Integrated community services and primary care, including primary care networks 

and new community health services
 Delivery of urgent and emergency care standards
 Personalised care
 Digital primary care and outpatients
 Improved cancer outcomes
 Improved access to mental health services
 Doing more planned surgery, cutting long waiters, and reducing the elective waiting 

list

There is also a requirement for all systems becoming integrated care systems (ICSs) by 
April 2021, including setting out “how they see the provider and commissioner 
landscape developing”.  For Sefton this means being part of an ICS incorporating 
Cheshire & Merseyside; working as a strategic commissioner with Southport & Formby 
CCG and Sefton Council; and developing Sefton’s Provider Alliance (all health, care 
and voluntary service providers working together).  This is currently being discussed.

2.4. Ambitions
Through delivering on the five year plan as a contribution to the NHS Long term Plan 
there a number of ambitions as detailed below:
i. Making a full contribution to Sefton’s Health & Wellbeing Strategy eg wider 

determinants like air pollution
ii. Reducing health inequalities 
iii. Increasing healthy life expectancy
iv. Embedding early intervention
v. NHS majoring on prevention
vi. Empowering self- care

Page 86

Agenda Item 7



3

vii. Access to high quality services (in health and care)
viii. Meeting NHS Long Term Plan (LTP) requirements
ix. Delivering a sustainable health and care system
x. Maximising social value (eg NHS as anchor institutions)

2.5 Priorities
Based on local and national evidence the following are the Plan’s priorities linking in 
with the Cheshire & Merseyside Heath & Care Partnership:
 Child development - ensure all children are ready for school
 Mental health (all age) – ensure timely access to mental health services and 

support reductions in incidence
 Parenting & early years - supporting families in the early years of a child’s life
 Prevention and early intervention (all age) including vaccination rates and reduce 

variation across Sefton
 Looked after children – to assist in reducing the number of looked after children and 

to ensure the health of looked after children is improved.
 Obesity (all age) – to reduce the level of obesity and to turnaround the current 

increase at age 11.
 Smoking – to continue to reduce the incidence especially within most deprived 

areas of Sefton and when pregnant.
 Alcohol – to reduce the impact in all ages
 Cancer – this is addressed through two key aspects.  Prevention through a healthier 

lifestyle and increasing the rate of screening.  Earlier intervention when treatment is 
required.

 Substance misuse – improved access to services and reduce the incidence
 Social isolation – acknowledging this is a significant issue for older people.  Working 

with the VCF for all people who feel isolated to be supported to reduce the impact
 Dementia – supporting patients to reduce the onset and provide support
 Frailty – reducing the incidence of falls

Further work is required on prioritising the ambitions and priorities identified to date.

There are several supporting actions and priorities to be in place to maximise local 
delivery including:
 Digital – this includes preparing a plan for Sefton – currently underway
 Workforce – identifying issues and considering a plan for Sefton in conjunction with 

health and care providers
 Estates – preparing a Sefton plan incorporating One Public Estate.
 Finance and demonstrating value for money to the taxpayer

2.6 Reference to future state
A future view of Sefton has been developed to assist in explaining what this could look 
like and to facilitate engagement with the public and partners.  This includes aspects of 
population health management; Health & Wellbeing priorities, population self-care, 
integrated community care and hospital care when it is required.

2.7 Expectations and population responsibility
As a key part of the emphasis within the plan is the population taking responsibility to 
look after themselves as well as having a number of expectations from the NHS.  Based 
on dialogue with Healthwatch Sefton who have been undertaking a survey on the NHS 
Long Term Plan we are designing a series of “I would like” and “I will” statements.  

Page 87

Agenda Item 7



4

These will provide helpful clarity on patient expectations and the expectations of the 
NHS of the population.

2.8 Timeline
The following outlines the timing of actions over the next few months:
 June to August – engagement on the ambition and priorities Utilise existing 

meetings
 April, July and October engagement events
 August 30 – draft plan to C&M HCP
 September – October engagement on the draft outline
 12 September Big Chat event
 October 30 – C&M HCP 5 year plan agreed
 November 29 – plan refined based on agreed C&M HCP 5 year plan

There are regular meetings with Sefton Council during the above period to align the 
feedback and development of the Five Year Plan with the evolving Health & Wellbeing 
Strategy refresh which is also underway concluding January 2020.

2.9 Feedback to date
Arising from discussions underway to date as part of the engagement process with 
patient groups, NHS organisations and other partners a number of comments have 
been received as follows which include initial responses:

Feedback, comments Response
Agreement to the ambitions and 
priorities.

Subject to ongoing review.

Need to consider the level of 
improvement (and how 
measured) for ambitions and 
priorities.

Under review.

Need to identify a small number 
of key priorities.

Prioritisation to be undertaken based on 
feedback.

Dying well occurs through each 
life course rather than in ageing 
well.

Accepted and incorporated into the draft outline 
plan.

In the priorities section include 
reference to the health & care 
system.

Accepted and a future state description has now 
been included.

VCF sector – longer term 
contracts eg 5 years.

To be considered as part of the draft outline plan.

Transition between children & 
young people to adults.

Under review.

Locality build up/focus. Locality (PCN) based JSNA reports being 
prepared – any specific locality issues to be 
highlighted in the plan.

One plan – HWB strategy and 5 
year plan.

There are significant overlaps within the evolving 
Health & Wellbeing strategy refresh and the NHS 
Five Year Place Plan although the timescales for 
completion do not align.  It is intended to ensure 
the Place Plan will support the delivery of the 
Health & Wellbeing strategy.

Page 88

Agenda Item 7



5

Role of PCNs and how they 
influence local development.

All practices have been invited to contribute to the 
plan to ensure clinical leadership and 
engagement.  With the initiation of the PCNs 
recently underway there is likely to be greater 
PCN influence in 2020/21.

Include the contribution of 
schools.

Dialogue with schools to be included as part of 
the September – October period.

Sustainability of the voluntary 
sector.

Links to the above on longer contracts plus 
increased investment the voluntary sector – to be 
considered by the CCG.

Diversity and inclusion to 
consider.

This is being reviewed.

How the plan gets stakeholder 
sign-up.

Through ongoing engagement with partners and 
the public

Progress on the Shaping Sefton 
2014/19 plan.

This is underway.

Comms with the public on self-
care.

Links to the “I would like” and “I will” statements.

Increase use of social 
prescribing.

To be considered by the CCG

How include neighbourliness. To be considered by the planning group
Increasing investment in 
prevention.

To be considered as part of CCG consideration 
pending the financial position in later years of the 
plan.

The plan needs to be realistic in 
terms of what it can achieve.

The content of the plan needs to be prioritised 
against the key issues facing Sefton’s residents.
In addition the plan will be phased over the period 
to 2024.

The current financial positions of the health and 
care organisations in Sefton need to be 
considered when considering the content of the 
plan as investment over and above that which is 
targeted to specific schemes will not be available 
until the latter 3 years of the plan.

2.10 Next steps
1. Ongoing engagement meetings including:

 Health & Wellbeing Board – 11 September
 Healthwatch champions – 1 October
 School Head Teachers – 1 October
 Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 15 October
 Patient Groups – meetings being organised eg Older People fora (6 meetings 

) in September
2. Online survey for the public (September to October) – to collate responses
3. Feedback to be considered in the final version of the plan by 30 October
4. Plan to be submitted to November’s Governing Body meeting
5. Submit plan to C&MHCP by 30 November.

Page 89

Agenda Item 7



6

3. Key Issues
3.1 To date the feedback on the content of the plan has been supportive with a number of 

helpful and additional comments which are all being used to inform the final version of 
the plan.

3.2 The plan is deliberately covering a high number of ambitions and priorities to encourage 
a debate and the relative key issues that need to be addressed.  In addition further work 
is required to provide further examples of specific schemes and actions to support the 
ambitions and priorities.

3.3 There are several other issues to consider including:
i. Ongoing engagement to ensure this is widespread involvement in collating the 

plan and being able to provide fedback.
ii. the number of priorities which can sensibly and realistically be achieved over the 

period of the plan.
iii. the financial positions of the organisation in Sefton which will impact on the 

timing of all 

4 Conclusions
4.1 The work underway on developing the Five Year Place Plan endeavours to provide the 

strategic direction for the next 5 years.  This is focussed on a collaborative approach to 
developing the plan and its implementation.  This has a greater focus on wellbeing and 
how the NHS can contribute to the wider determinants of health improvement within the 
funding it has available.

5. Recommendations
5.1 The Health & Wellbeing Board is asked to:

i. note the progress on the development of the Five Year Place Plan with the final 
version being received at the December meeting;

ii. make any comments on the content as part of the engagement process.

Cameron Ward
Programme Director
27 August 2019

Page 90

Agenda Item 7



Outline Draft for Engagement

Sefton NHS  
Five Year Place Plan

P
age 91

A
genda Item

 7



2 Outline Draft for Engagement

Introduction
Sefton NHS Five Year Place Plan

Our aim is to continually improve health and wellbeing for 

all in Sefton.

A lot has been achieved over the last five years, since the 

development of our first Shaping Sefton Strategy. We have 

listened to what you told us in 2014 and either put in place or are 

in the process of developing better and more focused health, care 

and wellbeing to meet your needs. 

Our successes include:

• Improved access to GP practices with many open seven days a 

week and none now closing in the afternoons.

• Development of Primary Care Networks (PCNs) to improve the 

delivery of services and improve patient experience.

• Improving after care for those who have sought emergency 

treatment through A&E

• Better linking of cancer services with community based 

support and improving awareness and screening for patients

• Laying the foundations for a community based cardiology 

service which will bring services closer to people’s homes and 

include diagnostics for patients. This includes the delivery of 

a cardiology hub in Southport which reduces the need for 

hospital appointments. 

• Reviewed children and young people’s audiology services to 

improve the patient journey.

• Developed a community hub for diabetes in Litherland with all 

of the specialists, including a dietician, under one roof. A similar 

satellite hub has been developed in Maghull.

• Working closely with the voluntary Community and Faith 

sector to improve and encourage “social prescribing”,  

where people are referred for art or other activity programmes 

- particularly for those with mild to moderate mental  

health problems.

• Carried out a full review of mental health and dementia 

services particularly for Early Intervention Psychosis,  

Hospital Mental Health Liaison and developing care for people 

with who have a long term condition and a common mental 

health illness.

P
age 92

A
genda Item

 7



3Outline Draft for Engagement

Despite all of this hard work to improve the things you most 

need and care about, we know there is still a lot to do. It is 

recognised and, unfortunately, to some extent often tolerated by 

residents, that the services you get are often disconnected or not 

appropriate for the care you need.

We often hear that the care you receive is excellent, but the 

“system” lets you, and us, down. Well, over the next five years the 

main aim of this plan is to address those “system” issues. 

You can see from the examples above that we have made a great 

start, and so we are now in a very good position to make greater 

strides, not just as individual organisations, but as one “system” for 

the whole of Sefton.

A lot of work has been carried out, especially in the last 12 months, 

by the Sefton Health and Care Transformation Board. This 

brings together commissioners, such as the two Sefton Clinical 

Commissioning Groups and Sefton Council, with health and care 

providers, including hospital trusts and community providers. 

As you look through the rest of this Sefton Five Year NHS Plan 

you will see that many of our priorities are around working more 

closely as partners to develop a much better system and to focus 

on prevention. We also aim to cut delays, improve the quality 

of care, bring care closer to your homes and reduce both A&E 

attendance and hospital admissions. 

In line with the ambitions of the national NHS Long Term Plan, 

we want to refocus our efforts and increase our investment in 

prevention rather than cure. This includes things like increasing 

vaccination and immunisation rates as well as identifying when we 

can intervene earlier to stop or reduce conditions getting worse.  

This will help you live longer, healthier lives and reduce your need 

for traditional medical services in the future. 

By encouraging you to live a healthier lifestyle; such as eating and 

drinking more healthily, taking more exercise and not smoking, you 

will be happier and will not have to rely on health and care services 

as much as you go through life.

P
age 93

A
genda Item

 7



4 Outline Draft for Engagement

Our main areas of focus are outlined and you will see that they 

are pretty ambitious. But we do have some stark health and care 

issues in Sefton which need to be addressed. 

We need to prevent and reduce existing conditions like diabetes, 

heart disease, cancer and mental health conditions across all  

ages; reduce your waiting times for surgery and urgent care and 

provide value for money to you, the taxpayer. We can do this 

by thinking more strategically about our future commissioning 

arrangements with all providers, including the voluntary, 

community and faith sector.

We have developed this initial draft outline plan in conversation 

with our partners, both across the NHS and with Sefton Council, 

which is currently leading on the refresh of the borough’s Health 

and Wellbeing Strategy. 

Our plan is a key element of helping to deliver that overall strategy, 

as well as influencing the Cheshire and Mersey NHS Plan. We in 

the NHS are dedicated to working even more closely as the Health 

and Care Partnership as we move forward. We are all committed 

to delivering the key aims of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy for 

Sefton and helping people Start Well, Live Well and Age Well. 

We are very interested in your views on the content of the 

plan and we will be continuing to engage with local people, 

organisations and groups in September and October to finalise 

the plan so there can be a realistic as well as ambitious level of 

wellbeing and health improvement by 2024. Contact details can 

be found on page 23.P
age 94

A
genda Item

 7



5Outline Draft for Engagement

• I will seek advice from health care 
professionals on how best to look 
after myself and I will take on board 
their advice

• I will take regular exercise
• I will eat a healthy diet
• I will not smoke
• I will take my medication
• I will do more to liaise with people in 

my community 
• I will make best use of technology 

and seek advice when I need 
assistance

• I will encourage my children to 
exercise and eat healthily

• I will encourage my parents to 
exercise and eat healthily

• I would like to be able to access 
health and treatment when I need it 
most. 

• I would like advice on how to lead 
a healthy life and to access the 
resources I need.

• I would like to learn more about how 
I can stay independent and healthy 
whilst getting older.

• I would like to see more support in my 
local community.

• I would like to continue to be involved 
in choosing the right treatment for 
me and to be offered alternatives 
including signposting if I cannot be 
seen in a timely way.

• I would like to be able to talk with the 
appropriate health professional about 
my care and ensure all my personal 
data remains secure.

• I would like to be able to increase the 
use of technology where I have the 
capability to use it and to be offered 
alternatives.

• I would like better access to general 
practice appointments.

• I would like to have continue to see 
the person who knows about my 
health and treatment even if there wait 
will be longer.

• I would like more accessible services 
in the community.

Where there’s a will…

I will… I would like…

As part of our responsibilities it is for us to encourage the people of Sefton to assist themselves and for services to be 

provided in the right way. The statements below described what is expected of all of us on this journey. These have 

been developed in conjunction with Sefton Healthwatch, based on engagement around the priorities of the plan:

P
age 95

A
genda Item

 7



6 Outline Draft for Engagement

Integrated health and 
care system
We understand that people often have 
more than one health care need. This 
is why our integrated health and care 
system is so important, to ensure that 
all of your needs are met.

These four pillars work 
together to make sure 
that the health and care 
system is the best that 
it can be.

Places and 
environment
We want to make sure people don’t 
just have outstanding health care, 
but they have a good community 
and social relationships that they 
can rely on. This can help people to 
have a more positive outlook on life, 
reducing mental health issues.. 

Our health behaviours  
and lifestyles
One of our goals is to make sure you live the 
healthiest life possible. This means that we 
encourage people to stop smoking, avoid 
drinking in excess and improve their diet and 
exercise routine.

Wider determinants
The NHS wants to look more at the 
bigger picture, as well as health care. 
We want to help to tackle big problems 
like air pollution. We can do this by 
encouraging patients and staff to walk, 
cycle or use public transport to get to 
hospitals and GP surgeries, or technology 
in place of hospital attendance. This 
will help with fuel emissions and it 
encourages people to exercise.

The Four Pillars

These four 
pillars work 
together to 
make sure that 
the health and 
care system is 
the best that 
it can be for 
the people of 
Sefton.

Outline Draft for Engagement6

P
age 96

A
genda Item

 7



7Outline Draft for Engagement

Integrated health and 
care system
We understand that people often have 
more than one health care need. This 
is why our integrated health and care 
system is so important, to ensure that 
all of your needs are met.

These four pillars work 
together to make sure 
that the health and care 
system is the best that 
it can be.

Places and 
environment
We want to make sure people don’t 
just have outstanding health care, 
but they have a good community 
and social relationships that they 
can rely on. This can help people to 
have a more positive outlook on life, 
reducing mental health issues.. 

Our health behaviours  
and lifestyles
One of our goals is to make sure you live the 
healthiest life possible. This means that we 
encourage people to stop smoking, avoid 
drinking in excess and improve their diet and 
exercise routine.

Wider determinants
The NHS wants to look more at the 
bigger picture, as well as health care. 
We want to help to tackle big problems 
like air pollution. We can do this by 
encouraging patients and staff to walk, 
cycle or use public transport to get to 
hospitals and GP surgeries, or technology 
in place of hospital attendance. This 
will help with fuel emissions and it 
encourages people to exercise.

The Four Pillars

These four 
pillars work 
together to 
make sure that 
the health and 
care system is 
the best that 
it can be for 
the people of 
Sefton.

Outline Draft for Engagement 7

P
age 97

A
genda Item

 7



8 Outline Draft for Engagement

Take our short survey on the  
Sefton NHS Five Year Place Plan  
to help us help you.

www.seftonfiveyearplan.co.uk

1

A healthy balance
Did you know that there is a 12-year difference between the 
life expectancy in the poorest parts of Sefton compared to the 
richest parts? Our goal is to reduce that gap through targeted 
advice, information and support with health care when it is 
needed, helping you to live longer.

3

Early intervention
If you need help, the sooner we step in the better it is. That’s 
why we are promoting early intervention through our health care 
system, making sure that any worries that you have are seen to 
as quickly as possible before they turn into major problems.

8

Sustainability
We currently spend more money 
than we get.  We want our health 
and care system to be financially  
sound. We have to understand how 
we can manage our money in a way 
that meets all of your needs. We 
also want to be able to maintain the 
high quality of care available, no 
matter what happens politically and 
economically. 

Because of this we have to make 
sure that we are prepared for 
all circumstances and have the 
services in place when and where 
they are most effective.

5

Empowering self-care
Helping you to care for yourself is  
very important to us. Self-care and 
lifestyle changes; such as not smoking, 
doing more exercise and eating and 
drinking healthily can make a big 
difference to you - from weight loss to 
managing mental existing conditions. 

This also includes helping those 
people with long term conditions, eg. 
diabetes, or recovering from cancer to 
maintain as healthy a life as possible. 
After all, real change can only come 
from within.

7

Planning ahead
There are long-term NHS goals that 
we have to meet to make sure that 
you are well looked after. These 
goals include; reducing your waiting 
times, supporting maternity services, 
reducing health inequalities and 
tackling diabetes, improving outcomes 
from cancer and supporting people 
with mental health problems at a local 
and national level.

9

Maximise social value
We want the NHS and other public 
sectors to be of value to you. We want to 
create a service that you love and trust, 
an employer who is fair and loyal and a 
pillar that the community can depend 
on. We aim will do this through constant 
communication and transparency about 
what we are doing and why.

This includes the five main things which 
make the NHS an “Anchor Institution”:

• Purchasing more locally and for 
social benefit

• Using buildings and spaces to 
support communities

• Widening access to quality work

• Working more closely with  
local partners

• Reducing its environmental impact

6

Access to high quality services
“We want to make sure that your health and 
care systems are the best that they can be, meet 
required quality standards and are located where 
you need them most. We are constantly looking 
for new ways to improve and meet your needs 
efficiently and effectively.”

2

Great expectations
We want to make sure that you are  
able to live your best life by helping you choose 
to live longer, healthier. We want to help you 
increase the amount of years you live free from 
any major health conditions.

4

Prevention
Prevention and intervention go hand in hand. 
This is why we are encouraging people to 
stay healthy and active to prevent health and 
wellbeing problems later on in life.

Our Ambitions

Outline Draft for Engagement8

P
age 98

A
genda Item

 7



9Outline Draft for Engagement

Take our short survey on the  
Sefton NHS Five Year Place Plan  
to help us help you.

www.seftonfiveyearplan.co.uk

1

A healthy balance
Did you know that there is a 12-year difference between the 
life expectancy in the poorest parts of Sefton compared to the 
richest parts? Our goal is to reduce that gap through targeted 
advice, information and support with health care when it is 
needed, helping you to live longer.

3

Early intervention
If you need help, the sooner we step in the better it is. That’s 
why we are promoting early intervention through our health care 
system, making sure that any worries that you have are seen to 
as quickly as possible before they turn into major problems.

8

Sustainability
We currently spend more money 
than we get.  We want our health 
and care system to be financially  
sound. We have to understand how 
we can manage our money in a way 
that meets all of your needs. We 
also want to be able to maintain the 
high quality of care available, no 
matter what happens politically and 
economically. 

Because of this we have to make 
sure that we are prepared for 
all circumstances and have the 
services in place when and where 
they are most effective.

5

Empowering self-care
Helping you to care for yourself is  
very important to us. Self-care and 
lifestyle changes; such as not smoking, 
doing more exercise and eating and 
drinking healthily can make a big 
difference to you - from weight loss to 
managing mental existing conditions. 

This also includes helping those 
people with long term conditions, eg. 
diabetes, or recovering from cancer to 
maintain as healthy a life as possible. 
After all, real change can only come 
from within.

7

Planning ahead
There are long-term NHS goals that 
we have to meet to make sure that 
you are well looked after. These 
goals include; reducing your waiting 
times, supporting maternity services, 
reducing health inequalities and 
tackling diabetes, improving outcomes 
from cancer and supporting people 
with mental health problems at a local 
and national level.

9

Maximise social value
We want the NHS and other public 
sectors to be of value to you. We want to 
create a service that you love and trust, 
an employer who is fair and loyal and a 
pillar that the community can depend 
on. We aim will do this through constant 
communication and transparency about 
what we are doing and why.

This includes the five main things which 
make the NHS an “Anchor Institution”:

• Purchasing more locally and for 
social benefit

• Using buildings and spaces to 
support communities

• Widening access to quality work

• Working more closely with  
local partners

• Reducing its environmental impact

6

Access to high quality services
“We want to make sure that your health and 
care systems are the best that they can be, meet 
required quality standards and are located where 
you need them most. We are constantly looking 
for new ways to improve and meet your needs 
efficiently and effectively.”

2

Great expectations
We want to make sure that you are  
able to live your best life by helping you choose 
to live longer, healthier. We want to help you 
increase the amount of years you live free from 
any major health conditions.

4

Prevention
Prevention and intervention go hand in hand. 
This is why we are encouraging people to 
stay healthy and active to prevent health and 
wellbeing problems later on in life.

Our Ambitions

Outline Draft for Engagement 9

P
age 99

A
genda Item

 7



10 Outline Draft for Engagement

Working together to improve your health  
and wellbeing

Our plan aims to make the most of the resources we have 

available, both within the NHS and across our partners.  

We want to ensure that we all focus on “whole system delivery” 

through working together and being as efficient as possible.  

The overall approach is guided by the need to address the health 

issues within Sefton.

We in the NHS are focussing much more on our contribution to 

health management and the improvement of wellbeing across 

the population. This includes making the most of social value and 

leading on the 5 principles of anchor institutions.

Transformed community-based care

The “future state” (described on page 15) for Sefton includes 

integrated community based provision. This includes community 

and general practice services along with those from our much 

valued and extensive voluntary, community and faith providers  

in Sefton.  

This will include a number of PCNs, which will see partners from 

the NHS, local authority and VCF working together with the aim of 

providing a seamless service for the people of Sefton. 

We are not quite there yet in developing our vision for the 

integrated community offer, or the full workings of the PCNs. 

But there are seven PCNs set up across Sefton, each covering a 

population of around 30 – 50, 000 people. Our work will continue 

to make these as appropriate and joined-up as possible.

Taking a Clinical Lead

The work we do within both of Sefton’s Clinical Commissioning 

Groups is led by clinicians. They have helped to develop our 

Sefton NHS Five Year Place Plan from the beginning; while looking 

at the needs of the population using their own experience and 

knowledge alongside detailed facts and findings from the recently 

refreshed Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) for Sefton. 

Your GPs have also been involved in the development of the plan 

and have had the opportunity to contribute content and ambitions 

we are hoping to achieve. 

P
age 100

A
genda Item

 7



11Outline Draft for Engagement

Your health and wellbeing is at the top of our priority list; 

and the people who know about your needs as individuals, 

and as a population, are helping us to focus on how we 

can improve your quality and expectations for a healthy 

life.  We will continue to engage with other clinicians in 

order to ensure all clinical views are considered.

Each of our priority areas of work has involvement from 

professional clinical staff and they will continue to be involved in 

the development of the plan as we move forward from this draft to 

a final version. There is further work to be undertaken on priorities 

and this will be led through the CCGs’ Clinical Advisory Group and 

Governing Bodies.

How do we balance the books both in Sefton and 
across Cheshire and Merseyside?

We are encouraging health and care partners across Sefton to 

stop thinking about how we fund things as individual organisations 

and look at where we all spend money on similar outcomes. This 

“system approach” to managing the financial positon of Sefton is 

being discussed and will require a different approach to help all 

parts of the system to become financially stable. 

It should also mean that we become more efficient as a “Place” 

and target our spend to where it is most effective.

As we work towards our new way of collaborative working we 

must also be aware of the need to not only be as efficient and 

effective as possible, but also balance the books. 

The financial position across the system is already in deficit and 

the CCGs have challenges to ensure savings are made to meet 

their obligations and those of other NHS and local authority 

organisations. There is an ongoing approach within the CCGs 

alongside other work to ensure that we get the best value of 

taxpayers money for you which is a key aspect of the NHS Long 

Term Plan.  

The CCGs will continue to work with all NHS organisations to 

ensure our financial obligations are met and this is going to be a 

challenging position especially for the first 2 years of the planning 

period. Many of our partners are in a similar position, NHS, Local 

Authority, and the voluntary sector, so we will make great efforts 

to ensure that we work together to provide the best possible 

outcomes in the future with the money available so maximising the 

Sefton pound.

P
age 101

A
genda Item

 7



12 Outline Draft for Engagement

Embedding 
Social Value 

across the whole 
commissioning 

cycle

PL

AN

DO

R
E
V

IEW

ANALYSE

3. Define the Outcomes
Co-design of Social Value Outcomes and how they 
will be measured. Early engagement and co-
production with stakeholders is key.

4. What will it look like?
Thinking about Social Value early 
can help to stimulate innovation 
and can shape the service design 
/ model. Market and service 
User engagement will help you 
to understand the potential for 
social value.

1. What is the question?
Start to think about Social Value from the 

beginning when developing the commissioning 
question. What is the high level outcome 

and how does it relate to Social Value?

2. Know your customers
Understanding your customers 

should also include a review 
of the needs /  assets linked 
to Social Value (avoidable 
inequalities)

5. How will you get there?
Social Value should be 
a key component of the 
Procurement Strategy 
and Contract clauses and 
schedules e.g Performance 
Monitoring Framework (PMF). 
Social Value should be evaluated 
and weighted as part of the 
selection and award process. Ensure 
that Social Value commitments and 
contractual and measurable. Identify the 
financial benefits of the social value you are 
trying to achieve.

6. Measuring the impact
Social Value outcomes and 
KPI’s will be actively measured 

throughout the life of the contract 
via the Performance Management 

Framework (PMF). Social Value 
impacts can be measured at 

an individual contract level, and 
corporately across all contracts 

collectively. Apply the same contract 
management approach to social value as you 

would to quality, performance and finance.

Celebrate success. Identify the shared benefits.

Embedding Social Value across the whole commissioning cycle

This model is based on the principles of good commissioning identified within the LGA integrated 
Commissioning for Better Outcomes Framework 1, which is a practical tool for council and NHS 
commissioners to support improving outcomes through integrated commissioning.

The model below illustrates how the benefits of social value can be built into the local 
system of commissioning (or buying) services for the people of Sefton.

P
age 102

A
genda Item

 7



13Outline Draft for Engagement

A more collaborative approach

Through the development of the Sefton Health and Care 

Partnership’s approach  there is a greater emphasis on working 

together.  If we work and think more as a “system” then there is a 

reduced need for continual  procurement as more providers work 

collaboratively together.  This does not necessarily mean that 

organisations have to join together, but just work more effectively 

together, think as one and focus more clearly on joined-up 

outcomes for the public. We must ensure that all services provide 

value for money and that all of our providers, existing and new, are 

able to work collaboratively.

Showing we care in every locality

We are developing integrated care in Sefton to include community 

service providers, locality based mental health provison, PCNs 

and the voluntary sector. This integrated approach will encourage 

a greater mental and physical health collaboration as well as 

making the most of community buildings, workforce, volunteers 

and services and promoting social prescribing; which encourages 

health professionals, volunteers and other prescribers  to guide 

people towards activities and community services rather than just 

considering traditional medical treatments.

In your community

We aim to ensure that all localities and neighbourhoods will be 

covered by the integrated community and PCN arrangements.  

In addition localities will have population profiles to identify the 

specific health issues which require a targeted response, which 

may differ between localities.

P
age 103

A
genda Item

 7



14 Outline Draft for Engagement

Primary Care Networks2 

PCNs will play a pivotal role, with local authority and community 

partners, in improving population health and reducing inequalities. 

They will assess localised populations which are at risk of 

unwarranted health outcomes and, working with local community 

services, make support available to those who need it most. 

This includes making the social prescribing of community services 

and other activities more widely available and accessible.  In line 

with the latest guidance from Public Health England, we will ensure 

that these networks are supported by the CCGs by enabling 

advice and support in all areas of business including medicines 

management, finance, business intelligence, governance, 

communications and engagement.

Other actions to be considered by PCNs include:

• recognising the impact of people’s understanding of the health 

system, their thoughts and behaviours on the demand, need 

and uptake of primary care services

• systematically targeting and adapting services to the needs of 

people most likely to experience health inequalities

• working closely and systematically with other front-line 

delivery partners to co-ordinate person and family-based 

approaches to addressing complex needs

• embedding community-centered approaches in their work 

with communities as part of developing social prescribing 

systems

• using community-centered approaches to improve health 

and wellbeing, building social capital to help communities to 

reduce inequalities

• delivering more care through re-designed community-based 

and home-based services, in partnership with social care and 

the VCF sector

• to utilising staff across frontline services to actively make every 

contact count in identifying physical inactivity and overweight 

in users, and link in to social prescribing resources

P
age 104

A
genda Item

 7



15Outline Draft for Engagement

Our future landscape

There is a national requirement for all 

systems to become integrated care 

systems (ICSs) by April 2021, including  

setting out “how they see the 

provider and commissioner landscape 

developing”. 

In an integrated care system, NHS 

organisations, in partnership with local 

councils and others, take collective 

responsibility for managing resources, 

delivering NHS standards, and 

improving the health of the population 

they serve. 

For Sefton this means being part 

of an ICS incorporating Cheshire & 

Merseyside; working as a strategic 

commissioner with NHS Southport & 

Formby CCG, NHS South Sefton CCG 

and Sefton Council; and developing 

Sefton’s Provider Alliance (this means 

all health, care and voluntary service 

providers working together). 

Healthy behaviours  
and lifestyles

Early Intervention, 
Self-Care and 
Prevention: 
coordinated and 
seamless healthy 
living.

Health, care and well-
being services offer 
prevention and early 
intervention services  
in partnership with 
voluntary, community 
and faith sector 
services. 

Mobilised communities 
are empowered to 
actively engage 
in self-care and 
wellbeing for all ages. 
Integrated intelligence 
systems support self 
care  and prevention; 
‘make every contact 
count’ is embedded 
and enables  risk 
stratification for 
targeted and 
personalised services.

Integrated health 
and care

Primary Care 
Networks are 
part of a multi-
disciplinary and 
multi-agency 
integrated care 
team across all  
health, care and 
wellbeing providers 
with a digitally 
enabled single 
point of access 
and targeted 
care coordination 
supporting 
geographies of 
30-50k population, 
with GPs as the 
senior clinical leader and an overseer of patient  care. 

People know what local services are available to access for 
any urgent needs and will have access to care navigators to 
help them access services. People will experience seamless 
care between the hospital, community and primary care with 
integrated services making sure they are home and accessing 
community care as quickly and as safely as possible. Services 
are available closer to home and outside of the hospital setting 
wherever possible with Integrated Specialist Teams.

Optimised acute care

Urgent & Emergency Care and Planned 
Care are focussed on whole pathway 
optimisation for physical and mental 
health and people only attend hospital 
when they need inpatient or specialist 
outpatient care.

People can access to acute services 
which will provide quality services that 
meet national standards, achieve best 
practice and deliver the best possible 
clinical outcomes. This, in most cases, 
will be delivered locally, but for some 
areas this may be further away to 
ensure the best possible expertise, 
facilities and care are available.

Starting well… living well… ageing well… dying well…

In
te

g
ra

te
d

 C
a
re

 S
y
st

e
m

In
te

g
ra

te
d

 C
a
re

 P
a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip S
tra

te
g

ic co
m

m
issio

n
in

g
P

rim
a
ry

 c
a
re

 n
e

tw
o

rk
s

21st Century 
digital  and 
technological 
solutions

Whole system 
optimised estates 
across Sefton

System level 
coordinated 
communication 
and engagement

An integrated 
trained flexible 
workforce 
supports care 
delivery; system 
leadership 
enables 
empowered 
teams to work 
‘without walls’

Financially 
sustainable and 
working to a 
capitated budget 
maximising the 
Sefton £

Together a stronger community A borough for everyone A clean, green and beautiful borough

Visit, explore and enjoy Ready for the future Open for business

L
iv

in
g

, w
o

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 h
a
v
in

g
 f

u
n

O
n

 th
e
 m

o
v
e

DRAFT A confident and connected borough - future health, care and wellbeing in Sefton
Health, care and wellbeing services are joined-up, with many provided in local communities. Empowered people make positive 

changes to their lives and it is easy to get the right support in the right place first time and they live longer, healthier and happier 
lives as a result. There has been a reduction in health inequalities and key identified needs have been addressed.

Sefton healthy future

P
age 105

A
genda Item

 7



16 Outline Draft for Engagement

We will also be considering changes to contracts with the 

voluntary, community and faith sector to give them more certainty 

and longevity and help to them plan and deliver strategically.

Reducing clinical variation across the system

In Sefton there are a few different examples of how people 

can receive a differing level of service depending on where 

they live. This can include things like immunisation rates, the 

level of A&E referrals or the prescribing of medicines. There are 

several approaches to addressing clinical variation, including:

• Use of national and regional benchmarking information

• Implementing the outcomes from GIRFT (Get It Right First 

Time) which are a national programme for reviewing.

• Practice variation reviews for prescribing, screening and 

vaccination rates.

The data will be used by the PCNs to consider how best to address 

variation between practices.  The Local Quality Contract with each 

practice does require audits to be undertaken on the variations 

between practices.

Reduce growth in demand for care - through better 
integration and prevention

There are a range of approaches to consider which will help with 

reducing demand. These include:

• Risk stratification – to identify those most at risk of serious 

illness or ongoing conditions and provide them with support to 

reduce the need for medical intervention

• Supporting a range of alternatives to A&E departments 

including greater use of primary care extended hours; working 

with community pharmacists to to offer urgent care  

related treatments; and increasing the profile of social 

prescribers as additional alternatives to accessing  

traditional healthcare services

• The revised integrated community and PCN offer to each 

locality providing universal services and directions to a  

range of alternatives to urgent care facilities

• The Provider Alliance focussing on collective actions 

associated with people with complex lives which will reduce 

the demand on health and care providers.

P
age 106

A
genda Item

 7



17Outline Draft for Engagement

Our Priorities
Having assessed the requirements of the NHS Long Term Plan, 

alongside other evidence around the health and care needs of the 

people of Sefton, such as the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 

we intend to focus on a number of priorities. Many of the priorities 

outlined below will be the subject of further, more detailed 

development, throughout the lifetime of this plan:

• Providing help and support where it is most needed. This 

includes:

• removing barriers to access

• distributing resources and intervention proportionately to 

address need so as to achieve more equal outcomes

• recognising the earlier onset of conditions in deprived 

areas compared to the least deprived areas

• increasing the amount of funding for prevention and 

maximise the use of the VCF sector

• Child development – ensure all children are ready for school

• Mental health (all age) – ensure timely access to mental health 

services and support reductions in incidence

• Parenting & early years – supporting families in the early years 

of a child’s life

• Prevention and early intervention (all age) – increase the 

vaccination rates and reduce variation across Sefton

• Looked after children – to assist in reducing the number of 

looked after children and to ensure the health of looked after 

children is improved.

• Obesity (all age) – to reduce the level of obesity and to 

turnaround the current increase at age 11.

• Smoking – to continue to reduce the incidence especially 

within most deprived areas of Sefton and when pregnant.

• Alcohol – to reduce the impact in all ages

• Cancer – this is addressed through two key aspects.  

Prevention through a healthier lifestyle and increasing the rate 

of screening.  Earlier intervention when treatment is required.

• Substance misuse – improved access to services and reduce 

the incidence 

P
age 107

A
genda Item

 7



18 Outline Draft for Engagement

• Social isolation – acknowledging this is a significant issue for 

older people.  Working with the VCF for all people who feel 

isolated to be supported to reduce the impact

• Dementia – supporting patients to reduce the onset and 

provide support for patients and their families

• Frailty – reducing the incidence of falls 

• We will aim to reduce the number of follow-up appointments 

and new outpatient appointments at hospital through:

• appropriate use of technology

• following best clinical practice to ensure patients are 

followed up in hospital only when clinically required

• seeing patients in the community

 

As well as making better use of hospital based resources it means 

less car journeys so helping to reduce air pollution. 

The CCG will look to address health inequalities2:

• ensuring commissioning plans have a specific focus on 

improving the health of people with the poorest health 

outcomes fastest

• identifying and closing the gaps in care which have the most 

impact on health inequalities

• ensuring that all screening and vaccination programmes 

are designed to support a narrowing of health inequalities 

in access, uptake and outcomes, acknowledging there is 

significant variation in uptake across Sefton

• ensuring commissioning processes formally assess impact on 

health inequalities

• considering the potential of service models to inadvertently 

increase health inequalities (for example are psychosocial 

factors likely to impact on accessing services for some groups)

• undertaking and acting upon Health Equity Impact 

Assessment of plans and services

• using formal mechanisms to proactively identify people who 

are most likely to benefit from earlier intervention – based on 

the identification of risk, and early diagnosis

P
age 108

A
genda Item

 7



19Outline Draft for Engagement

• targeting resources to support them and transforming care 

models and pathways to improve access, experience and 

outcomes

• employing targeted use of personal budgets and 

personalisation, to empower individuals and communities 

including those in positions of disadvantage

• supporting healthy workforce initiatives across the partnership

• funding to support low-cost exercise inclusion activities and 

other methods to increase the amount of physical exercise

• support community-centred or independent sector enterprise, 

to take on and maintain green or open spaces, and harness for 

community use including activity initiatives and events

• work across public sector workforce as exemplars to improve 

physical activity

• For hospital emergency admissions to identify priority wards 

with high deprivation scores and also outliers for excess 

admissions.  To address unwarranted variation in covering 

primary care, and community-based issues in effective 

connection to services

• To set targets to bring emergency admission rates in outlying 

‘priority’ wards down to the average for those with similar 

deprivation scores, within 2 years.

• Embedding social value across the commissioning process

P
age 109

A
genda Item

 7



20 Outline Draft for Engagement

Providers to support through 
majoring on population health 
management

COLLABORATIVE

W O R KING

P
re

v
en

ti
on

 a
nd

 h

ea
lth

 im
provement Population healthcare and health serv

ice
s

Health
 P

ro

te
ct

io
n

C
o

m
m

u
n

ity
 ro

le and w
ider determinants

Value

Population view of 
healthcare

Using data and 
evidence 

Effectiveness, quality 
and safety 

Interventions  
with patients 

Workforce health

Healthy environment 
and culture

Strategy  
and policies

Reducing health 
inequalities

Equitable access

Sustainability 

Employment  
practices

Procurement

Emergency planning

Screening

Immunisations

Infection prevention 
and control

Collaborative working

P
age 110

A
genda Item

 7



21Outline Draft for Engagement

Health care service providers will consider the 
following to support delivery of the NHS Long Term 
Plan and population health management2:

• targeting services to the needs of individuals, families  

and communities most likely to experience health  

inequalities (including through utilising available data, for 

example demographic, equality and diversity or wider 

determinants data)

• the use of evidence-based risk stratification tools to offer 

different levels of wellbeing support depending on individuals’ 

health literacy as part of targeted self-care

• implementing structures that engage community members, 

especially the most marginalised groups, in decision-making 

about service needs, priorities and appropriate delivery 

methods with demonstrable resulting changes

• implementing an enhanced and targeted continuity of carer 

models, in particular, to help improve outcomes for the most 

vulnerable mothers and babies

• ensuring that by 2023 and 2024, all people admitted to 

hospital who smoke will be offered NHS-funded tobacco 

treatment services

• using their role as a system anchor to improve health outcomes 

through co-ordinated action on the wider determinants 

of health, including air pollution and employment. For 

example, through ‘green’ transport provision and targeted 

recruitment of people from deprived communities and offer 

apprenticeships

• utilising community-centred approaches to improving health 

and wellbeing

• continuing to take action on healthy NHS premises

• to ensure as much of the healthcare spend is retained locally 

eg through procurement supply chains

• support healthy workforce initiatives

• utilise staff across frontline services to actively make every 

contact count in identifying physical inactivity and overweight 

in users, and link in to social prescribing resources

P
age 111

A
genda Item

 7



22 Outline Draft for Engagement

Workforce – requirements for the future workforce are being 

considered and will take into account current shortfalls; the need 

to flex and adapt the current workforce to new ways of working; 

maximising the potential of digital; the need to build in capacity 

to deliver the long term plan requirements; and to support the 

ongoing development of the workforce.

Digital – a plan for Sefton is currently being 

prepared. This will take into account plans and work 

underway across Cheshire & Merseyside 

Estates – an estates strategy is currently being prepared for 

Sefton including One Public Estate.

Educating – we are also looking to increase collaboration between 

the NHS and education. This includes:

• Being school and child ready including the transition to 

secondary school

• Supporting mental health and wellbeing

• Increasing physical activity

• Ready for employment

• Importance of life skills

• what can be provided by healthcare 

providers to reduce demand

Implementation – the ambitions and priorities, including  

NHS Long Term Plan requirements to be phased over the life  

of the plan.

Further work to do

P
age 112

A
genda Item

 7



23Outline Draft for Engagement

Please get in touch if you would like to comment on our plan.

Contacts

Dan Grice
Communications and Engagement Manager

Sefton Health and Social Care Transformation Programme

m:  07909 876963

t:  0151 296 7110 

e:  daniel.grice@southseftonccg.nhs.uk

 

Cameron Ward
Programme Director

Sefton Health and Social Care Transformation Programme

m: 07917 551885

t: 0151 296 7119

e: cameron.ward1@nhs.net

Evidence base

Sefton Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA)

Quality, Innovation, Productivity and Prevention (QIPP)

Health & Wellbeing Strategy

Transformation Programme

NHS Long Term Plan

GIRFT (Get it right first time) RightCare and model hospital 

(national programmes)

Cheshire and Mersey Health and Care Partnership (C&M HCP)

Improvement Assessment Framework (IAF)

Public Health England (PHE), 

Health Inequalities Dashboard 

PHE & NHS Right Care Atlases of Variation

PHE Wider Determinants of Health

PHE Public Health Outcomes Framework 

References

1    Place-based approaches for reducing health inequalities: main 

report, 29 July 2019, Public Health England

2  Place-based approaches for reducing health inequalities: 

annexes, 29 July 2019, Public Health England

Feedback and comments

P
age 113

A
genda Item

 7



24 Outline Draft for Engagement

Sefton NHS Five Year Place Plan

P
age 114

A
genda Item

 7



Report to: Health and 
Wellbeing Board

Date of Meeting: Wednesday 11 
September 2019

Subject: Refresh of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy Progress Update

Report of: Director of Public 
Health 

Wards Affected: (All Wards);

Portfolio: Health and Wellbeing

Is this a Key 
Decision:

N Included in 
Forward Plan:

Yes

Exempt / 
Confidential 
Report:

Summary:

The purpose of this report is to inform the Health and Wellbeing Board about 
development of a new Sefton Health and Wellbeing Strategy for 2020-2025, and aims to,

a) Describe the relevant policy context and implications for strategy development

b) Provide a progress update on engagement to date on the JSNA priorities, and 
plans for the second phase of engagement 

c) Present an outline and rationale for the proposed structure and content of the 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy and implementation plan; highlighting underlying 
assumptions and principles

d) Support discussion amongst Health and Wellbeing Board Members to begin 
formulating the central ambitions for better and more equal health and wellbeing in 
Sefton

e) Set out governance and oversight arrangements leading to publication of the 
completed strategy

Recommendation(s):

(1) To inform the board of progress and proposed structure. 

Reasons for the Recommendation(s):

A further presentation of the draft will be submitted to the board in December

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: (including any Risk Implications)

Page 115

Agenda Item 8



What will it cost and how will it be financed?

(A) Revenue Costs

Not applicable at this stage. 

(B) Capital Costs

Not applicable at this stage.

Implications of the Proposals:

Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets):

This is a document intended to set strategic direction and therefore no direct resource 
implications can be identified at this time.
 
Legal Implications:

No identified legal implications at this time. It is a statutory duty to produce this strategy. 

Equality Implications:

There are no equality implications. The strategy should seek to improve the Health and 
Wellbeing of all residents. 

Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose:

Protect the most vulnerable: The strategy will seek to focus improvement on outcomes 
for the most vulnerable residents. 

Facilitate confident and resilient communities: The Strategy will seek to improve the 
Health and Wellbeing of all our communities. 

Commission, broker and provide core services: The Strategy will set strategic direction 
and vision for how we commission, broker and provide core services. 

Place – leadership and influencer: The Strategy will set strategic direction and vision to 
improve Health and Wellbeing. 

Drivers of change and reform: The Strategy will set strategic direction and vision to 
improve Health and Wellbeing. 

Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity:
The Strategy will set strategic direction and vision to improve Health and Wellbeing. 
Part of this will be improved economic prosperity for our residents. 
Greater income for social investment:  Not applicable. 
Cleaner Greener: The Strategy will set strategic direction and vision to improve Health 

Page 116

Agenda Item 8



and Wellbeing.

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

(A) Internal Consultations

The Head of Corporate Resources (FD5774/19) and the Chief Legal and Democratic 
Officer (LD4898/19) have been consulted and any comments have been incorporated 
into the report.

(B) External Consultations 

There are 2 phases of public consultation for the development of the strategy as 
presented to the Communication and Engagement panel. Phase one is a 10 week public 
consultation, which is currently live.  This is using an online questionnaire (paper copies 
and appropriate support to complete are being made available on request) to test out the 
headline themes and priorities. Following the closure and analysis of this as second 
more detailed phase to include directed conversations and focus groups will commence. 

 Implementation Date for the Decision

Following the expiry of the “call-in” period for the Minutes of the Cabinet Meeting

Contact Officer: Helen Armitage and Eleanor Moulton 
Telephone Number:
Email Address: Helen.Armitage@sefton.gov/eleanor.moulton@sefton.gov.uk

Appendices:

There are no appendices to this report

Background Papers:

There are no background papers available for inspection.

1. Introduction/Background

1.1. Status and function of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy in statute

The development of a new HWS for Sefton continues to take account of its purpose and 
function as set out in statute. A recent review of Health and Wellbeing Boards by the 
Local Government Association clearly affirms the continuing relevance and status of 
HWBs, JSNA and HWS as essential and powerful drivers of population health 
improvement. 
The Health and Social Care Act (2012) established the requirement for local authorities 
to set up Health and Wellbeing Boards (HWB) as a council committee, with executive 
membership made up of at least one Elected Member, Directors of Public Health, Adult 
and Children’s Social Care, plus representatives of local Clinical Commissioning Groups, 

Page 117

Agenda Item 8



Local Health Watch, and NHS England, with other executive members included at the 
Board’s discretion.  
One of the minimum statutory functions of the Health and Wellbeing Board is preparation 
of Joint Strategic Needs Assessments (JSNAs) and Joint Health and Wellbeing 
Strategies (HWS). These are specific duties of local authorities and CCGs. 
The HWS is the overarching population health plan and a statement of collective intent. It 
sets out high impact priorities, which are identified in the JSNA and through community 
engagement. The HWB can use its powers and duties to facilitate cooperative 
commissioning and decision-making, which align with patterns of local health and health-
related needs.
Important, related   functions of the HWB can be summarised as:

• A duty to encourage joined up working between health and social care 
commissioners, including providing support to encourage arrangements under 
section 75 of the National Health Service Act 2006 (lead commissioning, pooled 
budgets and/or integrated provision) in connection with the provision of health and 
social care services

• A power to encourage close working between commissioners of health-related 
services and the board 

• A power to encourage close working between commissioners of health-related 
services (such as housing and many other local government services) and 
commissioners of health and social care services. 
The Health and Social Care Act (2012) affords HWBs considerable latitude to 
determine the extent of their scope and the balance of strategic and operational 
working in their function and governance:

• Any other functions that may be delegated by the council under section 196(2) of 
the Health and Social Care Act 2012. For example, this could include certain 
functions relating to the joint commissioning of services, the operation of budget-
pooling arrangements. Delegated functions are not restricted to health and social 
care, and could include other assets and functions, recognised as determinants of 
health and health inequality, e.g. housing, planning, welfare, leisure, cultural 
services and voluntary sector services.

The overall purpose of the HWS is to drive improvements in population health and 
wellbeing and to promote ways of working that can also narrow health inequalities.

1.2. Wider policy perspective

Sefton’s new HWS is a response to the picture of needs and assets presented in the 
Sefton JSNA 2018. JSNAs must have chapters on physical and mental health data, 
behavioural (‘lifestyle’) risk factors, demographics, and other determinants of health 
(housing, education, employment, income, built and natural environment, transport, 
social supports).   This is a reminder that patterns of health and disease are most 
influenced by the opportunities and experiences we encounter as we are born, grow, 
work and age (‘a social determinants model of population health’).
Recent national policy developments emphasise the need to prevent health problems as 
an essential aspect of achieving health and care services that are sustainable as well as 
improving quality of life and productivity.
The National Industrial Strategy includes a grand challenge to ensure that people can 
enjoy at least 5 extra healthy, independent years of life by 2035, while narrowing the gap 
between the experience of the richest and poorest. Technological innovation is 
presented as a key means of achieving this mission. This approach is also emphasised 

Page 118

Agenda Item 8



in Advancing Our Health: Prevention in the 2020s, the government’s current green 
paper.  The two-way relationship between good work and good health is also a central 
theme in the Liverpool City Region Local Industrial Strategy, which is currently in 
development. 
The NHS Long Term Plan gives much more emphasis to population health perspectives, 
including:
• New NHS funded prevention interventions and services, e.g. stop smoking 

support in clinical settings, increased weight management support as part of the 
diabetes prevention programmes, mental health support in schools, investment in 
alcohol care teams, and social prescribing

• A requirement to increasingly demonstrate and measure action on health 
inequalities and to design care around specific local needs. This is reinforced by 
significant and impactful new guidance from Public Health England. 

• Commitment to lever health gains and social value through the health sector’s 
investment in procurement, transport, employment and capital projects (‘anchor 
institutions’)

• A new NHS model that emphasises greater collaboration - with civic partners, 
including local authorities, the community and voluntary sector at different scales 
of population, and between commissioners and providers.

1.3. Our ability to realise the full potential of place-based population health approaches 
is influenced by a number of factors, and national policy decisions are highly significant, 
for example welfare reform, local government funding provision and mechanisms 
(notably to social care and public health in this context), and also the extent of legal and 
regulatory control where population health is a consideration. Current policy in this area, 
including reductions to public sector budgets shapes Sefton’s health need, service 
demand, and our strategic response.

1.4. Taken together, these developments offer challenges and opportunities, but 
underline the necessity of having a coherent, connected intelligence-led and evidence-
based health and wellbeing strategy for Sefton; which can help us to unlock more of the 
health and prevention potential from our major assets - our services, our vibrant 
voluntary sector, communities of place and people, economy and our diverse outdoor 
spaces.

2. Progress update on engagement activity

Engagement with community groups, individuals, public sector partners, and the range of 
commercial and other organisations is an essential aspect of HWS development. As set 
out in our initial proposals and update to Sefton Consultation and Engagement panel, our 
engagement plans follow the model that was developed to inform Sefton’s first Health 
and Wellbeing Strategy, which delivered an active engagement phase totalling six 
months. In revisiting our HWS, we aim to achieve breadth of engagement, particularly 
amongst potentially more vulnerable groups, including those at risk of exclusion and 
facing more barriers to participation, however, the intensity of length of engagement is 
shorter.

Phase one focuses on significant health needs identified in the JSNA. This phase ran 
from 5 August to September 9 as an online questionnaire , with easy read text used 
across standard and accessible versions to maximise uptake and engagement. This has 
benefited from a high degree of involvement from the Improving Information Group. The 

Page 119

Agenda Item 8



questionnaire is structured in four sections: on a lifespan and social determinants of 
health model.

• Start Well, Grow Well
• Live Well, Work Well
• Age Well
• Things That Affect Everybody

Participants are asked to select their top three most important things that contribute to 
being able live well as they age, and each section has a free-text entry inviting people to 
tell us about other things they are feel are important. The questionnaire and questions 
are formulated to draw out key themes, for example happiness and wellbeing as well as 
health; good quality services alongside developing healthier place and opportunities; 
health conditions, as well as risk factors and social determinants of health; prevention as 
well as treatment.

Phase two will use the successful Talking Health and Wellbeing focus group 
methodology developed in 2014 to share the results of the phase engagement on needs 
and priorities and explore stakeholder’s views on the draft strategy in outline, the key 
ambitions that it should fix upon to drive the right improvements in the right way, and the 
kinds of measures that would be meaningful to share progress.

3. Outline and rationale for the proposed structure and content of the Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy 

3.1Content and presentation

Living Well in Sefton 2014-20 – our current Health and Wellbeing Strategy

The current HWS, Living Well in Sefton 2014-20 is a 21-page document, accessible 
in an online format on the Sefton Council Health and Wellbeing Board1 and Business 
Intelligence webpages. Visibility and accessibility are important considerations for the 
new HWS, since HWBs are expected to demonstrate the principles of openness, 
transparency, and accountability in their communication and engagement with local 
communities.
Sefton’s current HWS is structured to include a foreword and introduction 
emphasising the make-up, governance, intentions and scope of the HWB, followed by 
a statement of Our Aspiration for Sefton by 2020, which emphasises several 
priorities, approaches and outcomes:

‘By working together and aligning our resources, we aim by 2020 to improve the care, health and 
wellbeing of all Sefton residents and narrow the gap between those communities with the best and 
worst health and wellbeing outcomes. We will promote independence and help build personal and 
community resilience. We will work with parents and carers so that all children and young people 
have opportunities to become healthy and fulfilled adults and create a place where older people 
can live, work and enjoy life as valued members of the community. We will seek to improve 
opportunities and support residents to make choices so that people are able to live, work and 
spend their time in a safe and healthy environment and provide early support so that people can 
remain independent for longer.’

1 https://www.sefton.gov.uk/public-health/health-and-wellbeing-board.aspx
Page 120

Agenda Item 8



 

Ensure all children have a positive start in life 
 Children and young people will have good physical and emotional health and wellbeing and 

will lead healthy lifestyles
 Children and young people will be safe
 Children and young people will be aspirational and achieving through the enjoyment of going 

o school and college
 Parents will have the skills, support and infrastructure to enjoy being parents
 Children and young people will have a voice, will be listened to and their views will influence 

ervice design, delivery and review

Support people early to prevent and treat avoidable illnesses and reduce 
inequalities in health
 There will be effective prevention and early intervention with people being empowered to 

determine their own outcomes through the experience of quality services
 There will be improved health and wellbeing against the wider factors that lead to poor health 

and wellbeing
 There is education, skills and support for people to change their lifestyles and to do things or 

themselves
 The population is protected from incidents and other threats, including infectious diseases, 

accidents, excess winter deaths whilst reducing health inequalities

Support older people and those with long term conditions and disabilities to 
remain independent and in their own homes
 There will be system wide improvements across social care and care pathways, supported 

with access to information about early diagnosis and prevention
 There will be effective management of long term conditions for all adults, including mental 

health and dementia
 There will be outstanding end of life services
 There will be access to information about early diagnosis and prevention services
 There will be increased physical, emotional and economic wellbeing. There will be access to 

appropriate, high quality housing across Sefton

        Promote positive mental health and wellbeing
 We will have stronger communities involved in their own wellbeing and wider community’s 

mental health services
 There will be an increase in physical and emotional health and wellbeing
 The mental health services that are commissioned will be fit for purpose
 We will have stronger communities involved in their own wellbeing and wider community’s 

mental health services 
 There will be an increase in physical and emotional health and wellbeing 

Page 121

Agenda Item 8



There follows a definition of wellbeing, a statement of Vision and a 20-point Promise for    
commissioners and providers, leaders and the people of Sefton. An overview of needs is 
presented in the Living in Sefton section and emphasises the challenges presented by 
contemporary policy changes, recession, budget reduction, demographic changes and 
meeting housing needs for example. The current strategy sets 6 strategic objectives and 
30 associated outcomes to achieve by 2020 (above). ’Living Well in Sefton’ also includes 
a one year delivery plan, which makes links to other place and needs based strategy, 
e.g. the Local Plan, the CCGs’ five-year plan, and also includes plans to further develop 
the HWB dashboard and to progress collaborative commissioning. The final section 
provides further detail about implementation relating to governance and monitoring

3.2 Consideration and proposed outline for Sefton’s new Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy

Our existing Health and Wellbeing Strategy was the product of a lengthy period of 
intensive work, engagement, system leadership, and positive peer review. 

Key strengths from Sefton’s HWB 2014-20, which should be carried forward include: 
short format, recognition of policy context and strategic purpose, emphasis on social and 
wider determinants of health and aligned commissioning, governance and community 
accountability, monitoring dashboard and enabling implementation plan. 

Areas that warrant development are: 

• Greater emphasis on the scale and make-up of the health conditions that affect 
people’s health in Sefton from birth through to older age

• More prominence towards addressing reduce health inequality as a cross-cutting 
priority, which recognises that this is a main driver of demand in services 

Seek to address the wider social, environmental and economic issues that 
contribute to poor health and wellbeing
• The appropriate infrastructure is in place to improve opportunity, maintain health and wellbeing 

and the quality of life for all
• There will be improved access to services and information for all, including leisure facilities, 

parks and open spaces
• There will be opportunities to access new skills, training enterprise, employment and 

progression
• There is infrastructure and investment is in place to improve opportunity, maintain health and 

wellbeing and quality of life for all
• There will be access to high quality housing across Sefton

Build capacity and resilience to empower and strengthen communities
• There will be stronger communities involved in and responsible for their own wellbeing and of the 

wider community with reduced dependency on services 
• There will be Improved access to services and information for all, including leisure facilities, parks and 

open spaces 
• The value of clean, safe, healthy environments in promoting health and wellbeing will be 

recognised
• The health benefits of borough wide activities through parks, the coast and countryside will be 

valued, encouraged and promoted 
• Increase the physical and emotional health and wellbeing of all residents 
• There are clean safe environments and quality of place 

Page 122

Agenda Item 8



• A strong, but simple narrative that links health and wellbeing outcomes, to health 
behaviour, arising out of underlying differences in experiences and opportunities 
across the lifespan

• More transparent explanation about assumptions, principles and the essential 
strategic approach to improving health and wellbeing and inequality 

• Information about supporting action, policy and governance that will enable the 
HWS to deliver on its ambitions

3.3Underlying assumptions and principles

The following assumptions and principles underpin strategy development to date. 
These reflect public health evidence, guidance, best practice from elsewhere and 
feedback from discussions and partner engagement to date.

i. Our health and life chances are founded on the influence of four main pillars: 
social and wider determinants of health and wellbeing, community networks 
and support, health behaviour, and health, care and wellbeing services

ii. Influence over these comes from three main areas: the broad range of civic 
responsibilities carried out by Sefton Council, commissioners and providers of 
health, care and wellbeing services, and Sefton’s wider community, including 
our voluntary sector, other organisations, businesses groups and networks. 
The HWS will point towards changes within and between these three main 
areas

iii. Shaping our 5-year response to each of these will require input from leaders, 
partners, and other stakeholders. This will draw together existing and future 
strategy, looking at connections across the four pillars of health, changes to 
ways of working and possibly changes to the support on offer based on our 
understanding of local need, resourcing and evidence of what works

iv. Recognising health and health-related priorities for a whole population is 
based on the information in our JSNA and focuses on issues that affect large 
numbers of people, not just the health problems that people die from, but also 
problems that can limit our ability to participate and have good quality of life2

v. The ambitions or priorities we agree upon in the strategy should be high level, 
informed by evidence and guidance where possible, alongside an 
understanding of needs and assets that balances statistical information with 
real-world experiences. Lessons from landmark reports such as Due North and 
Fair Society Healthy Lives have not lost any relevance

vi. We should aim to improve health and wellbeing for everyone, with the biggest 
improvements taking place in groups that have the most ground to make up, 
intensity of support and approaches to improving health should vary in line with 
need

2 Innovations in data visualisation help us to do this https://vizhub.healthdata.org/gbd-compare/
Page 123

Agenda Item 8



vii. Prevention is about enabling people to maintain the best health for them all the 
way through life. Our health and wellbeing is essentially our fuel for life, so 
prevention is a cross-cutting theme  

viii. Wellbeing is related to health but distinct. It is connected to our sense of place 
in the world, our value and purpose. Wellbeing is a cross-cutting theme

ix. Differences in life expectancy, disease and disability that we measure today 
are the result of a lifetime of diverse influences, of which the greatest is socio-
economic disadvantage or poverty. Achieving measurable differences in these 
outcomes takes place over generational timescales, however measuring 
improvements in outcomes at the start of life is possible within the lifetime of 
this strategy. It is useful to use a life-course framework and consider short, 
medium and long-term measures of success. Some ambitions may carry over 
from one HWS to the next

x. The NHS Sefton Place Plan makes a major contribution towards achieving our 
vision for better and more equal health, happiness and opportunity in Sefton 
through its focus on improving quality and equity, developing stronger 
connections with specific community needs, civic and services assets in how it 
delivers care, and in its position as an anchor institution

3.4Proposed outline

Foreword and introduction

- Purpose of the strategy, function of the board, role of Health Watch, 
community accountability

- What did our previous HWS achieve and what have we learned?
- How was this plan developed (how did we agree on the main things to work 

on between now and 2025)? 
- How will we get from words on a page to the differences you told us you 

wanted to see?
- How to keep in touch and help us achieve our ambitions

Statement of HWB values/promise What is health and wellbeing like in Sefton?

- What is health? What is wellbeing?
- Where does health come from?3 (see below for the King’s fund four pillars 

model) Sefton has a lot to work with 

3 https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/sites/default/files/2018-
11/A%20vision%20for%20pop%20health%20summary%20online%20version.pdf

Page 124

Agenda Item 8



- General discussion on the main causes of illness, disability and death in 
Sefton (cancer, circulatory and respiratory disease, mental health), health 
behaviours:  smoking, diet and obesity, physical activity, alcohol, drug use, 
plus harm from air pollution, infectious disease especially unvaccinated 
children, and abusive relationships

- There are big differences in health and wellbeing in Sefton

What explains these differences? The conditions in which we grow up, 
live, work and age are the biggest influence on our life chances, health 
and wellbeing. These conditions include, income, emotional investment 
and care from parents, carers, family and friends, risks and health benefits 
in our homes and neighbourhoods, access to essential services like 
transport and healthcare, and our experiences in pre-school, school and 
training that influence are path through life as adults

This strategy has a bigger focus in reducing these inequalities in health – 
why?

Although there are some things that only the government can change, the 
extent of health inequality is not fixed or inevitable. Health inequality is a 
barrier to social mobility and prosperity, a legal duty on councils and the 
NHS, and a major driver of cost and demand on services

What do we want to achieve? Vision, Aim, What are our ambitions for Sefton

Start Well
Children’s life chances and health risks diverge rapidly from birth. Social mobility 
linked to educational attainment, health and wellbeing is a concern in Sefton. 
There is lots of evidence to show that giving support to offer children and families 

Page 125

Agenda Item 8



a more level playing field from birth to starting school and beyond is probably the 
single best way of improving population health and narrowing health inequalities. 
There are several points to intervene, and issues for Sefton include:
Healthy, positive, pregnancy: substance use, smoking, obesity, nutrition, mental 
health, indoor and outdoor air pollution, and reproductive choice
Avoidance of preventable illness: breastfeeding, vaccination, childhood accident, 
dental health, healthy housing, passive smoking, reducing exposure to air 
pollution as lungs are developing, development confident, successful weaning and 
good nutrition, food poverty, and food environments linked to obesity rates that 
are now the major behavioural risk as our children age
Services that can readily modulate between universal assessment support, early 
intervention and intensive support, and are networked with wider support 
opportunities to meet individual and family needs 
Emotional wellbeing – support for vulnerable parents, and children, peri-natal 
mental health, exposure to adverse childhood experiences. In older children poor 
mental wellbeing, bullying, loneliness, self-harm, time out of education, 
vulnerability and exposure to crime and access to mental health services are 
concerns
Making confident transitions into primary, secondary school and into further 
education and training. Wider gap in educational attainment in secondary school 
Inequalities exist along lines of income and social deprivation; less good physical 
and mental health is also a known risk for children with learning or other 
disabilities, children from groups that may be at higher risk of exclusion, and 
children who identify as LGBT

Live Well
In our middle years health behaviours start to become more prominent concerns 
for health. People living within the constraints of a low income, and other socio-
economic disadvantage are more likely to develop pre-cursors to chronic 
conditions such as obesity, raised blood sugar, high blood pressure, or high 
cholesterol. This group is more likely to develop serious long-term, conditions like 
diabetes, osteoporosis, cancer, heart disease, stroke or lung disease earlier in life 
(pre-retirement age) and develop more than one.
Additional challenges from poor quality or uncertain employment, debt, caring for 
children and/or older relatives and physical health problems add up to increasing 
risk of poor mental wellbeing and mental health conditions. The amount of ill-
health reduced quality of life due to issues like headache, backache, and stress 
are all part of this picture, and middle-aged men continue to have the highest rate 
of suicide in Sefton. 
The cross over between reduced mental wellbeing, physical health, and unhealthy 
behaviours such as alcohol and substance use and smoking can pose problems 
for anyone, and can often have health and wellbeing impacts for family and wider 
social networks. However, the risk and the severity of the consequences, e.g. 
homelessness, are more serious, for people living in poverty. This is reflected in 
the much higher rates of chronic disease, emergency healthcare use, health-
related benefits claims and lower screening uptake we see in parts of South 
Sefton and Southport.
Public Health England’s short-hand summary of health determinants as ‘a job, a 
friend, and somewhere to live’ is relevant. Housing, inclusive growth, healthy high 
streets and workplaces and holistic, person-centred support for carers and others 
are key considerations for this age group.

Page 126

Agenda Item 8



Inequalities in adulthood are along similar lines to those described above, but are 
also more significant for people living with long-term mental health conditions.

Age Well
We age from the moment we are born, and our genes plus a lifetime of 
experiences shape our mental and physical health in later life. The proportion of 
older people in Sefton’s population is growing and invites us to think about what 
active and productive ageing would mean for Sefton. Older people can play a 
major part in volunteering, community and asset-based development. 
Health concerns for some older people in Sefton include our high rate of falls and 
the loss of independence that can result, neurological conditions, including stroke 
and dementia, mental health problems such as depression, risk from infections 
including influenza and pneumonia, and sensory impairment. Negotiating a 
complex array of health and care arrangements, time in hospital, challenges within 
the home environment, access to suitable transport options, low income, and 
possibly a caring role are demanding and pose a major risk to health and 
wellbeing.
Considerations for this age group include how care, health and community 
services and support work together, the ongoing value of preventative care for 
example to minimise the risk of a serious fall, infection or complication from a 
long-term condition. 
In terms of health inequality, it is important for services beyond health and social 
care, including wellbeing services to understand how they can help meet the 
needs of this group, and older people who may identify as belonging to another 
group and feel excluded. The social, and built environment are also a key 
consideration. Indoor and outdoor spaces that are designed co-productively and 
with the needs of older people in mind work well for everyone and can help 
strengthen communities by fostering inter-generational inclusion. 

How will this plan lead to better health and smaller differences in health?
Who is responsible for making changes?

There is a key role for commissioners and provider of services in how they 
address our collective ambitions for Sefton, but a lot of the things that help to 
create health, happiness and good opportunities to sit outside of services in other 
parts of the council, and in the community.

The latest guidance from Public Health England4 describes two main ways to 
improve health and reduce inequalities. And these can be applied to progress our 
vision, aim and ambitions, with oversight and support coming through the 
implementation plan and supporting policy development

Firstly, there are changes to improve the overall quality of services and to ensure 
that the most intensive support is where it’s most needed and provided in ways 
that work for people. This is a key point for Sefton’s health services, as outlined in 
the NHS Long Term Plan; voluntary sector organisations already have valuable 
experience and learning to share.

The idea of a quality offer for health can also be applied to how we continue to 
enhance our built and natural environment, pursue inclusive growth, spend our 

4 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/health-inequalities-place-based-approaches-to-reduce-inequalities
Page 127

Agenda Item 8



Sefton pound to increase social value, and support the health and wellbeing of 
employees, students and people moving towards employment

Secondly, it is important to for all these different parts of the system to strengthen 
their health impact by connecting together. This multiplies the prevention potential 
that any one part of the system can create on its own. Sefton already has some 
great examples of this, but the HWB and HWS can facilitate this approach.

Public Health England Population Intervention Triangle5

How will we know it is working or not working?

The HWB will use facts and figures from the JSNA and national outcomes 
frameworks to measure to look at whether things are moving in the right direction. 
We will also include community suggestions for the things that matter to you so 
we can report back on these too.  Some of the big changes we will take longer to 
show up in official statistics, so the HWB dashboard could also select 
measurements from services that would suggest the right changes are happening. 
Tracking progress on milestones is another way to do this, for example other 
strategies, policies, processes that are needed to enable change.

3.5 Implementation and supporting documents

With reference to the considerations above supporting policy could include the 
following, some of these could be developed within the year one implementation 
plan as previously

- Illustration of governance and delivery structures, reflecting relationships 
between organisations, strategies and other committees

- Completed dashboard
- A common commissioning for outcomes framework to support co-

operative commissioning aligned on core priorities, approach, monitoring
- A shared quality framework, emphasising equity and co-production 

alongside the other main domains
- A Health in All Policies Plan

5 https://www.slideshare.net/PublicHealthEngland/placebased-approaches-for-reducing-health-inequalities
Page 128

Agenda Item 8



- A communications and engagement strategy

4 Formulating ambitions

The summary narrative around Sefton’s health and health-related needs across the 
life-span can be used to stimulate ideas around the particular ambitions the strategy 
could present to galvanise high impact change. Some of these may already be 
reflected in the objectives set in the existing strategy, whilst others may suggest 
themselves from the main messages from Michael Marmot and the authors of the 
Due North Report. For example,

- Promote healthy development in early childhood 
- Enable everyone to maximise their capabilities and control over their lives
- Create fair employment and good work for all
- Ensure a healthy standard of living: homes, streets, schools workplaces and 

leisure time 
- Co-create healthy and sustainable places and communities – active travel, 

clean air, high quality green and urban spaces that work for everyone
- Strengthen the role of the health sector in prevention and health equity

Co-creating these to reflect the specific needs in Sefton and taking on board the 
views of community members will be the focus of the next phase of public and 
stakeholder engagement.

Page 129

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to: Health and 
Wellbeing Board 

Date of Meeting: 11th September 
2019 

Subject: SEND Continuous Improvement 
Report of: Chief Executive Wards Affected: (All Wards);

Portfolio: Children, Schools and Safeguarding

Is this a Key 
Decision:

N Included in 
Forward Plan:

No

Exempt / 
Confidential 
Report:

N

Summary:

The report updates the Board on actions taken and progress made with regard to the 
improvements required following the Ofsted and Care Quality Commission joint local 
area special educational needs and/or disabilities (SEND) revisit.  The report details the 
key actions and responses since the revisit outcome was made public.

Recommendation(s):

The Board is asked to 

(i) request Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Children’s and Safeguarding) to 
monitor progress against the Improvement Plan on a quarterly basis 
commencing in January 2020

(ii) request Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Children’s and Safeguarding) to 
give particular consideration to the improvements needed and progress made 
in the area of Co-production, Communication and Engagement.

Reasons for the Recommendation(s):

The revisit highlighted that partner agencies need to significantly improve outcomes for 
children and young people and support parents and carers through improvements to joint 
working, transparency and health system responsibility. Since the report to the Health 
and Wellbeing Board in June 2019 the Department of Education, responded by issuing 
the Council with an Improvement Notice on the 14th June 2019 (published on 25th July) 
which will remain in place for the next 18 months. 

Given the feedback received governance and leadership across the local area for SEND 
has never been more important.  The Health & Wellbeing Board will provide system 
leadership, keep the Council’s Cabinet informed of progress and if necessary will 
escalate concerns. The role of the Health & Wellbeing Board the Board is to offer robust 
challenge and oversight to the continuous improvement of the local are offer to Children, 
Young People and their families.  As the Improvement Plan is still being considered by 

Page 131

Agenda Item 9



the Department for Education the Health & Wellbeing Board is asked to put plans in 
place that will provide added rigor to the monitoring of the Improvement Plan.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: (including any Risk Implications)

None.

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

(A) Revenue Costs
 
Not Applicable 

(B) Capital Costs

Not Applicable 

Implications of the Proposals:

Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets):
There are no direct financial implications from this report.

In December 2018 the Government announced, “Children with special educational 
needs and disabilities (SEND) are set to benefit from an extra £350 million funding to 
provide specialist support and tailored facilities, helping those with complex needs to 
succeed.”

The Local Government Association (LGA) states “There is simply not enough money 
to keep up with demand, leaving many councils unable to meet their statutory 
duties and meaning children with high needs or disabilities could miss out on a 
mainstream education.”

The High Needs Budget in 2018/19 overspent by £2.3m.  This is after taking into 
account the additional £562k awarded in December 2018 as part of Sefton’s share of 
the £350m two-year additional funding.

Annual expenditure has risen by £4.5m between 2014/15 and 2018/19 an increase of 
17.7%, whereas annual High Needs funding has only increased by £2.392m (9.4%) 
across the same period, this includes taking inter-DSG block funding transfers into 
account.

Legal Implications: 

The Children and Families Act (2014) places a statutory duty on local authorities,
education providers, CCGs and other NHS organisations to provide support for children 
and young people with SEN or disabilities aged 0-25. In doing these local authorities, 
NHS England and their partner CCGs must make arrangements for agreeing the 
education, health and social care provision reasonably required by local children and 
young people with SEN or disabilities.

Page 132

Agenda Item 9



Equality Implications:

There are no equality implications. 

Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose:

Protect the most vulnerable: Ensure a focused response on providing improved 
outcomes for the children. young people with SEND and their families. 
Facilitate confident and resilient communities: The Improvement Plan responding to the 
revisit and the subsequent activity will need to build the confidence of the community 
that the Council and its Health partners are delivering on their commitments. 
Commission, broker and provide core services: A key pillar of the Improvement Plan will 
be the development of a Joint Commissioning Strategy.

Place – leadership and influencer:  The Council will work with partners, in particular 
Health, to work towards common goals in relation to the delivery of the Action Plan.  
The Council has a key role in holding the whole system to account on this matter 
and will ensure an evidence-based plan is delivered against.

Drivers of change and reform: The Council will work with partners, in particular Health, 
to make change happen so as to improve outcomes for children and young people with 
SEND.
  
Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity: Not Applicable 

Greater income for social investment: Not Applicable 

Cleaner Greener Not Applicable 

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

(A) Internal Consultations

The Head of Corporate Resources (FD5760) and the Chief Legal and Democratic Officer 
(LD4884) have been consulted and any comments have been incorporated into the 
report.

Officers of all parties will ensure that all members of the SEND workforce are aware of 
the content of the Improvement Plan, their role in delivering the change and progress 
against plan.

(B) External Consultations 

The Council has engaged with the CCG and other Health partners on this matter.  This 
engagement continues to be led by the Chief Executive.

Page 133

Agenda Item 9



The Council’s Chief Executive have met with representatives from the Department for 
Education and NHS England.

The Improvement Plan is the Council and Health Partners response to the revisit and so 
not subject to co-production with parents and carers, however, it is important to note that 
as operational changes and commissioning intentions are developed parents and carers 
will be engaged in the process.  Families will be kept fully informed of developing and 
planned changes as well as progress against the Improvement Plan.

With regard to future operational and commissioning changes there are different 
definitions of collaboration and coproduction but there is a consensus that working 
together leads to improved outcomes for people who use services and carers, as well as 
a positive impact on the workforce. The Council’s approach will not just be about 
partnerships across sector boundaries. It is much more about combining the knowledge, 
skills and experience of people who access activities and services, delivering services 
and commissioning services, working together on an equal basis to achieve positive 
change and improve lives and outcomes.

Implementation Date for the Decision

Immediately following the Committee meeting.

Contact Officer: Jan McMahon
Telephone Number: 01519344431
Email Address: jan.mcmahon@sefton.gov.uk

Appendices:

A. The Joint Inspection Letter 
B. Terms of Reference

Background Papers:

Page 134

Agenda Item 9



1. Introduction

1.1 This report informs the Health & Welling Board of the progress made and 
improvements planned in response to the Ofsted and Care Quality 
Commission in the joint local area special educational needs and/or 
disabilities (SEND) revisit that took place between 15th to 17th April 2019. 
 

1.2 Following the revisit, the Local Area received a letter on 14th June from the 
Department for Education (Appendix A) regarding the outcome of the revisit 
and expressing concern that Sefton had failed to make sufficient progress 
against the weaknesses identified during your initial inspection, and that 
delivery of services has worsened in some areas.

1.3 Since that time the Department of Education, have issued the Council with an 
Improvement Notice on the 14th June 2019 (published on 25th July) which will 
remain in place for a minimum of 18 months. 

1.4 In light of the feedback a Special Meeting of Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee (Children’s and Safeguarding) was called on 1st July with Members 
of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Adult Social Care and Health) 
invited to attend as the system supported children and young people aged 0 to 
25.  At this meeting it was agreed that the Improvement Plan be submitted to 
the meeting of this Committee to be held on 24 September 2019.

1.5 In response the partnership has developed an Improvement Plan which at the 
time of writing this report is being consideration by the Department for 
Education (DfE) and will be presented to the Health and Wellbeing Board for 
consideration and approval following receipt of DfE feedback   

1.6 Progress against the Improvement plan will be reported to SEND Continuous 
Improvement Board (SENDCIB) and the Health and Wellbeing Board. Terms 
of Reference for the SEND Continuous Improvement Board (SENDCIB) are 
available at Appendix B.

2. Background 

2.1 Members will recall that Sefton underwent a local area SEND inspection in 
November 2016. This tested identification of need in the local area, what 
support was provided and the impact that support was having.

2.2 The Inspection found weaknesses in the way the local area provided the 
support required and required the local area to submit a Written Statement of 
Action (WSOA) detailing how the weaknesses would be addressed over a 3-
year period.

2.3      The five areas of weakness identified were:

To improve the poor progress made from starting points by pupils with a 
statement of special educational needs or an EHCP at Key Stages 2 and 4
To address the poor operational oversight of the DCO across health
services in supporting children and young people who have special

Page 135

Agenda Item 9



educational needs and/or disabilities and their families
To improve the lack of awareness and understanding of health
professionals in terms of their responsibilities and contribution to EHCPs
To address the weakness of co-production with parents, and more
generally, in communication with parents
To address the weakness of joint commissioning in ensuring that there are 
adequate services to meet local demand

2.4     Ofsted and CQC jointly inspect local areas to see how well they fulfil their       
responsibilities for children and young people with special educational   

needs and/or disabilities. These inspections provide an independent external 
evaluation of how well a local area carries out its statutory duties (under the 
Children’s and Families Act 2014) in relation to children and young people with 
special educational needs and/or disabilities to support their development. The 
inspection reviews how local areas support these children and young people.

2.5 Local areas with a WSoA are re-visited by Ofsted and the CQC, usually 
around 18 months after the statement has been approved as fit for purpose. 
The sole purpose of the re-visit is to determine whether the local area has 
made sufficient progress in addressing the areas of significant weakness 
detailed by the WSoA. The focus of each re-visit is the areas identified in the 
WSoA. However, if any other serious weaknesses are identified during the re-
visit, these will be referenced in the re-visit letter. The re-visit inspection team 
is led by Her Majesty's Inspector (HMI) who is accompanied by a CQC 
inspector. 

2.6 The re-visit is quality assured by senior HMI from Ofsted and by nominated 
inspectors from the CQC. The respective inspectorates decide whether these 
re-visits are quality assured on site or off site. In Sefton’s case the revisit took 
place on site between 15th and 17th April 2019.

2.7 Following the revisit OFSTED and CQC published their findings in a letter 
attached at Appendix A. Given the local area is making insufficient progress 
the Department for Education and NHS England have determined the next 
steps and subsequently the Department of Education have issued a formal 
Improvement Notice that will remain in place for a minimum of 18 months.

2.8 On July 18th the Chief Executive for the Council and Deputy Chief Officer for 
the CCG presented the Improvement Plan and to Senior Officials from the 
Department of Education. 

3. Making the required improvement 

3.1   In June 2019 the Health & Wellbeing Board approved the establishment of a 
joint SEND Continuous Improvement Board (SENDCIB).   The SENDCIB is a 
multi-agency partnership arrangement that includes senior representatives 
from the local authority, CCGs, Alder Hey, North West Boroughs, along with 
other key stakeholders. It is designed to drive the actions in this focused plan 

Page 136

Agenda Item 9



and ensure the delivery of the required improvements to maximise life 
opportunities and positive outcomes for children and young people with SEND 
and their families. 

3.2 The Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care chairs SENDCIB, this board will 
oversee the progress and delivery against the Improvement Plan and will 
report progress to the Health and Wellbeing Board. 

The board operates as a sub group of the Health and Wellbeing Board and 
has specific task and finish groups established to drive the changes needed;  

3.3 The membership of SENDCIB now includes representatives of Parent Carer 
Forum, head teacher representatives from Nursery, Primary, Secondary and 
Special education and advisors from the DfE and NHS England.  Given the 
scope of the improvements required each quarter the SENDCIB will undertake 
a deep dive into one of the following area

 Performance Management and Assessment & Provision 
 Joint Commissioning
 Co-production, Communication and Engagement 

3.4 To provide added rigor to the monitoring of progress against the Improvement 
Plan the Health & Wellbeing Board is recommended to request Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee (Children’s and Safeguarding) to monitor progress against 
the Improvement Plan on a quarterly basis commencing in January 2020. In 
addition to this, given the importance of rebuilding the trust and confidence of 
parents and carers the Health & Wellbeing Board is recommended to request 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Children’s and Safeguarding) to give 
particular consideration to the improvements needed and progress made in the 
area of Co-production, Communication and Engagement.  I

Page 137

Agenda Item 9



3.5   All partners have taken immediate action to improve current operational 
performance in meeting the 20-week statutory timescale to produce Education 
Health and Care Plans Recovery Plans are in place.   To ensure improvement 
going forward a number of operational changes have been made, the Council 
has 
 agreed temporary funding for two additional Case Workers and a senior 

case worker 
 recruitment to all vacant posts is being actively progressed and it is 

anticipated that all vacancies will be filled by October 2019 
 seconded an experienced Head Teacher from the Ofsted rated 

Outstanding Rowan Special School on a part time basis, to assure the 
improvements that are being put in place from an education perspective 
and that the progress made to date is sustained

 offered a number of secondment opportunities to SENCOs to progress 
EHCP reviews

 has developed a tracker that monitors all outstanding and new requests for 
assessment, decisions to assess, production of draft plans, consultation 
with key stakeholders and parents and issue of final plans and

 organised training for the SEND workforce from the National Association of 
Special Educational Needs (NASEN) for September 2019 on writing EHCP 
outcomes. 

The CCGs have 
 agreed funding for two additional temporary Speech and Language 

Therapists (commence in September/October 2019) plus recruitment of 1 
permanent speech therapist (commence in September/October 2019)

 created a new performance dashboard and reporting structure so that all 
services can be more effectively monitored 

 changed booking systems so that in the future families should not 
experience multiple appointment cancellations to see a paediatrician

 implemented clinical supervision implemented for the DCO

3.6 Parents told us that they highly value the support of the SEND Information, 
Advice and Support Service (SENDIASS) but that this service is stretched and 
is working at capacity. This meant that the service is not able to provide all the 
support it would like to, due to the high level of demand. Access to this support 
is limited because of reduced capacity and because it is a term-time only. The 
Council has agreed to ensure the SENDIASS service covers non-term time 
and the CCGs now jointly commission the service.  This will not only ensure 
compliance with the Code of Practice but more importantly provide parents 
and carers with greater access to this valued support. It is anticipated that this 
additional resource will become available to parents and carers in Autumn 
2019.

4. Conclusion

4.1 The Local Area recognises the significant challenges faced by Sefton families 
of children with special educational needs and disabilities (SEND) as identified 
by Inspectors. It also recognises that it has not delivered services to the 
standard it should have and that our children and young people deserve.

Page 138

Agenda Item 9



4.2 To ensure delivery of the required change the Local Authority and health 
organisations will work together to put things right. All parties are committed to 
delivering the required actions that will improve the lives and life chances of 
Sefton’s children and young people with SEND. 

4.3 There has been a galvanised and cohesive response to start making the 
changes that are required immediately, in the medium and long term. As 
plans progress partners will improve engagement with young people and their 
parent/carers to better understand their experiences, to co-produce changes 
so that their experiences improve and to build their trust and confidence in the 
local area.  

4.4 Partners are jointly committed to delivering an effective local offer of support 
for children and young people with SEND, and their families.

Page 139

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Health and Wellbeing Board, 11th September 2019. 

Covering Note. 

02/09/19

Re:  CCG Exception Report  

Please see attached the NHS South Sefton CCG and NHS Southport and Formby CCG most recent 
performance data, the CCG have chosen to present only the statistics that are displaying an 
exception as oppose to the full suite of performance statistics. 

Kind Regards,

Eleanor Moulton, Integrated Social Care and Health Manager, Sefton MBC.

Page 141

Agenda Item 10



This page is intentionally left blank



Health & Wellbeing Board Update

South Sefton CCG and Southport & Formby CCG 

Performance Update – Month 3

P
age 143

A
genda Item

 10



RTT Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 Latest

CCG 89.04% 89.48% 89.64% 88.46%

Aintree 88.98% 89.67% 90.08% 89.00%

Plan: 92%

June's improvement plan: CCG - 90.2% and Aintree - 90.3%

Yellow denotes achieving 19/20 improvement plan but not national 

standard of 92%

Diagnostics Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 Latest

CCG 1.75% 0.73% 1.05% 1.56%

Aintree 0.38% 0.09% 0.21% 0.33%

Plan: less than 1%

June's CCG improvement plan: 1.26%

Yellow denotes achieving 19/20 improvement plan but not national 

standard of leass than 1%

Planned Care – South Sefton CCG

Diagnostics
• Key Issues – Issues relate to performance at Liverpool 

Heart &Chest and Southport Trust. LHCH planned update 
of Diagnostic facility with recovery due Aug-19. S&O Trust 
experiencing capacity and staffing problems.

• Key Actions – S&O Trust outsourcing activity to local ISTC 
provider to reduce WL from Aug-19.  

• Expected Recovery – August 2019; main provider 
performing to the standard.

Referral to Treatment
• Key Issues – Capacity shortfalls at main provider, WL 

initiatives ceasing due to pension/tax issues, increased 
waiting list position due to capacity, internal demand and 
downward performance.

• Key Actions – Escalated via internal CCG governance 
process, Trust reviewing theatre utilisation, exploring 
options for future WL initiatives on a specialty level basis.

• Expected Recovery – Quarter 4 

P
age 144

A
genda Item

 10



A&E Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 Latest YTD

CCG 80.64% 78.17% 78.34% 81.15% 79.21%

Aintree 85.12% 82.67% 82.92% 85.56% 83.70%

Plan: 95%

CCG's improvement plan: 89% by March 2020 

Aintree Improvement Plan 88%

Yellow denotes achieving 19/20 improvement plan but not national standard of 

95%

Unplanned Care – South Sefton CCG

A&E
• Key Issues – Demand and capacity, patient 

flow and delayed discharges. 
• Key Actions – CCG involved in a system wide 

review of Urgent Care services, weekly multi 
agency discharge events (MADE) across 
health and social care, winter planning and 
escalation process in development.

• Expected Recovery – Improvements to be 
made throughout 2019/20 but recovery to 
national standard not likely.

P
age 145

A
genda Item

 10



2 Week Cancer Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 Latest YTD

CCG 86.14% 86.14% 94.58% 93.81% 93.81%

Aintree 85.92% 76.97% 93.88% 95.00% 88.39%

Plan: 93%

62 Day Standard Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 Latest YTD

CCG 78.79% 75.00% 77.27% 65.52% 73.33%

Aintree 81.58% 69.06% 70.20% 60.90% 66.90%

Plan: 85%

Improvement Trajectory 73.8%

2 Week and 62 day Cancer Measures – South Sefton CCG and Main provider

2 week
• Key Issues – Main issues relate to Breast 

services with a combination of increased 
demand and workforce shortages.

• Key Actions – Workforce redesign and WL 
initiatives focused on Breast services.

• Expected Recovery – Monthly recovery 
occurred in May-19, quarterly recovery 
expected in Q2.

62 Day
• Key Issues – All tumour sites non-compliant at 

the main provider. A number of breaches due 
to complex pathways, delayed diagnostic 
intervention and delayed treatment. 

• Key Actions – Recovery plans from main 
provider reviewed each month in planned 
care group. Escalated via internal governance 
process and Contract Performance Notice 
(CPN) to be issued.

• Expected Recovery – Improvements 
throughout year but recovery not indicated in 
provider plans

P
age 146

A
genda Item

 10



IAPT Access & Recovery – South Sefton CCG

IAPT Access
• Key Issues – Ongoing issue with level of patients 

accessing to meet target not reached although 
capacity available. 

• Key Actions – Group work established to offer 
increased capacity, engagement with GP practices 
to target specific groups. Other organisations in 
Sefton provide non-IAPT interventions which are 
considered IAPT alternatives.

• Expected Recovery – Improvements to continue 
throughout 2019/20.

IAPT Recovery Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 Latest

SS CCG 47.40% 3707.00% 47.80% 36.80%

Recovery Plan: 50% - June 2019/20 36.8% and failed

IAPT Recovery
• Key Issues – Increased use of group sessions has 

resulted in a number dropping out of treatment 
affecting recovery rates.

• Key Actions – Clinical lead to review non-
recovered cases and work with practitioner’s to 
improve recovery.

• Expected Recovery – Ambition to improve 
throughout 2019/20.

IAPT Access Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 Latest

SS CCG 1.28% 1.23% 1.14% 0.94%

Annual Access Plan 2019/20: 19.0%

Monthly Access Plan: 1.59%

P
age 147

A
genda Item

 10



Paediatric Speech and Language Therapy (SALT) – South Sefton CCG

Paediatric SALT
• Key Issues – Capacity and demand into the 

service remain the biggest challenges.
• Key Actions – Discussions at the contract meeting 

with Alder Hey and a recovery plan has been 
developed. Narrative to be supplied by the Trust 
on all long waiting patients. Approval of business 
case for addition therapy staff to aid recovery.

• Expected Recovery – Recovery plan indicates 
recovery to 18 weeks by end of Feb-20

Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19

45 wks 45 wks 43 wks 37 wks

Incomplete Pathways (92nd Percentile)

Average waiting times <= 18 weeks

P
age 148

A
genda Item

 10



Planned Care – Southport & Formby CCG

Diagnostics
• Key Issues – Workforce issues and demand pressures 

internally affecting a number of diagnostic test areas. WL 
initiatives also affected by national tax and pension 
changes.  

• Key Actions – Main provider outsourcing a quantum of 
activity to the local ISTC provider t reduce WL and ease 
pressure.

• Expected Recovery – Trust plans do not include recovery 
in 19/20 and lack of assurance with current planned 
actions.

Referral to Treatment
• Key Issues – 18 week performance remains good, however 

increased waiting list levels have been noted specifically 
within Gynaecology and Trauma.

• Key Actions – Detailed view of demand and capacity in 
noted specialties to be undertaken by the Trust and CCG.

• Expected Recovery – n/a

RTT Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 Latest

CCG 93.04% 93.00% 93.52% 92.79%

S&O 94.48% 94.20% 94.22% 93.57%

Plan: 92%

Diagnostics Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 Latest

CCG 2.93% 3.00% 3.71% 5.20%

S&O 2.67% 2.80% 4.14% 5.30%

National Target < 1%

June's improvement plans

CCG: 2.1%       S&O: 2%

Yellow denotes achieving 2019/20 improvement plan but not 

national standard.

P
age 149

A
genda Item

 10



Unplanned Care – Southport & Formby CCG

A&E
• Key Issues – Increased demand, patient flow 

issues and delayed discharges.
• Key Actions – Collaborative working as a 

system across health and social services to 
improve system flow. winter planning and 
escalation process in development.

• Expected Recovery – Continued 
improvement to be seen in 2019/20 but no 
planned recovery.

A&E Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 Latest YTD

CCG 84.09% 84.23% 85.15% 85.73% 85.03%

S&O 86.77% 86.93% 87.20% 87.88% 87.33%

National Standard: 95%

June's improvement plan: 90.1%

Yellow denotes achieving improvement plan but not national standard of 95%

P
age 150

A
genda Item

 10



2 Week and 62 day Cancer Measures – Southport & Formby CCG and Main provider

2 week
• Key Issues – Main issues relate to Breast 

services with a combination of increased 
demand and workforce shortages.

• Key Actions – Workforce redesign and WL 
initiatives focused on Breast services.

• Expected Recovery – Monthly recovery 
occurred in May-19, quarterly recovery 
expected in Q2.

2 Week Cancer Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 Latest YTD

CCG 93.13% 86.52% 93.34% 94.12% 91.31%

S&O 97.55% 94.30% 95.03% 94.80% 94.74%

Plan: 93%

62 Day Standard Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 Latest YTD

CCG 85.71% 72.22% 80.56% 85.29% 79.25%

S&O 81.16% 69.62% 75.29% 78.02% 74.51%

Plan: 85%

62 Day
• Key Issues – Main reasons for breaches 

occurring have been inadequate elective 
capacity, hospital delays in treatment and 
patient choice. 

• Key Actions – Assurances have been sought 
through the information meeting with the 
Trust on improved performance . The CCG 
escalating via the internal governance process 

• Expected Recovery – Further assurance to be 
sought via contract meeting as improvement 
and recovery not noted.

P
age 151

A
genda Item

 10



IAPT Access & Recovery – Southport & Formby CCG

IAPT Recovery Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 Latest

S&F CCG 56.20% 56.30% 48.90% 46.30%

Recovery Plan: 50% - June 2019/20 46.3% and failed

IAPT Access
• Key Issues – Ongoing issue with level of patients 

accessing to meet target not reached although 
capacity available. 

• Key Actions – Group work established to offer 
increased capacity, engagement with GP practices 
to target specific groups. Other organisations in 
Sefton provide non-IAPT interventions which are 
considered IAPT alternatives.

• Expected Recovery – Improvements to continue 
throughout 2019/20.

IAPT Recovery
• Key Issues – Increased use of group sessions has 

resulted in a number dropping out of treatment 
affecting recovery rates.

• Key Actions – Clinical lead to review non-
recovered cases and work with practitioner’s to 
improve recovery.

• Expected Recovery – Ambition to improve 
throughout 2019/20.

IAPT Access Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 Latest

S&F CCG 1.27% 1.06% 1.11% 0.90%

Annual Access Plan 2019/20: 19.0%

Monthly Access Plan: 1.59%P
age 152

A
genda Item

 10



Paediatric Speech &Language Therapy (SALT) – Southport & Formby CCG

Paediatric SALT
• Key Issues – Capacity and demand into the 

service remain the biggest challenges.
• Key Actions – Discussions at the contract meeting 

with Alder Hey and a recovery plan has been 
developed. Narrative to be supplied by the Trust 
on all long waiting patients. Approval of business 
case for addition therapy staff to aid recovery.

• Expected Recovery – Recovery plan indicates 
recovery to 18 weeks by end of Feb-20

Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19

45 wks 45 wks 43 wks 37 wks

Incomplete Pathways (92nd Percentile)

Average waiting times <= 18 weeks

P
age 153

A
genda Item

 10



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	4 Early Help Strategy progress update
	5 Reducing Parental Conflict in Sefton
	Enc. 1 for Reducing Parental Conflict in Sefton
	Enc. 2 for Reducing Parental Conflict in Sefton

	6 Health Watch Annual Report Presentation
	HWS Annual Report 2018 - 2019 - FINAL VERSION

	7 NHS Sefton 5 Year Place Plan
	sefton_brochure2_singlepage

	8 Refresh of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy Progress Update
	9 SEND Continuous Improvement
	10 CCG (Clinical Commissioning Group) Performance Exception Report
	Health & Wellbeing Board Performance Aug 2019


